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Group Overview

Group Overview

Future plc is a global platform for specialist media, listed on the London
Stock Exchange [symbol: FUTR). These highlights refer to the Group’s
annual results for the year ended 30 September 2020.

Media division KPls

Online users' (million)

Fy 2020 I 31,8

Fy 2019 I 181.0
FY 2018 I 118.0
Fy 2017 IR 490
Total global monthly online users to Future Google Anatytil

TAll figures are ex¢luding forums as they are non-commaercial websites for
which Future does not wHte content or actively manage or monetise. Previously
i fi FY 2020 only

reported figures have been d to
online users are 17.1m (FY 2019:25.3m). Online users figures from FY 2019 have
also been restated to exclude SmartBrief newsletter subseribers which have

been reclassified to email newsletters.

eCommerce transactions {million}

FY 2020 I 13.6

FY 2019 N 9.8
FY 2018 I 3.2
FY 2017 I 20

Number of transactions made via affiliate links on Future websites.

Event attendees (thousand)

FY 2020 I 100
FY 2019 I 151
Fy 2018 I 155
Fy 2017 I 76

Number of visitors to Future events includes 32 in-person events held virtually
in FY 2020 due te COVID-19,

Email newsletter subscribers (million)

FY 2020 I 9.4
FY 2012 I 7.0

Tetal subseribers to Future email newsletters. Data available from FY 2019.

Magazine division KPIs

Total circulation {million)

Syl ¥
FY 2019 IR 1.5
FY 2018 I 1.3
FY 2017 IS 1.0

Total of @ach magazine and bockazine circulation per issue.

Total subscribers (million)

FY 2020 I 1.5

FY 20712 NS 09
FY 2018 I 0.9
FY 2017 MRS 0.5

Nutnber of subscribers to Future magazines perissue.
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Corporate KPIs

Revenue (Emillion) Global audience (million)

Fy 2020 I 339.6 Fy 2020 IR (93.6
Fy 2019 I 2215 FY 2019 I 269.2
Fy 20182 IR 130.1 FY 2018 I 193.4
Fy 2017 R 84.4 Fy 2017 N 85.6
Consolidated Group revenue, Ir magazi and ines circulation, online users (excluding

farums), event attendees, soclal media followers (Twitter, Facebook and
YouTube)] and newsletter subscribers.

Adjusted operating profit (Emillicn)
Fy 2020 I 93.4

FYy 2019 I 52.2
Fy 2018 N 18.5
FY 2017 HH 8.9

Adjusted operating profit represents earnings before share-based payments
{relating to equity-settied awards with vestity periods longer than 12 months) and
related social security costs, interest, tax, amortisation of acquired intangible assets,
fair value movements on contingent consideration (and unwinding of associated
discount) and currency option, and exceptional items, and any related tax effects.

Adjusted operating profit margin Reported operating profit (Emillion)

Fy 2020 IR 289% Fy 2020 I 50.7
Fy 2019 I 24% FY 2019 N 26.7
Fy 2018 I 14% FY 2018 ER 53
FY 2017 I 1% FY 2017 1 0.8
Adjusted operating profit margin is adjusted operating profitas a Consalidated statutory operating profit.

percentage of revenue.

Adjusted free cash flow (Emillion) Free cash flow (Emillion)

FY 2020 I 96.0 Fy 2020 I 879
FY 2012 I 53.7 Fy 2019 IR 49.7
FY 2018 W 17.4 Fy 2018 HEE 12.3
Fy 2017 N 15.3 FY 2017 10.2
Adjusted free cash flow is defined as adjusted operating cash inflow less Free cash flow is defined as a statutory operating cash inflow less

capital expenditure. Adjusted operating cash inflow represents operating capital expenditure,

cash inflow adjusted to exclude cash flows refating to exceptianal items and

settlement of employer's social security costs on share-based payments, and

ta include lease repayments following adoption of IFRS 16 Leases.

Adjusted diluted EPS (p) Leverage

FY 2020 NN 4.7 Fy 2020 IEEEEEEERERE 60x
FY 2019 I 475 Fy 2010 NN T4x
FY 2018 NN 24.3 Fy 2018 I -86x
FY 2017 I 18.4 Fy 2017 I Olx
Adjusted diluted EPS represents adjusted profit after tax divided by the For FY 2020 leverage is defined as debt as a proportion of EBITDA adjusted for
welghted average dilutive number of shares at the vear end date. the impact of IFRS 16 and including the 12-manth trailing impact of acquired

businesses {In line with the Group's bank covenants definition). For previous
years leverage is defined as total net debt divided by adjusted EBITDA.

Notes
2.FY 2018 restated for IFRS 15 Revenue from s with . 3 { for FY 2018 rights issue.
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Chairman’s
Statement

Richard Huntingford
Chairman
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ear Shareholders.

In this highly unusual and challenging
year, it is my pleasure to report that Future
has continued to thrive, with Future’s

content now read by cne in three people in the UK and US.
Glebal audiences increased rapidly during FY 2020 from a
mix of underlying growth in audience engagement,
through new l[aunches and acquisitions, and the increased
consumption of digital content during the pandemic.

This growth in audience has helped lead to another
exceptional year of results. Revenue for the year increased
by 53% to £339.6m, with organic revenue growth of 6%
driven by strong organic Media revenue growth of 23%
which offset the impact of COVID-19 on Magazines
revenue, which declined crganically by 29%. Adjusted
operating profit increased 79% to £93.4m. These results
were delivered despite the unprecedented challenges
arising from the pandemic.

Clear strategy
The Group continues to successfully execute on the
strategy of being a global platform for specialist media.
with scalable, diversified brands, and this has resulted in
strong financial performance and total sharehoider
return.

We maintain our focus on cur purpose,
which is to change people’s lives through
sharing knowledge and expertise with
others, making it easy and fun for them to
do what they want, The proven success of
our strategy makes it enduring. Our
commitment to producing high-quality
content, delivered across multiple platforms,
helps us expand the loyal communities and
audiences we've built up over many years.

With this content at our heart, the
Group has a diversified range
of revenue streams from
consumer direct
purchases,
advertising,

8 [ FUTURE PLC
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eCommerce and events. Uur mnovative and scalable
technology stack is critical in our ability to respond to the
changing media landscape: cur eCommerce capability
gives our intent audience what they need to be guided
through online purchases, and our advertising tech stack
provides advertising clients with high-value targeted
audiences.

Value-led business
As a value-led business, we are driven by our purpose and
defined by our values, We have centinued this year to focus
on embedding our value-based culture. Our values support
our strategy and the way we execute 11, so we rely on our
Future Playbook to bring alignment in the way we behave
and work. Despite the social, economic and environmental
challenges of this year beyond just the pandemic, we have
seen the positive effects of our staff living our values. These
challenges have brought out the best in our staff; from
innovative soluticns to continuing to deliver high-quality
content and experiences to our communities and our
clients, to support and engagement of cultural change.
inclusion and diversity. We recognise that to continue the
success of the business we must continue to facilitate a
value-led culture, encouraging and enabling our
employees to operate in this way.

Stakeholder engagement
L!!‘\ pages 44 to 48

As you will read later in this Annual Report,
our value-led culture was very much to the fore
in the boardroom, when the pandemic unfolded,
as we sought to understand, respond to and
balance the needs and priorities of cur different
stakeholder groups, whose interests and well-being
are dependent on our decision-making. | firmly
believe that we got the balance as fairly
weighted as could have been expected.

Challenging market
FY 2020 has been a year of significant
market challenges. from the COVID-19
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pandemic to econemic, social and political disruption,
and as we enter the financial year 2021 these challenges
continue. Despite this uncertain backdrop, the Group has
not just been resilient; it has thrived. This is evidenced by
the financial and operational performance, which proves
not only that our strategy is enduring and robust, but also
that our value-led culture is a differentiator in a
chailenging landscape.

The Group initiated a three-pronged approach,
focusing on our employees, clients and stakeholders as
we considered how to lessen the impact of the pandemic.
We believe that our approach has proven successful and
enabled us to deliver our current results and maintain the
momentum into our new financial year. Futureis a
global-first business. which congregates around a shared
culture and vision, not locations, and is able therefore to
pivot quickly to adapt to market conditions. We are used
to working in a collaberative way across locations, so the
move to homewoerking had minimal impact on our ability
to deliver to our audiences and customers. Qur
diversified business model reduces risk and our unified
processes and platforms allow us to serve our audience
and clients in multiple ways.

Investing in growth

The Group has a clear acquisition strategy of buying
businesses in which we can add value through our
diversified business model. Our acquisitions complement
and accelerate our organic growth, and we continually
diversify by moving into adjacencies, new verticals, and
by building cut our platform.

The robustness of our business model - and ability to
grow during difficult market conditions - means that we
remain committed to our strategy to grow both
organically and through acquisitions, During FY 2020 the
Group has been able to continue to invest in growth, with
anumber of new launches into new verticals and the
successful completion of two acquisitions: Barcroft
Studios, in November 2019; and the transformational
acquisition of T Media in April 2020. Our proven
integration model enabled us to integrate these
businesses in line with our investment case, despite the
restrictions around office working. Since the peried end.
we gcquired CinemaBlend, in early Gctober 2020.

Barcroft Studios is a video production company with
expertise iIn monetising audiences through social media.
Barcroft creates content for global platforms. including

ABOVE: Barcroft
creates content
for global
platforms such
as YouTube,

as well as
producing high-
end television
for networks,
broadcasters
and streaming
platforms.

-

“I want to thank the incredible team at Future who
have worked tirelessly and adapted to a new way
of working as the Group has continued to provide

high quality content to our communities. Once
again, Future has proven itself to be one of the most
innovative and agile media companies, and that is
reflected with this year's excellent financial results.
The Group’s resilience against a challenging market

L is testament to our strategy and our people.”

-]
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Snapchat and YouTube, as well as producing high-end
original productions for networks, broadcasters and
streaming platforms, including Netflix, National
Geographic Channel, the BBC and Channel 4.

Tt Media is a UK-based, print-led consumer magazine
and digital publisher, with deep industry heritage and a
portfolio of popular brands, including Country Life,
Woman & Home, Decanter and Marie Claire. This exciting
acquisition has introduced to Future substantial new
specialist audiences. including women's lifestyle, TV
entertainment, gardening, wine, golf and a numbocr of
additional sports verticals, as well as growing the Group's
presence in home interest, cyeling and country sports.
The opportunities to grow these portfolios through
Future's platform of diversified revenue streams, as well
as growing the brands globally, is significant and has
already borne fruit, with new launches over the last few
months in gardening, TV viewing, outdoors, health and
wornen's lifestyle. The Group also announced that
expected cost synergies of £20m per annum will be
achieved within 24 menths, anincrease from the £15m
initially identified. The delivery of these savings is
progressing well, with the Group already securing annual
cost synergies of over £20m, of which £3m has benefited
FY 2020. Both of these acquisitions bring an excellent
opportunity for the Group to accelerate growth, in both its

global presence and also the continual development of the

diversified platform business model. 1 am excited by the
opportunities that these acquisitions bring to the Group.

On the 25 Novemnber 2020 the Group announced that
we have agreed the terms of a recommended offer to
acquire the entire issued and to be issued share capital of
GoCo Group plc. We believe that the combination will
significantly strengthen the Group's preposition of
seeking to address the growing consumer dernand for
informed and value driven purchasing decisions enabled
by intent driven content,

ABOVE: The
opportunities

to grow these
portfolios through
Future's platform
of diversified
revenue streams,
as well as
growing the
brands globally,
is significant and
has already borne
fruit.

The Group also decided to invest in the creation of 150
new roles across digital media and technology to support
the growth plans; this was announced in early October,
andis an investment in the region of £5-6m. This
investmentin resource will support and accelerate our
significant online audience growth potential.

People

At Future, we believe our pecple are our greatest asset.
Their commitment, integrity, resilience and flexibility have
enabled the Group to thrive in these more challenging
market conditions. They bring cur values to life in the way
they work and collaborate with each other. In addition, as
the Group continues to expand through acquisition. which
brings changes to the business, cur empioyees have
shown great resilience and adaptability throughout.

On behalf of the Board and our sharehoelders, | would
like to thank all cur employees for their hard work,
dedication and continued passion o the Fulure cause
during FY 2020, which has been the driving force behind
the Group's outstanding results.

I would also like to make special mention of our Chief
Executive Zillah Byng-Thorne, and her executive
leadership team. The pandemic has highlighted the
difference between the large cohert of Chief Executives
deemed to be "good leaders” of the companies that they
run and the small pool of Chief Executives who are "truly
cutstanding leaders™: Individuals who are able to respond
to the need for difficuit, urgent and far-reaching decision-
making and who, in hugely chailenging times, lead with
clarity, bravery, authenticity and empathy, whilst putting
the needs of others before their own. Zillah has shown
herself to be just such a leader, supported magnificently
by her executive team.

m How we create value for our stakeholders
pages 44to 48
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Capital structure and dividends

The Group continues to be highly cash generative.
Adjusted free cash flow was 103% of adjusted operating
profit (FY 2019: 103%), with net debt of £62.1m at the
end of the year. The Board's policy is that leverage should
not exceed 1.5x, with an exception for acquisition spikes;
our year end leverage was 0.6x. Therefore, the Beard is
delighted to propose anincreased final dividend of 1.6p a
share (FY 2012: 1.0p). payable on 16 February 2021 to all
shareholders on the register at the close of business on
15 January 2021. Our goal continues to be the
implementation of a progressive dividend policy, and at
the same time to balance shareholder returns and
investment in the company to support future growth and
optimise value for shareholders.

Following the end of the year. the Group agreed a
£215m two year term lean in order to part-fund the
recommended offer for GoCo Group ple. kn addition the
Group's £30m short dated COVID-19 facility was
cancelled. This ensures that the husiness has a balance
sheet and debt capacity in line with its objective of not
operating with leverage of more than 1.5x (outside of
exceptional circumstances). In conjunction with this, and
as part of the viability assessment on page 43, the Board
undertook a detailed going concern review. This included
reviewing the Group's forecasts and projections, after
applying a number of severe but plausible downside
sensitivities to those projections, and assessing the
headrocm on the Group's credit facilities. Future's
diversified revenue model, and strong balance sheet,
which includes current headroom of over £100m on
available facilities at 30 September 2020 leave the Group
well positioned to continue to adapt to market conditions
inthese uncertain times.

The continuing success of the Group and the
transformative steps we have taken this year is reliant on
the support of our shareholders and our banking

Strategic Report

syndicate. s¢ i would like to thank them for their
continued confidence in our strategy.

Board compeosition

We have a strong Board team in terms of experience,
entrepreneurial and ambitious spirit and business
acumen. It is important that we continue tobuild a
Board that is aligned to the Group's culture and vaiues,
and commensurate with the Group’s FTSE250 status
and growth ambitions. The three appcintments we have
announced this year reflect this commitment.

in February 2020 we announced the appointment of
Meredith Amdur as an Independent Non-Executive
Director. Meredith is currently Chief Executive Officer of
Rhetorik, a leading data supplier to technology vendors.
She brings knowledge, understanding and experience
of the US media market, and especially digitaily-led
environments.

As previously announced, Rachel Addisen was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
effective 1 June 2020. Rachel is a great addition to the
Future Board as we continue to strengthen and diversify
our collective acumen and experience. Rachel,
previously Chief Financial Officer at Tl Media, has
significant experience in the media market; | am
delighted to welcome her to the Board. Rachel takes the
place of Penny Ladkin-Brand. whe has stepped into her
new role as Chief Strategy Officer. | would like to take
this apportunity to extend my thanks to Penny for het
guidance to the Board over the last five years as CFO.

In September we announced the appointment of
Mark Brooker as an Independent Non-Executive
Director with effect from 1 October 2020. | am delighted
to welcome Mark, who has a wealth of experience of
executive and non-executive board roles; his insight and
understanding of platform-based businesses will hugely
benefit the Group.

AR

Looking to the future

After such an exceptional year the Group faces the
future with confidence. Qur value-led culture,
outstanding team, resilient strategy and confident
investrment in growth means this is an exciting time for
Future. | am confident that we will continue to celiver
significant iong-term value for sharehclders.

(o et

Richard Huntingford
Chairman
10 December 2020

Corporate Governance Section
pages 50 to 53
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Our Vision and Strategy

At Future, our success is the product of aligning our vision and strategy

within our organisation, and how we enforce the strategy.

Why we exist (Our Purpose)

“We change people’s lives through
sharing our knowledge and expertise
with others, making it easy and fun
L for them to do what they want.” J

Future is a global platform
for specialist media driven
by technology, with
diversified revenue streams

At Future, we pride ourselves on the
heritage of our brands and the loyalty of
our communities,

Offering core expertise, we are the
trusted advisor, who helps enthusiasts
follow their passion through
high-guality content, innovative
technology and unicue experiences.

4

We create loyal commmunities and
fans of our brands by giving them a
place they want to spend their time
and meet their needs

We succeed by delivering content that connects
with audiences, in areas in which we have expertise,
recognising that in today's media landscape
providing the answers to our audience’s needs is
the first requirement if you want them to spend
time with you.

As we strengthen our global reach across our
core verticals, we continue to be proud of the way
we bring people together to enjoy shared passions
wherever they arein the world. Cultivating a highly
engaged audience that through our help we are able
to monetise is fundamental to everything that we
do, and we now reach a global audience of 393.6m
(FY 2019: 269.2rm} through our websites, events,
socil media and magazines.

We are diversifying our
monetisation modeils to
create significant revenue
streams. We are focused on
three material revenue
types: Advertising,
Consumer Direct and Intent

We look to grow profitably and generate
cash returns, both organically and
through acquisitions, and aim tc do this
through diversifying our audience and
developing new sources of
monetisation.

12 | FUTURE PLC
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Our strategy is
underpinned by a
number of principles:

frmage removed

We leverage our data
and analytics to drive
innovation and execution
of our strategy

We are expanding our global
reach through organic
growth, acquisitions

and strategic partnerships

We are a data-rich company, which
uses data insight to better understand
and serve our audience. as well as
serving our commercial partners.
Threugh our data insight, we have
launched new products across our
verticals, like the innovation of cur
proprietary new lead generation
product - Falcon, and into new verticals
where we see an opportunity, like the
taunch of our pets vertical with
PetsRadar.com.

Investing in our business is a core part
of our strategy. That includes ensuring
we invest in our core brands, technology
and people as well as looking to acquire
new assets. in determining what
businesses we acquire we are keen to
ensure that they align with and enhance
our existing portfolio and further our
strategic vision. We look for scalable
brands that have loyal and specialist
audiences that can be monetised in
different ways and that will add value to
the Group.

1- Activators

® Future is our first team and
content is our first thought

® We are aligned on our strategy
and purpose. We call this the
“Future Playbook"

We have common goals. We call
this *what's important right now”

We think about the long term as
well as the short. We call this
“horizon planning”

We aperate a matrix, which means
we go slower to go faster. We use
responsibility assigrnrment
matrices [RACIs} tc help

We are diversified globally,
divisionaliy and vertically

We take the time to operate as a
tean and simple business

We are ambitious. We think in
terms of leaps not increments

We are alse brilllant at the basics
and believe in marginal gains

We take calculated risks in some
areas, and we protect those risks
through adopting a “*maximum
acceptable loss” approach

2 - Differentiators

® We offer the easiest-to-access ‘how to’
advice wheraver ocur audiences are

® We have the most relevant review
content in the world

We demonstrate the value
of original content

® We disrupt through platforms

We anticipate ocur customers' nceds

- Competitive essentials

We create meaningful relationships
with strategic partners

We blend human and artificial
intelligence

We have simple but brilliant
proprietary software

We know our customers

We have world-class Search
Engine Optimisation

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 f 13



How we execute
our strategy

We believe that strategy is about having
a series of intentional steps to help us intentional steps we manage risk and
achieve our goal. Future's vision is clear: can adapt to changing landscapes inan
to be a global leader in helping people agile way. ensure stability in our business. As the
achieve their goals, utilising our expert Annually we set out our key areas of way we reach cur audiences and how we
advice and content. focus and what we want to do in order to monetise them is experiencing

We use McKinsey's Three Horizons of ensure we achieve our overarching disruption, we have cnsured that our
Growth planning approach across the strategic ambrtions - we call this What's goals are focused on staying relevant for
organisation as a means of ensuring Important Right Now. We have ensured newer generations and new media
that each year our intentional steps that our plan for FY 2021 has encugh models. To deliver cperating leverage
achieve our ambitions. This approach focus on the things which will continue we are focused on continuing to
encourages our people to engage with the success of the last three years. optimise our centres of excellence,
the strategy in a meaningful and Agreeing on the right priorities is key to streamlined operational base and
relatable way and ensures that we delivering on our strategic objectives low-cost locations, while the continual
deliver a mix of performance today and and we want to continue our growth transition from print to online enables
investment in future performance. We momentum through both organic
believe this is critical to underpinning growth in FY 2021 and growth plans for
our longer-term growth. We also believe FY 2022 and beyond. We will focus on

that by breaking our strategy down into achieving abalance of more predictable
revenue streams, with increased

recurring revenues online to further
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margin expansion.
We have three underlying pillars that
help us execute our strategy.

1. Protect the core, grow existing brands & audiences

As a purpose-focused company, we concentrate on
growing and leveraging our ecosystem of brands, as
these are the touchpoints in which we engage with our
communities, making it easier for them to do the things
they love. We have a combination ¢f heritage and
acquired brands that help us expand market share
within our verticals as well as allowing us to enter new
verticals and access new communities white continuing
to ensure we provide expertise in these areas. Qur
brands help us deliver targeted highly qualified
audiences to our advertising and eCommerce partners.

audiences buy premium preducts. Its content is highly
flexible in that it can pivot to focus on premium products
outside of its core of techneology and gadgets and cover
other verticals, such as premium men'’s grooming, cars
and sports equipment.

Future's brands reach over 393.6m consumers and
business decision-makers every menth. By reaching lin
3internet users inthe US and UK, we are one of the
leading media publishers across the UK, US and
Australia, This level of engagerment gives us market
leading positions in many of our verticals, Future s the

We continue to nurture our legacy brands by foclising
on optimising their revenue streams and innovating
content. For example, last financial year we expanded
the monetisation of our music brands by launching The
Guitarist of the Year competition, a new paid-entry
awards event from GuitarWorld, GuitarPlayer and
BassPlayer. This enabled us to leverage the
relationships we had with our audiences across these
leading magazines, and websites, tocreate a truly
unigue event. Future's deep vertical knowledge and
communities of special interest ensure that one of its
unigque selling points 1s the ability to create new brands
from the relationships it has with other niche brands.
For example, T3 is a lifestyle brand which helps

go-to media partner for specialist endermic advertisers,
while this scale opens up further monetisation. For
example, ourfaunch of the Totally Games video series,
sponsored by Acer, utilises the best of our gaming
brands (Future Games Show, GamesRadar and our
games magazines) and Barcroft's videc monetisation
maodel. Overall, we have seen phenomenal online
audience growth of 56% year-on-year (excluding
forums?) to 281.8m, with 48% organic growth. Whilst
this growth was bolstered by the pandemic lockdown,
as people increasingly went online for entertainment,
news and online shopping. the underlying online
audience growth (adjusting for COVID-19 impact) was
44%, with organic growth of 37%, as our content

14 / FUTURE PLC
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continues to meet and exceed the need of our specialist
audiences. Structurally, as there is an acceleration to
online, we are best placed to benefit from this as we
develop our brands to serve our communities' needs;
Live Science's coverage of COVID-19 information and
news helped our audience better understand the
pandemic. Our B2B education brand Tech & Learning
produced a range of content about at-home education
including how-tos and tips such as our evergreen articie
“Free Online Learning Resources For Schools”.

We hold 23 market-leading positions online, in print
and in events. We continue to focus on growing our
market share through organic means and through
acquisition. The right acquisitions far Future are ones
where we believe we can uniguely create additional value
while accelerating our strategy. Our acquired brands
benefit from the standard processes and platforms of
our legacy brands allowing us to optimise their
performance,

The acquisition of T Media in April 2020 has provided
us with an exceptional opportunity to move into new
verticals, such as women's lifestyle, TV and wellness.
Here we can further monetise these new communities
by applying our platform business model to diversify the
revenue streams and further grow the audience in

Strategic Report
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previously untapped territories such as the US. The
value of the vertical presence and expertise that came
with this acquisition is already evident in our launches of
new websites Gardening Etc, Fit & Well, What to Watch,
Advnture, PetsRadar and My Imperfect Life - launched
within just five menths of acquisition completion. The
speed with which we are able to grow in these acquired
verticals is a testament to the Group's operating
leverage built on standard practices and platforms and
flexible operating model, given that this allhappened
during the Spring pandemic lockdewns. We are already
progressing the pipeline for migrating Tl Media's
websites onto our standard Vanilla web platform, with
Homes & Gardens, Livingetc and Woman & Home all
migrated. While the modular nature of our tech stack
means that those sites that are not yet migrated have
benefited from being plugged into cur ad tech stack,
Hybrid, and cur eCommerce technology, Hawk, to drive
previously untapped advertising and eCommerce

revenues. This is what makes the Tl Media acquisition so

exciting, as we apply cur expertise in serving high-
guality content specific to these communities' needs,
which is highly flexible in terms of reacting to current

trends. as well as our innovative and scalable technology

stack to enable us to fully monetise these communities.

ABOVE: Live
Science's
coverage of
COVID-19
information and
news helped our
audience better
understand the
pandemic.
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How we execute our strategy
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2. Ongoing diversification

We continue to focus on diversifying our business, by
expanding into new monetisation streams and new verticals,
which we do crganically and through acquisition. Cur
product offering has changed materially with over 240
brands in the Group's portfolio, across 18 specialist audience
verticals, through innovative new launches, to acquisitions.
Diversification allows us to have a strong defence against the
impact of detrimental changes to any onerevenue stream, as
evidenced by the way we pivoted to mitigate the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic on magazines and events, and a
strong offence by seeding lcnger term opportunities that
enable continued organic revenue growth. Diversification
across verticals, revenue streams and global footprint also
accelerates our growth, making it a key driver of our strategy.

Future has operations across the UK and US but we are a
globalfirst company that reaches a global audience. The
growth of our US audience is a key part of our diversification
strategy as we grow crganically and through acquisition.
Revenue from the US is now at 49% of the Group's total
revenue, following the acquisition of Tl Media in April 2020.
We are focusing on launching .com brands, in particular
utilising the strong brand equity and new verticals acquired
with TI Media, and growing these brand audicnces in the US,
The growth of Realhormes.com is one example of our ability
to grow brands in this way. The Real Homes brand. when
acquired from Centaur in August 2017, was a UK-focused
print brand. We launched Realhomes.com a few months later
and since then traffic has continued to grow substantially,
with 34% of online users now in the US and Canada.
Similarly, we acquired Team Rock in February 2017 and
subsequently launched Loudersound.com. which has seen
significant growth glebally and in the US.

In order to grow online brands in the US, we take deliberate
steps to adopt a US-first mindset. These steps include
switching from .co.uk to .com, focusing keyword and critical
terms research on US traffic volumes, encouraging the use
of US English over UK English, changing our social strategy to
focus more on US peak hours, and where appropriate
internationalise content. Internally, we ensure traffic targets
are global, we conduct US relevance checks on new and
acquired websites, and ensure that the US audience team

works closely with UK content teams.

The success of this US-first strategy is evident in the
growth of US online users to Whathifi.com. Having acquired
What Hi-Fi in May 2018, a predominately UK-focused brand,
we focused on growing the website in the US using the steps
detailed above, this has resulted in US online users increasing
by 479% to 2.1min September 2020 compared to 366k in
September 2018.

Our acquisition of Barcroft Studios in November 2019,
presented us with an excellent opportunity to build a new
revenue streamn in social media video preduction, which we
recognise as an important growth area. Barcroft has
significant expertise in effectively monetising video. To fully
utilise this expertise and embed video monetisation into our
diversified business model!, which we call the Future Wheel,
we launched, in September 2020, Future Studios. a
highly-skilled video producticn centre of excellence. which
focuses on producing and distributing valuable original video
content.

On 25 November 2020 we announced that we had made a
recommended offer for GoCo Group ple - a business which
owns Gocompare.com. a leading price comparison site,
LookAfterMyBills.com, an criergy automated switching site
and Myvouchercodes.co.uk, avoucher deals site. This
acquisition, which is subject to shareholder approval, is one
that we believe s a compelling mix of complementarity and
growth opportunity that will create substantial value for both
sets of sharehclders. The full details of the recommend offer
are set outin the Rule 2.7 Announcement.

Through the acquisition, we expect to create aleading
offering for consumers to help them save money more easily
by bringing together cur depth of audience insight and reach
with GoCo Group's expertise in price comparison and
financial services, underpinned by the proprietary
technology of both groups.

For example, with the benefit of the GoCo Group's
technology, readers of Realhomes.com making a decision on
home improvements will also have access to relevant energy
products and switching options within the same content,
minimising friction for the reader and anticipating their
purchasing needs, inthe same way our Hawk technology
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alsa provides details on the best products and prices.

The new verticals that have come from the Tl Media
acquisition provide sighificant eCommerce potential. For
example, the wormen’s lifestyle sector covers a multitude of
markets including beauty, fashion, wellness and homes.
Wellness is a prime market for eCommerce, with fitness
products ranging from at-home gym equipment to
weighing scales. The launch of our new website Fit & Well
makes the most of this opportunity, combining the content
expertise acquired with T Media and Future's eCommerce
technology. Additionally, the Tl Media acquisition has
significantly increased our sperts portfolio, a significantly
large eCommerce market, off the back of which we have
launched website Agvnture. We've seen a significant
increase in affiliate click throughs across all the T1 Media
sites following the rolicut of Hawk. Widget clicks have more
than doubled from Tl Media’s legacy system to our
eCommerce technelogy Hawk, and this should only
improve further as we execute on our eCommerce content
plan.

Diversified verticals enable us to grow our overail
audience faster. since we can reach a wider group of
potential readers. Further progress this year has led to 69%
of revenue now coming from outside of the technology
vertical, up from 63% in FY 2019,

We place equal importance on growing our existing
verticals to entering new ones. This is because, by owning a
number of brands within the same vertical, we are able to
implerment our successful content strategy and ensure we
meet all our audiences needs from Future brands.
Diversification across multiple content verticals and brands
reduces the risk of search engine algerithm updates
affecting overall traffic materially, as those changes tend to
be vertical-specific rather than broad.

In spite of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
global economy, Future has performed strongly; our
diversified revenues help us te compensate for downturns
inany one revenue stream. We had to cancel three
significant in-perscen exhibitions this year and magazine
sales were affected by the closure of high street stores, but
we saw incredible uplift in both eCommerce and digital

ABOVE: We

are focusing

on launching
.com brands, in
particular utilising
the strong brand
equity and new
verticals acquired
with Tl Media,

and growing
these brands
audiences in the
US. The growth of
Realhomes.com

is one example of
our ability to grow
brands in this way.
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advertising during the lockdown pericd, proving the
resilience of our strategy.

At the start of the financial year, we launched Future
Labs. an agile team that acts as an innovation incubator.
Future Labs has built a playbook that industrialises Horizon
3strategic planning, by identifying opportunities that spark
change and then cost-effectively innovate the concept into
aminimum viable product. Projects are then incubated by
Labs until validated, and once a proven revenue stream,
successful projects graduate out of Labs and are integrated
into Future's normal operations. This financial year Labs
hasinnovated a new lead generation technology, Falcon,
which capiures in-market custormer informaticn generated
from our eCommerce sales and monetises it multiple times
athigh cost-per-lead. We have already implemented the
Falcon widget onto 15 of our websites and continue to work
on adding it to the rest of our sites. With B2B as the core
focus for lead generation we have focused onimplementing
Falcon on to B2B websites.

We also ensure that we diversify within our revenue
streams by reducing reliance on any one partner. In terms
of eCommerce partners we have a diversified retailer mix;
inFY 2020 Amazon made up 30% of eCommerce revenue,
compared to 51% in FY 2017. Our partners cover numerous
markets, which aliows us to fully utilise them acrass all our
verticals. Our Hawk technology means we are always able
to provide the best price in the market at any giventime,
and this also includes a stock availability feature. As aresult
during the peak of the global lockdowns we were able to
pivot results to where the products were available,
dermonstrating the power of the diversified retailer base. As
oUr content s data-led we drive high-intent traffic to our
eCommerce pages. Our eCommerce strategy is built on
optimising all areas of the purchase funnel. By working to
improve all metrics, rather than focusing on one, we are
creating a multiplayer effect, driving significant revenue
growth,

At Future, we work closely with Google and other
strategic partners to constantly optimise and evolve our
Advertising Technology infrastructure. We have partnered
with a number of leading global 'identity' organisations that
allow us to maintain our ability to serve personalised
advertising whilst protecting user privacy. Future operates
across a number of highly verticalised areas generating
significant amounts of rich first party data of engaged and
intent-based audience segments. This first party data,
which is completely unaffected by changes to third party
cookies, is already used in the delivery of advertising
campaigns, This detailed understanding of our audiences
enables superior targeting capabilities which allows for
advertisers to reach special interest audiences and their
purchase intents.

Future is well positioned to capitalise as buying strategies
evolve; buyers will look for the trusted first party rich
audiences that our portiolio delivers. The advertising
technology solutions we have implemented and continue to
develop ensures we can transact in a multitude of ways to
deliver known and first party audiences at scale.

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 [ 17
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3. Operating leverage

A number of core elements underpin our operating
leverage, from our internal systems and processes to the
diversification of cur revenue streams. We continue to
focus on driving our Media revenues, which are higher
margin and subsequently improves our operating
leverage. An important part of our strategy for Tl Media
brands is to grow their online presence.

At Future we ensure that we have standard core
processes and systems under a simplified business
structure, to ensure there is no duplication of costs.

I hese are our centres of excellence which range from
back-office functions o editorial practices. We have
created a number of Playbooks to ensure equal
standards of excellence within alt areas of the business.
Our Playbooks are embedded into our People & Culture
site alongside key information such as people policies
and procedures our colleagues and managers needte
help them manage their people and career. Additionally.
we are working on rolling out Future University modules
focused on embedding the Playbooks into the way we
work.

In September 2020 we launched Future Studios, a new
video centre of excellence, which unites expertise fro_m
Future and Barcroft Studios which we acguired in
November last year. Future Studios focuses on producing
and distributing valuable original wideo content for
internal clients across the Future family. We are investing
increasingly in original video production, distribution and
monetisation as 5G adoption will see average mobile
speeds exceed those experienced at home and this will
lead to an acceleration in video consumption.

Our philosophy around systemising, having structures
and repeatable processes means we are notreliant on
being in an office and we are abie to pivot quickly. We
believe that habit is the key driver of activity within any
organisation and so the rhythms and rituals are critical to
driving behaviour. We completed the acquisition of T
Mediain April 2020, more than doubling the number of
staff inthe UK. It is a testament to these centres of
excellence that we have been able to onboard these staff
and progress swiftly with the integration despite all staff
working from home and, largely, continuing to do so. In
order to onboard our Tl Media cotleagues remotely we
created the Future University, an online training portal to
share best practices, and held over 1,000 one-to-one
virtual meet and greets within just two weeks. Despite the
acquisition commleting during the Government-enforced
lockdown relating to COVID-19, we are exactly on track in
terms of integration.

Due to the pandemic, we had te cancel a number of
in-person events. However, the flexbility of our business
operations and the ingenuity and dedication of our staff

Image removed

meant we quickly adapted to hold a total of 32 virtual
events and webinars between March and September this
year, including serving the games market with the Future
Gaming Show, since the largest games show of the year,
E3. could not go ahead. The PC Gaming Show was alsoa
huge success, with an 18% year-on-year increase in
advertising revenue. Our events team also reconfigured
the Decanter World Wine Awards tasting event (usually
held over five days at ExCel) to run in the office within all
appropriate guidelnes across three weeks in August {o
deliver £3m entry revenue, Some of our biggest events,
The Photography Show and New York TV Week, both
held virtually in September 2020, and three
Homebuilding & Renovating Shows. held virtually in July
and September 2020, achieved over 32,300 attendees. it
is a testament to the value of our content and our
passichate communities that we continue to engage with
them whichever the platform,

We are a global-first company with a structure that
means we can insource to the lowest cost locations. At
Future, as aresult of the global operating model. we are
not pinned to local offices but are based around
information sharing, virtual meetings and collaborative
documents. Our tools, which were designed to be global
by their very nature, are digital and therefore can operate
virtually. As a global-first company, we value continual
communication. particularly during the lockdown. and as
such in addition to 2 number of other formats we hold
monthly virtual "town hall” meetings with the Executive
Leadership Team for the entire company, utilising chat
technology for staff to ask questions directly,

ABOVE: Some

of our biggest
events, The
Photography
Show, New York
Week and three
Homebuilding

& Renovating
Shows, were held
virtually this year.
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Future i$ a value-based, purpose-led company and as
such, we aim to achieve cultural alignment between all
our staff, Qur culture is more democratic than
hierarchical and this empowers our staff to make
decisions, streamlining the process and ensuring that
great ideas come to the fore and we continue to innovate.

One of the core enablers of cur operating leverage is
our approach to content creation. We write content once
and then publish multiple times. Revenue content
compounds over time; content paid for in prior years

Total Digital Revenue
- Stacked by Article Creation Financial Year (Excluding Mobile Nations)
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Chartincludes digital advertising and eCommerce revenue and excludes Mobile Nations because data s not available.

continues to deliver revenue in FY 2020. While by
focusing on content that has the potential to drive the
maost revenue we attract intent traffic to our websites
which feeds our eCommerce revenue stream. Much of
this content is "evergreen” in nature, which means that
articles we paid for and published years ago are still
driving revenue for us today.

Our flexible and scalable tech stack supports organic
growth and acquisitions. 38 sites are now on our Vanilia
web platform, two of which are Ti Media sites (with an
additional T| Media site migrated since the end of the
financial year), while six new launches in the last six
months have been in relation to the brands develeped as
a result of TI Media acquisition - My Imperfect Life,
Gardening Etc. Fit & Well, What to Watch, Advnture and
PetsRadar. We have a one platform approach with all
staff operating on common systems and swift transition
following integration. Implementing our tech stack onto
newly acquired websites enables Future to gain scale.

The successful implementation of our technology
stack and centres of excellence to our acquisitiens of
Mobile Nations, SmartBrief, cycling brands and Barcroft
Studios, has resulted in revenue growth of 12%
year-cn-year, on a full year FY 2019 proforma basis,
despite the challenges of the pandemic. Barcroft
receives a commission cn advertising-based video on
demand revenue for their videos on social channels,
which has increased by 45% year-on-year, and
additionally, advertising-based videc on demand
revenue we sell directly for the Group has increased by
156% year-on-year.
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How we execute our strategy

THE FUTURE PLAYBOOK

We have created the Future Playbook, which is a guide for our staff on the "rules of the game" at work. We share
the Playbook with every new member of staff to ensure we are aligned on our strategy and how we execute it.
As a value-led business the Playbook plays a pivotal role in ensuring we have an aligned culture by including our
six values on how we behave. Providing staff with a clear guide to our values and our strategy ensures we are
focusing on the same goals. We move faster when we all pull in the same direction.

Wae are
part of the

audience and

their community

Our passicn for our products makes us
part of the community we engage with.
Qur audiences give us a voice and that's
an incredible privilege that we treat
with reverence. We embrace allthe
ways we are able to communicate
to ocur audiences - print, onling
and in person - and love
doing so.

We are
proud of our
past and excited
about our future

We are proud to work at Future,
because being part of this team
feels good. We are one team,
one company with big
ambitions.

We all
row the boat

No matter how long you've worked
here, or what your role is at Future, your
centribution counts —so grab an car! We
move faster when everyone pulls in the
same direction. So what you do - and
how you do it — matters, We take
responsibility because that'sthe
best way to get things done. We
collaborate because we're
stronger together.

Let's
do this

We take the best decisions we can
in the face of uncertainty. [t makes
us think each decision through - then
we go for it. We commit to what we've
agreed and have the confidence te
persevere through tough times, But
we're able to admit mistakes
because that helps us learn and
chart a new course when we
need to. That's called
‘doing it right”.

It's the
people in the
boat that matter

Having the right team in the boat is
mission critical. We are all successful
when we are self-maotivated,
self-aware and self-disciplined. we
support each other, challenge each
other and have fun with each other.
‘We are determined to hire people
we can learn from and whe
wye vwauld have as our
boss.

Results
matter -
success feels good

We love being successful. we
restiessly look to improve, be ever
creative, and commercial in our
ventures. Great results mean we are
able to align the needs and
expectations of cur audiences,
communities, clients and
shareholders.
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Future's Business Model

The Future Strategy Wheel

We have a clear purpose: te change pecple’s lives through sharing
knowledge and expertise with others, making it easy and fun for them
o do what they want.

Qur strategy is ahgned with fulfilling this purpose by building our
glokal communities and increasing the ways in which we serve them
our content, in ling with their needs. One of our key differentiators is
that we are part of our communities, meaning we enjoy sharing our
knowledge and expertise with our audience.

To ensure that our business model is truly diversified our strategy
of diversification is focused on three distinct elements;

1. globally;

2. divisionally; and

3. vertically.

It is the combination of these three elements that drives the
success of our diversification strategy, as we are able to capitalise on
all opportunities and win across ail areas. Alongside this is our
diversified business model, which we continue to build on in order to
meet our audience’s needs in whichever way required. This is the
Future Wheel.

CONTENT
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Monetising the wheel

We continue to build on our Future Wheel, this year adding video and
lead generation revenue streams. We have also made significant
pragress in monetising our brands and their content, organic and
acquired, through the different revenue streams. The Future Wheel
serves our audiences through online, events, print and video, ensuring
that we provide our content in the most useful way possible.

Qur robust and scalable tech stack means that it is simple for us to
grow brands by adding new revenule streams. We have already
introduced our eCommerce technology Hawk and our ad technology
Hybrid to the acquired Tl Media websites. We also focus on making our
content as monetisable as possible by focusing on reusable content,
such as from magazine to online content and content that can be easily
translated to other geographic territories. This means we maximise
our editorial teams' efficiency as well as increasing the evergreen
nature of our content for which revenue compounds over time.

We acquired Real Homes in July 2017. The brand was UK-focused
with little digital reach. We transformed the brand by building out its
revenue streams into eCommerce, a video series, and re-launched the
website on our Vanilla platforrm with our ad tech stack implemented.
Additionally we significantly broadened its online reach outside the
UK; US online users to the website have grown from 7.1k online users
when it was re-launched in November 2017 to 456k online users in
September 2020.
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LENS ONE - GLOBALLY

Future's Markets

Our business model is global-first in that our content, processes and
systems are not fixed to where we operate geographically. We run
this global approach frem our operations across two geographies.

us

we have substantial reach in the US and Canada,
reaching a total of 136 2m online users (excluding
forums). US operations consist of editorial, video
e tinn, achierfising sales and events Arrmss
websites, video, newsletters and magazines. The
largest part of our B2B content and operations are
based in the US, including SmartBrief which 15 based
in Washington DL, The US accounts for 49% of
Group revenue, and 57% of Group organic revenue,
driven by cur US-first brand strategy.

FY 2020 FY 20193
Revenue £m* 1687.7 na.g
Online users m*® 1362 21.0
No. of events 30 1]
Circulation m Q.4 0.6
Subscribers m 0.4 0.5

SRevenue exeludes intra-group revenues

“0Online users exclude forums. FY 2020 US & Can online users
to forums: 7.4m, =34% yaar-on-year. FY 2019 onilne users
restated due to re-clagsification of SmartBrief online newsletter
subscribers to email newsletters

UK

The UK operations include our Australia business,
which acts as a complete satellite branch. The UK
operations monetise all of our online audience
autside of tha Us andd Canada. The UK is where the
majority of our consumer print magazines are
produced, as well as joint centres of excellence for
back office, including finance, HR and technalogy,
with facilities in Bath and Grenoble, France The UK
also houses the Group's licensing operation which
facifitates content distribution for both online and
print publications inte 37 countries. In Australia we
have brands including Get Price, APC and PC
PowerPlay which all serve the local market.

43% of Group organic revenue came from the UK
operations in 2020, which is a result of us focusing on
expanding our US audience. Total revenue in the UK
made up 51% of Group revenue, which is a reflection of
the UK-based Tl Media acquisiticn.

FY 2020 FY 2013
Revenue £m* 7.9 102.7
Online users m? 585 303
No. of events 20 25
Circulation m 34 0.9
Subscribers m 1 0.4

Gnline users exclude ferums and include online users from
UK 46.5m and AU & NZ12.0m. Rest of World online users B72.1m
are not included

image removed -
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United States United Kingdom
Number Number
of staff: of staff:
398 1,600
Offices: Offices:
New York and London, Bath,
Washington DC Farnborough

OFFICE LOCATIONS

France Australia
Number Number
of staff: of staff:
15 24
Office: Office:
Grenckle Sydney

L -
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BNumber of staft as at September 2020
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LENS TWO - DIVISIONALLY

Media Division
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I Our Media division consists of all revenue streams outside of magazines. MEDIA KPIs
This includes eCormmerce, digital advertising, events. lead generation,

newsletters and CRM, and digital licensing. Our digital advertising revenucs arc ‘@

generated from first party sold, programmatic and content solutions. eCommerce [1==]

revenues are where we receive a commission on sales made by our refail partners.

Lead generation revenues are generated from us matching cur customers with i‘:ll.l::users :::’:n::':

the right product suppliers, for which they pay per lead. Events and integrated {excluding bath live
forums) and virtual

marketing revenue is generated from sponsorship and ticket sales to our

181.0m in FY 2019*  151kin FY 2019
consumer and B2B events, as well as events we hold for our advertising partners
as part of creative solutions. Our CRM revenue streams are primarily generated ] f 1
from SmartBrief which produces, and monetises through advertising and email -
newsletters for our B2B partners. 1Z.6m 38 digital
Our Media division drives significant growth within our business as we focus on eCommerce licansing
. , L .. N transactions partners
delivering cur content digitally. This is underpinned by our scalable tech stack 9.8m in FY 2019 14 in FY 2079
which allows us to accelerate online growth through eCommerce tech Hawk. ad -
tech Hybrid, lead generation tech Falcon, email newsletter tech, as well as our [ﬁ
common web platform Vanilla. Additionally, the acquisition of Barcroft Studios in ’A
November 2019 added an important new element to cur Media division - that of 98.7m social 9.4m email
media followers newsletter

video production and monetisation.

52.0min FY 2019

subscribers

Medlia revenues are now generated from 111 websites and 66 events (50 of 70min FY 2012

which were held this year) in the UK, US and Australia.

32020 online users to forums: 171m, -32% year-on-year. FY 2019 online users restated due to
re-classification of SmartBrief online newsletter subscribers to email newsletters
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The Magazine division is the horne of our extensive range of specialist MAGAZINE KPiIs
magazines and bookazines both in print and digital format. Our
magazines are exported to many countries in addition to being sold in the UK
on the newsstand and through subscription, We have a portfolio of 115
magazines, which has increased this year due to the acquisition of Tt Mediain
April 2020. We have an extensive range of bookazines. and published 410 ::cmm:::;:,m subscribers
througheout FY 2020. Our total global circulation of magazines and 15min Fy 2019 0.9m in Fy 2019
bookazines is 3.8m, up from 1.5min FY 2019. Subscriptions make up 39% of
total circulation® and we continue to focus on building engagement with our
readers ta increase subscription sales.
We also have a strong print licensing revenue stream, where we generate
revenue from our specialised content. We have a total of 96 regular frequency

115 magazines 410 hookazines
print icensing agreements across 28 countries. published published

: ) ) e 78 in FY 2019 568 in FY 2019
Future Fusion. our in-house creative services agency. also sits within the

Magazine division and creates content and strategy for ambitious brands that
want to power up their own channels with effective content.

Tatal of each magazine and bookazing circulation perissue
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LENS THREE - VERTICALLY
Loyal Communitics
— Our Verticals

By creating content that meets the needs of our audiences and helping them do
the things they love, we create strong specialist communities. At Future, we
believe that loyal communities are a differentiator in media; where we create
content that meets a need and as a result has a value for our partners.

Our brands span three core verticals: Passions, Living, and B2B,

-

Reaching large
audiences across
diversified
verticals

audience
reach’

16m

HOMES &
GARDENS

"sum of verticals does not equal total due to rounding
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Future Passions

Our Passions core vertical is focused on consumer hobbies and interests. The word
passions reflects the high engagement of the audience in this core vertical. They are
passionate about their interests and as part of our communities we are too.

Tech Specialist

Qur tech specialist portfolio includes
Future legacy brands like TechRadar, and
acquisitions such as What Hi-Fi, Tom's
Hardware, Windows Central, Android Central
and iMore. Each brand focuses on a distinct
niche within consumer technology and
includes magazines, websites and events,
reaching a total audience of 107.6m. Online
audience figures are 98.9m (excluding
forums), up 27% year-on-year. Qur expert,
specialist content connects with users
across the consurner spectrum, providing
accessible, informative technology news.
reviews, how-tos and buying guides.

Gaming & Entertainment

Our gaming & entertainment portfolio has
been the voice of authority and source of
influence for gamers across digital, events
and print for over 30 years. Our content
engages with a wide audience from hardcore
gamers to casual and social gamers. Qur
brands have a total audience reach of 62.3m
and an online audience of 44 .6m (excluding
forums), up 67% year-on-year. Brands include
GamesRadar, Future Games Summit and PC
Gamer, the number one PC gaming website in
the UK, US and Australia.

Photography & Design

Our photography portfolic is market leading -
with our flagship photography website Digital
Camera World holding number one position
inthe UK and number three in the US. Our

photography brands provide photography
professionals, amateurs and enthusiasts
aclvice on how to improve their images, find
the best gear and get inspiraticn.

Our extensive design portfolio provides
insight and inspiration to professional
designers and ilustrators, sharing peer-to-
peer advice to help them be more successful.
We are market-leading both in print and online
inthe UK and cnline in the US.

We have sean strong growth inonline
audience to our photography and design
portfolio, up 27% year-on-year (excluding
forurms). with Digital Camera World in
particular showing significant growth of 34%
(excluding the forum).

Music

We are the UK's most extensive music
portfolio, with websites, magazines and
events covering all genres, from rock to
acoustic, drumming te electronic music.
MusicRadar provides trusted gear reviews.
alongside current gear news and expert
tuition. Our music audience is highly engaged
with 11.4m social media followers, and a total
online audience of 9.5m, up 32% year-on-year.

Knowledge & Wellness

Willreaper Ledilurial leannis aviuss hislu y,
science and technology. our knowledge
portfolio provides engaging and authoritative
content for all ages. During the COVID-19
pandemic our science brand Live Science
has been invaluable in providing accurate

BREAKOUT CASE STUDY a
A Advnture

Launched in July 2020 Advnture.com is the home of cutdoor buying advice,
providing expert guidance and inspiration for everyone taking part in outdoor
sports and activities. Advnture capitalises on the eCommerce opportunity
around outdeor gear and fully utilising content frorm our sports magazines.

and timely information. Live Science holds a
number one position in the UK and US. This
vertical is also the home of our new wellness
website Fit & Well, helping people live a better,
healthier, happier and longer life. We have
significant total audience reach of 56.2m with
online users up 53% year-on-year (excluding
forums).

Sports

Our sporting brands combine expert
editorial with decades of heritage. We are
atrusted destination for a wide range of
sporis enthusiasts, whatever their skill level,
from football to rugby, cycling to yachting.
Our acquisition of TI Media significantly
boosted our sports pertfelio and we took

the opportunity to combine editorial and
commercial expertise to launch a new sports
website Advnture in July 2020. Our sports
brands have a totaf audience reach of 17m and
our road cycling partfolio is market-leading in
the UK. Online audience is up 217% year-on-
year to 10.7m (excluding forums).

Homes & Gardens

Creating beautiful content for the home lover,
our home interest brands cover everything
from the vintage and classic to modern
nileriues dand hune-building projecis. Withan
audience reach of 16.4m, across magazines,
online and events we are the market leacler
inhome interest in the UK. Cnline audience

is up 417% year-on-year to 6.8m (excluding
forums).

Image removed
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Brands include:

REAL .  C¥hera GUITAR
ROTK musicradax LOUDER

YACHTING gamesradar+ [l \V]S;]

techradar [TTIIER  ondroidcentrol

SPACE}  Fit&well  [Iceeanvenun

Vertical audience stats:

Strategic Report

3R 13

Total Total online Total events:  Total sccial
circulation:? users: 19 (down from medha
1.3m 225.7m 26 in FY 2019}, followers:
[up from {up from 859k attendees 64.1m
Lmomn 1E36man [down from 144k

FY 2019) Fv 2019)%% in FY 2019)

Market-leading positions:

Number 1 publisher in technolagy onlineg in the UK ll \\
Number 1in heme Iinterest in print and in homebuilding events inthe UK
Nurmnber 1 space website in the US and UK

Number 1 music-raking print publisher in the UK and US

Number 1 photo website and event in the UK

Numnber 1in creative design onling and in print in the UK and online in the US
Number 1 road cycling website in the UK

Number 1 hi-fi pint publisher inthe UK

Number 1 equestrian print publisher in the UK

Number boating and yachting print publisher in the UK

Number 1games print publisher in the UK

Total of each magazine and boskazine circulation per 155us.
PExcludes forums. 2020 Future Passions online users to forums:
13.6m. -30% year-gn-year

Image removed
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Future Living

Our Future Living core vertical provides a focus on all things lifestyle and the way
we live. Home to many iconic brands Living has a digital-first, global headset.

Women's Lifestyle

Qurwomen’'s lifestyle vertical
inspires and entertains women in an
approachable and lively manner by focusing
on the things that matter to them. This new
vertical, cotablished with the asquisition of
Tl Media. includes iconic brands such as
Woman & Home and Marie Claire UK, the
portfelio has an audience reach of 21.3m
globally, including 12.1m online. up 45%
year-on-year on a proforma basis. Launched
in September 2020, website My Imperfect
Life is an informative and relatable site
helping young millennial wormen navigate
the realities and demands of their lives
today.

TV & Film

With a global audience reach of 4.9m,

our TV & film portfolio consists of iconic
brands such as Total Film and SFX as well

as heritage brands such as TV Times. The
portfolio covers TV listings, TV and film news
and reviews and exciting entertainment
features. Our new launch of website

What to Watchin July 2020 and our
acquisition of website CinemaBlend in
Qctober 2020, furthers our digital presence
and ensures that this vertical remains at the
forefront of TV and film content.

Country Lifestyle

Our heritage country lifestyle print brands
have a combined age of more than 400
years. We are the UK's leading country
lifestyle portfolic with an audience reach

of 2.1m, with online audience of 1.4m, up
32% year-on-year on a proforma basis. Our
diverse range of brands cover all countryside
pursuits and interests from celebrating the
mest beautiful countryside, finest houses
and gardens, to caravanning, and shooting.

Tech Lifestyle

Tech lifestyle is our newly created vertical,
opening up new opportunities to diversify
our brands and reach larger audiences.
The portfolio includes Decanter, the UK's
leading wine media brand, providing
authoritative content, independent advice

Image removed

s BREAKOUT CASE STUDY

whattowatch

Website What to Watch was launched in
July 2020. The site harnesses the content,
expertise and broad audience reach
of Future's TV entertainment brands,
helping users to binge smarter and guides
consumers through today's confusing video
programming choices, advising them on the
services and gear they need.

and inspirational events and competitions,
design and lifestyle magazine Wallpaper,
and tech lifestyle brands T3 and Tom's
Guide for tech innovation lovers as well

as travel, fitness and style. The portfolic
also oncompasses new taunch PotsRadar,
adigital pets brand with a mission to help
the world's pets lead happier. healthier and
ionger lives. The portfolio has an audience
reach of 42.1m across print, online and
events. Online users are up 63% year-on-
year to 38.1m (excluding forums).

Real Life

Qur real life vertical's mission is to ingpire the
world through our amazing real life stories.
These brands position us at the forefront

of popular culture and allow us toreach
large and growing audiences through our
focused social and digital strategies. The
acquisition of Barcroft Studios in November
2019 introduced video and social strategy
which s the [Inchpin of the real life vertical.
The portfolio reaches 19.8m social media
followers.
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Brands include:

marie dajre (FreeRrecTirE]  WoManshome

CINEMABLEND (3 F“—H whattowatch

*acquisition post
period end

TV Tmes COUNTRY LIFE THE FIELD

image removed

SHOOTING TIMES

ACHITEY ARG

E tom's guide

Decanter

Vertical audience stats:

33
Q00
(aTa¥alal

Total
circulation: 2.2m
{up From 106k

in Fy 2019}

fetsREDAR  Wallpaper*

R 3

Total social media
followers: 33.8m

Total online
users: 53.9m
{up from 25 2m
n FY 2019)'%

Market-leading positions: 3

R R R

Number 1
wine magazine
inthe UK

Number
shooting print
publisher
n the UK

Number?l
Countryside &
county print
publisher in
the UK

MTotal of each magazine and bookazine circulation per issue.
15Excludes forums, 2020 Future Living online users tc forums:
3.5m,-40% year-an-year.

image removed
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Lens three - vertically

Brands include:

SmartBrief AMEEXTIES7 TECHSLEARNING

Installation

TViechnology AVNetwork TWRBEUROPE

Vertical audience stats:

Future B2B wRE & o

- Total Total email Tota! Total Total
circulation™ newsletter enline events: attendees
L . . . 244k subscribers: users:216m 31 14.6k
Our B2B portfolio includes many leading B2B publications, {down from  6.6m {up from {up from {up rrom
websites and events, With a total audience reach of 8.6m, our B2B 3k in tp from 215m in soevents 72k
. . X ‘ Fy z2019) e0min FY 2019) n FY 2019} Fy 2019}
brands connect audiences with expert content intelligently, effectively FY 2019)

and efficiently. The portfolio covers a diverse range of sectors including
education, telecommunications, AV, media and entertainment, and

Market-leading positions: 1

technology. Q

Qur B2B vertical takes full acdvantage of our diversified business model,
with revenue streams from newsletters, online advertising, print and :\‘,"t';'zﬁ'gnm
events. The acquisition of SmartBrief in July 2019 gave Future access to publisher inthe US

new B2B sectors as well as expertise in newsletter monetisiation. This
expertise combined with Future's centres of excellence in marketing and
advertising has resulted in a scalable and robust B2B business modet.

“Total of each rmsgazine and bookazine circulation per 1ssue,

BREAKOUT CASE STUDY

TECHKXLEARNING

Response to COVID-19 pandemic: our B2B vertical showed its strength and
flexibility during the pandemic. The B2B events team quickly adapted to the
closure of live events to host a total of 24 virtual B2B events, with total attendees
of 12.3k. Additionally, the B2B editorial teams were quick to adapt content to
provide audiences with the most relevant and needed content, particularly in
the education portfolio which offered advice on at home teaching.
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SOURCES &
DEFINITIONS

Organic

Organic growth defined as the portfolic
at constant FX rates (i) excluding
acquisitions and dispesals made
during FY 2019 and FY 2020 and (ii}
including the impact of closures and
new launches.

Online audience

Online audience is online users taken
from Gocgle Analytics. Unless
otherwise stated, online users are the
monthly average for the year.

Online internet users reach
Online reach of internet users is taken
from comScere Media Metrix; UK

is as at July 2020, desktop age 6+

arnd mobile age 18+ and US is as at
September 2020, deskiop age 2+ and
mobile age 18+.

Total audience reach
Audience reach consists of: the sum
of each magazine and bookazine
circulation per issue + monthly online
users {excluding forums) + event
attendees + newsletter subscribers

+ online subscribers + social media
followers (Twitter followers, Facebook
fans, YouTube subscribers and
Instagram followers).

Market positions

« Online market positions are based
on comScore online unique visitors
in relevant comScore categories and
competitive sets - July 2020 (UK).
September 2020 (US), desktop age 2+
and mobile age 18+.

» Print market positions are based on
newstrade copy sales {Oct 2019 -
September 2020) and ABC circulation
within ABC defined market sectors for
the period January-June 2020.

= Advertising market positions are
based on competitor ad spend from
MediaRadar (July 2019-June 2020).
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Chief f

Executive’s *

Review

Zillah Byng-Thorne
Chief Executive

he Group achieved exceptional results in

FY 2020. Despite the challenging market

resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic,

Future has thrived by taking advantage of the
changing market landscape to deliver content to our
communities in different ways. The success has been
driven by Future’s value-led culture, which is aligned
throughout the business, resulting in agile and innovative
staff who have adapted and thrived under challenging
circumstances.

Group revenue has grown by 53% year-cn-year to
£339.6m (FY 2019; £221.5m), driven by a combination of
organic growth and acquisitions, underpinned by
continued cnline audience growth (+56%) to 281.8mY
(48% organic growth). Group organic revenue grew by 6%
(H1:11%: HZ2: 1%} as our diversified strategy rmore than
offset any impact of COVID-19. Organic Media growth was
strong at 23%,. driven by eCommerce growth of 58% and
digital advertising growth of 15% offsetting the impact of
event cancellations, which declined organically by 43%.
Qur Magazines division {21% of Group organic revenue)
was more impacted with organic revenue decline of 29%
(HL -12%; H2: -45%). Adjusted operating profit is up 79%
year-cn-year to £93.4m, with adjusted diluted EPS up 57%

to 74.7p (FY 2019: 47.5p).

The Group continues to increase the Media division
share of total revenues, and eCommerce and digital
advertising have had a phenormenal year in terms of
revenue, up organically 58% and 15% year-on-year
respectively. These revenue streams have benefited from
the significant increase in our audience scale during the
lockdown period, which accelerated the growth in people
consuming content and shopping online, While we
benefited from the impact of the growth during lockdown,
what was particularly pleasing to see was exit audience
growthrates of 29% in September 2020, outlining the
core underlying strength of the business cutside of
lockdown. Media accounts for 70% of total revenue, and
proforma with full year Tl Medlia financials it accounts for
58% of revenue. We are committed to driving Media
revenue of T Media brands to further increase the share of
revenue from the Media division. Organic growth in the
Media divisien was partly offset by declines in Magazines
organic revenue of 29%, reflecting the impact of store
closures duritig COVID-19.

Adjusted operating profit margin increased to 28% (FY
2019: 24%;), driven by the increase in higher-margin Media
revenues, This growth is a reflection of our continued

“Our exceptional results demonstrate the continued
strength of our strategy, as well as the innovation,
fortitude and agility of our business, focused on
its purpose, delivered by its people. Despite
continued market uncertainty, we remain
well-positioned to continue our strong growth.”

34 [ FUTURE PLC
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focus on improving operating leverage. Cur efficient
operating model supported by a rebust and scalable
technology stack, as well as centres of excellence, provide
acost advantage, enabling us to invest more in new
innovation.

Future is a highly cash-generative business with strong
adjusted free cash flow of 103% of adjusted operating
profit (FY 2019: 103%). demonstrating the Group’s
continued focus on efficient working capital management
and operating leverage.

Our strategy and performance review
Our strategy remains clear and simple. to build a specialist
global media platform that drives intent. enabled by
technology and insight with scalable, diversified brands.
Our strategy continues to deliver despite macro
uncertainty, and we have been able to keep investing in our
ohgoing growth whilst ensuring that we rmanage costs
effectively during the challenging macro environment. The
recommended offer for GoCo Group is in line with this
strategy and will create a leading specialist media
platform, providing consumers with insights, informing
them and enabling them te save money onther key
purchasing decisions.

Content is at the heart of what we do and this works
hand in hand with our technology and business model to
meet our audiences’ changing needs. Over the last
financial year we have invested over £50m in content
creation, with editorial headcount now accounting for
around 46% of total workforce. As a result of our focus to
grow T Media brands in the US and digitally. coupled with
our ongoing investment in new content areas, we
announced in October 2020 that we would be investing in
over 150 new positions in Editorial, Video and Engineering
this year.

Online we reach one in three people in the US and UK,
generating a total of 281.8m online users!®, We hold 23
market-leading positions across 11 of our verticals and
across online, print and events. We have seen phenomenal

ABOVE: The
addition of
CinemaBlend
boosts our
presence in
the TV & Film
and Games &
Entertainment
verticals,
particularly in
the US.

audience growth this year, bolstered by the increase in
online activity during the pandemic lockdown period. Tetal
online users grew 56% year-on-year, with organic growth
of 48%. Additionally, 25 websites grew cver 50% on a
proforma basis for acquisitions made in FY 2019 and

FY 2020. We were able to adapt our content to suit the
needs of our audience, by producing COVIE-19related
content such as Live Science's informative articles on the
pandemic, to buying guides for at-home office equipment
and at-home education advice through our Tech &
Learning brand.

As part of the development of cur audience strategy we
launched eight new websites this financial year, six in the
last three months of the financial year. The strength of our
operating leverage means we were able to continue the
fast pace of our development pipeline. despite the impact
of COVID-12. Many of these new launches are in new
verticals, introduced by the T1 Media acquisition. For
example. new website launches Advnture, Fit & Well,
Gardening Etc, PetsRadar, What to Watch and My
Imperfect Life utilise the content expertise of the TI Media
team in these verticals, while our scalable advertising and
eCommerce technology stack enables a strong path to
revenue growth.

We are significantly progressed with our strategy to
migrate the Tl Media “.com” brands to our proprietary
Vanilla website platformwhich allows a standardised
approach to online content creation, ensuring itcan be
reused, published in different languages and analysed
effectively. Woman & Home, Livingetc and Homes &
Gardens websites were all migrated during the Autumn. In
addition, as outlined above. our strategy to launch new
" com” websites in pre-existing Tl Media audience verticals
is well progressed. We are excited about the online
revenue potential of these new launches.

Through our Future Labs team, established earlier this
financial year, we have developed a new lead generation
technology, Falcon. as we seek to continue the
diversification of our revenue streams and the expansion

®Online users for forums are 171 millon. -32% year-an-year.
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of our technology stack. We have significant global
audience reach of 393.6m across all our channels and
Falcon will provide the opportunity to add a further
incrementat revenue strcam to our modcl.

Execution underpinned by values

We nride ourselves on being a values-fed business that is
underpinned by its purpose of helping people threugh
sharing our knowledge and expertise. We are committed
to embedding our values throughout the business, as we
believe that businesses with strong cultures are the most
successful, particularly in times of market uncertainty. it is
atestament to the success of this appreach and our
employees that we have delivered strong results this year:
their passion and ability to adapt and innovate during the
initial lockdown has meant that rather *han simply survive
during these unprecedented times, we have thrived, white
also ensuring that we have continued to suppert our wider
stakeholder base.

Our values encompass the way we operate as a
business externally as well as internally, from our
commitment to sustainability to the inclusion and diversity
of our workforce. We strive to create an inclusive culture
that embraces the breadth of experience that a truly
diverse workforce can offer. We have launched our "lam
Future” Inclusion and Diversity initiative and the Future
Foundation which aims to help increase social mability and
support our most vulnerable. This included making
financial donations towards the provision of free schoal
meals in the UK. In response to Black Lives Matter, we
have committed to ten pledges to ensure we are egually
representing black people - covering advertising, editorial
content & photography. to training and awareness and
diversity targets, including ensuring our editorial
represents our communities.

COVID-12 update

Qur rmain focus is to protect our staff, clients and
stakeholders and as such we have taken a three-pronged
approach to navigate the challenges brought by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

The health and safety of our staff is our utmost priority
and so from the middle of March, we moved to globally
working from home ahead of local government enforced
lockdowns. Due to our global-first operating model, the
business was already set up for remote working and
therefore the change has been almost seamless. Qur
colleagues have been outstanding and have adapted
quickly to the new environment. We place great
importance on good communication, and so to adapt to
the reduction in contact time, we have increased
communication frequency including weekly Chief
Executive letters, weekly leadership team calls, consisting
of around 100 colleagues. and virtual town halls, as well as
increasing mental health support including weekly virtual
yoga and mental health first aiders. During this time we
also set up a COVID-19 Hardship Fund for colleagues who.

fmage removed

ABOVE: Three
events which
would normally
be held in March
were cancelled,
and were instead
held virtually with
great success. A
total of 32 virtual
events were held
this year, which
demonstrates the
flexibility of not
just our operating
model, but also
our staff.

as aresult of issues beyond their employment at Future,
may have suffered hardship.

It has been impertant for us te support cur
communities during the pandemic. In the UK we allowed
all staff to take one day of leave per week to volunteer for
the NHS sheould they wish to. We considered it equally
important for us to support our partners during these
times, as a conseqguence we launched a number of
initiatives including evolving the magazine distribution
model to make it easier for warehouse and shop staffto
handle our magazines safely, cancelling cvents swiftly to
minimise costs for partners, and processing customer
requested refunds promptly.

At the start of the lockdown we did not know what lay
ahead and as aresult, the business pivoted quickly to
ensure it exercised financial restraint while assessing the
wider impact of the pandemic on the business. The Board
and senior leaders, plus staff volunteers took up to 20%
pay cuts (see Director's Remuneration Repor L lor rmore
details). Additionally, as a precaution, Future {and Tl Media
pre-transfer) accessed £0.5m of UK Government support
from the Coronavirus Job Retenticn Scheme. This
ensured that if the outcomes were more severe, we would
protect jobs at a time of great uncertainty.

It quickly became apparent that the impact cf the
pandemic would be less material to the Group than first
anticipated. As a consequence, all empioyees (with the
exception of the Board who took a pay reduction during
March-May) were repaid their salary reductions, and full
pay was restored. Similarly, all government supportin the
UK and US was repaid in full,

Qverall the Group has performed very strongly during
the COVID-19 pandemic period. The two areas most
impacted by the pandemic were magazine sales and
events, reflecting the closure of high-street stores and
restrictions on holding in-person events. As a result, we
cancelled 27 in-person events, which in FY 2019 delivered
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£8.9m cf revenue. For three of our larger events brands
(The Photography Show, The National Homebuilding &
Renovating Franchise and New York City TV Week) we
pivoted to host these virtually with great success. The
Photography and Video Show was held at the end of
September with 16,890 attendees enjoying 175 seminars
and 130 exhibitors. A total of 32 virtual events were held
this year, contributing £1.4m of revenue, which
demcnstrates the flexibility of not just our operating
model, but alsc our colleagues. We estimate the impact of
retail closures resulied in approximately £20m of lost
magazine sales.

Despite the impact on retail, the lockdown period
presented us with a valuable opportunity to trial new titles
and launch into print media sectors that reflected the
sudden shiftin readers' interests. Market data highlighted
a surge in popularity of topics such as well-being &
mindfulness, hobbies, puzzles and pastimes, and we were
able torespond with a number of new bookazines that
have proven to be popular with readers. The ability to
respond 1o our readers’ needs has been further reflected
in our bookazine sales channel, and as retail cutlets
globally have recpened these sales have recovered more
quickly than magazines.,

Acquisitions

A core partof cur strategy is to buy and build where we
identify assets which, we believe combined with Future,
present a unique opportunity to add value. We have a
systematic approach te all acquisitions, resulting ina
number of transactions tc date being originated in-house.
We have made significant progress on the integration of Tl
Media, which is now complete. The Finance and magazine
subscription systems have been migrated onto our
common platforms, and our ad stack and Hawk widgets
have been integrated acrass all non-Vanilla websites.
alongside the migration of Homes & Gardens, Livingetc
and Woman & Home websites to our web platform Vanilla.
Delivery on synergies continues to progress well with
£20m already secured ahead of earlier forecasts of £15m
perannum, of which £3m benefits our FY 2020 results.
We continue to expect the cost to deliver the synergies to
be inthe region of £12m, of which £9.9m {being £9.1m
restructuring and £0.8m impairment of the Tl Media
legacy finance system) is reflected in our FY 2020 results
as acharge to profit.

In Novermber 2019 we acquired Barcroft Studios for a
total consideration of £23.4m, of which 40% was satisfied
by the issue of shares, with the remainder paid in cash.
Barcroft is an award-winning TV and digital video
production company that creates criginal content, which
is then published on a variety of owned and operated
social sites in addition to being distributed across mass
media channels. Barcroft's videos, which focus on real iife
stories, are watched by millions. Now fully integrated, this
is an exciting acquisition as it has added another
significant new revenue stream in video production to the

Strategic Report

Future Wheel and presents opportunities for the Group to
further monetise through video. In addition, by utilising
BRarcroft's expertise in monetising and engaging with
social audiences, we are able to drive social media
engagement across our cther Future verticals and brands.

In October 2020 we acquired CinemaBlend. a
high-growth digital brand focused onthe TV, film and
entertainment market, based in the US. The addition of
CinemaBlend boosts our presence in the TV & Film and
Games & Entertainment verticals, particularty in the US.
Additionally, the acquisition also provides an opportunity
to accelerate the development of our recently launched
website What to Watch by establishing a strong market
position from which to grow both online brands, as well as
benefiting from collaberation, content sharing and new
expertise.

On the 25 Novemnber 2020 we announced that we have
agreed the terms of a recommended offer for GoCo Group
plc, the price comparison business, which values the
entire issued and to be issued share capital of GoCo Group
at £594m on a fully diluted basis. We believe that the
Combination will significantly strengthen the Future
Group's proposition of seeking to address the growing
consumer demand for informed and value driven
purchasing decisions enabled by intent driven content. We
believe the Combination provides a truly unique
opportunity to capitalise on the combination of Future’s
deep audience insight with GoCc's expertise in price
comparison and the proprietary technology of both the
Future Group and the GoCo Group.

Current trading and outlook

The new financial year (FY 2021) has started well, and we
benefit from ongeing momentum from the organic
business as well as from acquisitions. Qur online audience
continues to show strong growth, which was underpinned
hy our recent successful Amazon Prime Day in October.

We meet the ongoing challenges of the COVID-19
pandemic through our three-pronged approach focusing
on our employees, clients and stakeholders as we
consider how tc lessen the impact to the business.

The strength of our performance in FY 2020 combined
with the long-term fundamentals of growing glebal digital
advertising spend and eCommerce growth add te our
confidence that, despite market uncertainty, we remain
well-positioned to continue our strong growth,

Qur diversified strategy continues to offset the impacts
of the ongoing macro uncertainty, and, as a result, the
positive trends we have seen in FY 2020 are expected to
continue in FY 2021.

o

y
Zillah Byng-Thome, Chief Executive
10 December 2020
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Risks and
uncertainties

Effective risk management is essential
to support the achievement of our
strategic and operational objectives as
we address the challenges and
uncertainties facing businesses today.

The Board recognises that the appropriate management of risk is key
tothe delivery of the Group's strategic objectives and the continued
delivery of superior returns for all of our stakeholders (you can read
more about our key stakeholders on pages 44 to 48). As set out on
pages 12 and 21, we actively capitalise on the opportunities impacting
our industry to ensure that the Group remains well positioned to
deliver on the evolving needs of our audience.

The Board has overal'i respensibility for the risk management
framework and for ensuring that we manage risks appropriately.
Future takes its approach to the identification, evaluation and
mitigation of risk and uncertainty extremely seriously, and applies a
robust framework that embeds risk management throughout its
organisation and across its operations. Whilst it is accepted that risk

Risk management framework

forms a part of operating in business, delivering its strategic
objectives whilst mitigating those risks is a fundamental objective for
Future's Board and its executive tianagernenl ledims.,

Approach to risk
In the current year and ongoing. in addition to its broad strategic
responsibilities, the Board:-

- twice annually reviews the principal and emerging risks faced by
the Group and approves the Group Risk Register.

- lwice annually understands the impact of principal and emcerging
risks and assesses the robustness of mitigations and internal
controls inplace.

- annually approves the Group's Risk Appetite Statement.

The Audit and Risk Committee reinforces the process urther by
conducting 'deep dive reviews, either on specific risks such as cyber
security, or through discussions with Executive Leadership Team
members to challenge their particular risk registers.

Prioritising and reporting risks
The management of risk is embedded in the day-to-day operations of
the management teams. Key risk indicators are monitcred through
monthly trading meetings and quarterly business reviews where any
areas of opportunity cr risks to the business are discussed as a
standing agenda item. Any changes are fed back to the Executive
Leadership Team (ELT). Audit and Risk Committee and the Board.

Defence

Oversight

Third line

Second line

First line

Responsibility

Board

Controls Reviews

Leadership Team

Group Finance
Functicn

Actions

Sets the Group's risk
appetite taking into
account its stratedic
objectives

Identifies principal
Group risks

Conducts 'deep dives' into
specific Principal Risks

Carries out a robust
assessment of any
ermerging risks

Assesses the impact of
Principal Risks when
analysing the Group's
long-terrm viability and
sustainability

Considers views from
managerment and the
Audit and Risk Committee
as part of its review of the
effectiveness of the system
of internat controls

Monitors the adequacy
and effectiveness of
internal control and
risk management
systermns

Reports to the Audit
and Risk Committee
and Board on a regular
basis

.

.

.

Prioritises Principal
HigKs through a forrmal
bi-annual review process

Allocates resaurces to
manage fisks according
to potential impact

Communicates
priorities to the business

Reviews detailed risk
registers to agree
Principal Risks

identifies any
ernerging actions
where Group-wide
action is required

Implements risk
mitigation plans

« Maintains the risk
regisler & conduils
interviews with the
Executive Leadership
Team
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Group-level nisks are either derived from 'top-down’ or ‘bottom-up’
review of a broad range of individual current strategic and operational
risks. The ELT is responsible for identifying risks and working with the
Group Finance Director to capture them in the Group'srisk register.
Allrisks identified by the ELT are scored out of 5 (with & being the
highest) in respect of three areas: the likelihood of the risk
crystallising, the impact if the risk does crystallise, and the strength
of any mitigation in place (in respect of mitigation, a score of 1
represents strong mitigation). A combined score is then calculated by
multiplying each of these scores together (with 125 being the highest
possible score).

Each of these Group-level risks is then assessed by the Board in
terms of its potential impact on the Group and its key stakeholders.
The Group prioritises risk mitigation actions by considering risk
likelinood and potential severity,

Emerging risk

Whilst Future operates in an evolving environment with several clear
risks, it takes a pro-active and robust approach to identifying any new
risks, and evaluating and mitigating ali known risks through a regular
review process.

Our internal controls seek to minimise the impact of risks, either by
reducing theiriikelihood or mitigating their impact, as explained
further in the Corporate Governance report on pages 74 to 77, and
during the yvear we have continued te develop those controls. Effective
risk management remains at the core of the Group's strategy, which
includes a formal. six-monthly review by the ELT and the addition of
risk management to the Audit and Risk Committee as a standard
agenda item for every meeting. There have been no significant
control failings or weaknesses identified during the year in respect of
risk management. Climate change is not currently considered to be
anemerging or a principal risk for the Greup.

Risk appetite

The Board recognises that continuing to deliver superior returns for
shareholders and other stakeholders is dependent upon accepting
alevel of risk. Our risk appetite sets out how we balance risk and
cpportunity in pursuit of our strategic objectives.

Zero tolerance

The Group has zero tolerance for risk which may impact:
» The safety of our people

« Our reputation and brand

» Ourlegal and regulatory compiiance

Core business model
The Group has low tolerance
for risk in its core operations.

Strategy and vision

The Group accepts a moderate
level of risk in pursuing new
opportunities, including
potential new markets.

Strategic Report

Our Principal Risks

The output from the above process is a summary of Principal Risks
that is set out in the table on pages 40 to 42 and summarised in the
heat map on page 42. The heat map sets out the relative likelihood of
the risk crystallising and the impact on the Group if the risk did
crystallise — effectively the ‘gress' risk score before considering the
strength of any mitigation. The relative strength of the mitigation
available o the Group to combat each risk is depicted in the colour of
the risk on the heat map (green being strong, amber being average
and red being low mitigaticn). The symbol X has been included in the
Summary of Principal Risks table overleaf to indicate principal risks
emergingin FY 2020.

Each Principal Risk has been analysed according to its mpact on
both the Group’s existing business model, as set out inthe ‘Future
Strategy Wheel', and the core elements of the Group’s strategy as set
out inthe "Future Playbook'. More information on the Future Strategy
Wheel and the Future Playbook can be found on the website.
Considering both the existing business model together with the
strategic direction of the Group, the Board carried out arobust
assessment of long term viability, which included performing
sensitivity analysis and reverse stress-testing.

The symbol V has been included in the Summary of Principal Risks
table overleaf to indicate those that have been taken into account
when performing the viability testing.

Changes to the Group's risk

assessment in the year

As a result of the risk reviews undertaken during the current financial
year, the risk below has been identified as a prior year Principal Risk
that is no longer considered to be as significant due to improved
mitigations and is therefore not included in the Summary of Principal
Risks table overleaf -

FY 2019 principal
risks not included in
FY 2020 assessment

Reason for reduction in risk rating

The business has an established track
record of acquisitions and integrations
which has been further validated with
recent transactions. Additionally, in

FY 2020 the executive leadership team
was expanded 10 include a dedicated
M&A function.

Acquisitions — the risk
that any acquisition
and its subsequent
integration fail to
create shareholder

ME&A activity will continue to be
value

monitered as a risk but the Group does
not feel that it currently meets the
criteria for being a principal risk.

|
In addition, the prior yearrisk titled 'reliance on 'search™ has been

incorporated into the new risk, reliance on third party distribution
platforms.
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Summary of Principal Risks

Gross Risk movement refative to prior year ‘ ' =

Risk

Personal data

vO

Business Madel link: Tii, iv, vi, viii

Strategy link: 1,3, 4
-—
[

Residual Risk movernent reiative to pricr year G Q %

Risk
Staff — Key person risk
vO

Business Model link: i-viii

Strategy link: 1-5
-—
-

New Principal Risk x

Risk
Cyber security and IT
[ ]

Business Model link: i, i, vi, vii, viii,
Strategy link: 1, 4

A\ 4%

Dascription

The collcction, storage and use of personal
data by the Group presents a risk of misuse,
loss of personal data, or cyber-attack which
could result in high penatties from the
Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO}

or claims from data subjects. Future may
suffer reputational risk, as weli as a significant
financial penalty, if it is responsibie for the
breach.

Future (and the third parties it relies on) is
regurired to comply with strict data protection
and privacy legislation, including the General
Data Protection Regulation {GDFR). Such
laws restrict Future's ability to collect and use
personal information and place significant
transparency and accountability obligations
on Future. The need to comply with data
protection legistation is a significant control,
aperational and reputational risk which can
affect the Group.

Acquisitions iIncrease the level of risk
relating to perscnal data due to the increased
volume of data being processed and the
requirement to migrate the data from legacy
systems and suppliers which may not be
operating with the same standards as Future
and its partners.

Mitigation
The Data Protection Officer oversees all
data protection matters and works with
stakeholders within the Group to review.
develop and improve its data practices and
procedures.

Controls and contract provisions are
in place to ensure compiliance with data
pratection legislation and confirmation is
saught from all third parties who might be
involved in providing or processing data to
ensure they are also in compliance with such
legislation.

The Group has implemented a process
to respond to subject access requestsina
proper and timely fashion and uses a Censent
Management Platform on its websites
within the lAB's Consent and Transparency
Framework.

Governance oversight

The Audit Committee regulatly reviews
results of internal control reports and the
Board receives internal corporate governance
and compliance updates. You can read more
about our governance framework on page 64.

Description
Qur fulnre sineerss will depend upan our
continued ability to identify, hire, develop,
motivate and retain highly skilled individuzls
n both the UK and US, in our senior
management and technical teams.

The Group has a long standing CEO with
a successful track record in growing the
profitatility of the business and mantaining
its strategic direction.

Mitigation

The Group has recrurted severai new senior
roles recently to provide additional strength
and depth to the leadership team. while
crucially transitioning to a new CFO during
the period.

The editorial and operational leadership
has been expanded with the T1 acquisrtion.

tn addition, during £ 2020 we created a
number of new executive leadership roles to
include, B2BMD, CSO, CMO and CPO.

lechnology has been split from a single
role into two separate executive leadership
rales, with one of these roles focused
solely on our front-end website platform
development and technology.

In order to attract and retain top talent
and ensure that Future remains an attractive
place to work, appropriate reward packages
(including long term incentive plans) are in
place for key individuals.

Governance oversight

The Nomination Committee regularly
reviews Board succession planning and the
Board receives updates on senior talent
management programimes. You can read
more about the work of the Nomination
Committee on page 70.

Description

Cyber security covers the protection of our
devices, services, and networks and Lhe
informaticn stored within therm from theft or
damage. A cyber secunty incident could result
in interruption to trading, darmage to reputation
and financial penalties along with remediation
costs and diversion of management time.

Mitigation

Effective cyber security governance 1s in place
with regular Group steering meetings anda
dedicated role responsible for overseeing risk
and recommending actionable roadmaps to
improve information security procedures and
protections across the Group.

Future seeks to ensure all of its systems
and public owned and operated infrastructure
complies with best practice as regards to
security by continually investing in and
upgrading IT systems and processes.

The Group's core network is protected by
Two-Factlu authentication securty and fircwall
restrictions with a plan in place to mitigate the
effects of any hack.

All workstations are protected by antivirus
software which is kept up-to-date and
websites are subject to monthly vulnerability
assessments with any required remediation
being completed in a timely manner,

To protect against system/network outages
{caused by fraud or other issues), Future's
network has multiple back-up facilities held in
different locations that minimises any single
point of failure. Servers are distributed across
two main data centre locations and several
controlied server rooms in different buildings in
Bath and New York.

Following completion of acquisitions, assets
are quickly moved onto the Group's existing
infrastructure (data centres and cloud based
providers) excert where not possible or
practicable. Websites acquired by the Group
are usually transitioned to the Group's platform
to ensure they meet the required security and
best practice standards.

Governance oversight

The Audit and Risk reviews Cyber Security
assessment reports, IT network management
and security reviews, and receives external
advisory guidance on key cyber nisks. You can
read more about the work of the Audit and Risk
Committee on page 74.
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Key:
Link to Future's Business Madel:

i. Advertising

ii. Cantent publishing & licensing
iii. Events and integrated marketing
iv. Mermbership & Subs

v. Newstrade

vi. CRM

vil. Platform as a service

viil. Ecommerce & lead Gen

Risk

Economic &

Geo-political uncertainty
vO

Business Model link: i-viii
Strategy link: 3,5

+5

Link to our vision and strategy:

1. A global specialist media platform
2.Fans of brands and loyal communities
3. Diversifying monetisation

4. Leveraging our data and analytics

5. Expanding global reach

Mitigation: ® Strong mitigation

Risk

Digital Advertising market
changes

ov

Business Model Link: i, ii, viii

Strategy link: 1-5 -— G

Long-term viability:

{ Average mitigation

Strategic Report

V: Risk taken into account as part of the
Company's long term viability assessment [see overleaf}

W Low mitigation

Risk

Reliance on third party
distribution platforms

Ve

Business Model Link: 1, ii, viii

Strategy link; 1-5 x
Includes the prior year risk relating to reliance on 'search’

Description

Group performance could be adversely
impacted by factors beyond our control such
as the economic conditions and political
uncertainty in key rmarkets.

The macroeconomic climate and
continued uncertainty surrounding the
impact of Brexit on the UK economy and the
US pelitical landscape could lead to reduced
consumer spending and a related downturn
in advertising.

Mitigation

This risk is mitigated by keeping abreast of
macro-economic developments and ensuring
that the Group responds swiftly to any as they
materialise.

The Group is diverse geographically and
continues to grow the diversity of its revenue
segments. This mitigates the impact of
political or econormic stability in any particular
country or region.

The Group has demonstrated through the
ongoing pandernic that its diversified revenue
streams across different media have provided
a resilience to economic shocks.

In addition, the Group has focused on being
the market leader wherever possible, which
should result in more resilience in economic
downturns,

Governance oversight

The Chief Executive and Chief Financial
Officer present reviews and forecasts on the
impact of the macroeconormic environment
at each Board meeting. You can also read
more about this in the Strategic Report on
pages 6to53.

Description

Continuing changes to the digital advertising
landscape and changing user habits may impact
Future's share of advertising market revenues and
advertising yield:

(1) the move to Increased privacy standards
across the advertising ecosystern, may have
potential effects on yield from removing 'targeted
personalised ads’;

{ii} the changing mix of media advert
consumption means that increasingly more users
are viewing adverts on mobile devices, which also
has a higher mix of video advertising formats.
Future needs to ensure that its advertisernent
propoesition stays relevant to ensure thatit can
capritalise in these markets while mamntaining a
premium yield;

(i) the ability to compete for a share of
avaiiable advertising expenditures may be
more challenged as more traditional offline and
emerging media companies continue 1o enter the
online advertising market.
Mitigation
Future s a premiurm publisher with large market
shares of highly endemic audiences and as a
consequence advertising partners work with
Future because of the brands and audiences
it has. Future's sales teams are trained to sell
the benefits associated with working with
Future (rather than acquiring advertising
programmatically).

Future has enhanced first party audience
capabilities with which it is currently targeting
advertiser's campaigns with rich first party
audience data. Thus allows advertisers to hyper
target Future's special interest user base and their
purchase intents. This first party data proposition
is completely unaffected by any third party cookie
changes.

Continued investrment in Future's Hybrid
technclogy ensures that Future drives the best
available audiences in the market.

The Group's expansion of its video offenng,
facilitated further by the acquisition of Barcroft
(specialist digital video production and social
channel distribution company} enables Future
to capitalise both on growing video advertising
demand and the social channel advertising
market.

Governance oversight

The Board receives updates on innovation and
reviews digital advertising risks as part of the
corporate plan process. You can also read more
about our Business Model and our approach

to Digital Advertising in the Strategic Report on
pages 610 b3,

Description
We depend on our continued abilty to market,
distribute and monetise cur content through
search engines and social media platforms.
These platforms could decide not to market
or distribute scrme or all of our products and
services, change their terms and conditions of
use at any time and/or significantly increase
fees,

Changes in algorithms and strategres of
tech giants could matenially impact traffic
and media revenues. For instance, search
engines can make changes to their ranking
algorithms, methodologies and design layouts
that could reduce the prominence of links to
websites offering our content and negatively
impact traffic.

Mitigation

Although Future has not been matenally
impacted by any algorithm changes to date,
the Group is not complacent.

Future has a dedicated audience
development team who work to ensure Future
embeds best practice withinits editorial and
technical teams.

The Group continues to invest in the
creation of expert quality content that meets
the needs of audiences including internal
criticai review ot our approach to, and success
in, delivering the information and advice our
users are searching for.

We continue to invest in our enline
platforms to provide a secure environment
with strong user experience and are
committed to ensure that we adhere to online
advertising standards,

The Barcroft acquisition has strengthened
our expertise in distributing and monetising
content across a broader group of digital
platforrms with which Future has strong
partnerships.

The Group's recent diversificaticn into B2B
helps drive a direct relationship with the end
customer and the Group continues to invest
in other direct sources to drive direct traffic.

Governance oversight

The Board discusses third party distribution
platforms with specific focus on the
investment needed. You can also read more
about cur Business Model and how our
business is diversified in the Strategic Report
on pages 6tc 53.

continued overleaf:
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Summary of Principal Risks continued

Risks Risks Rigks

Reliance on key third party Pandemic Media market disruption and
service providers impact continues changing consumer habits
va Ve vO

Business Model Link: ii, v, viii Business Mode! link: i-vili Business Model link: |, ii, viii

Strategy link:1,3 x Stratagy link: 3,5 x Strategy link: 1-5 x
Pescription Description Description

Certain third parties are critical to the operaticns
of our businesses. A failure of one of our critical
third parties may cause disruption to business
operations, impact our ability to deliver products
and services and result in financial loss, The
reputation of our businesses may be damaged
by poor performance or a regulatory breach by
critical third parties.

Key third parties include:

» Printers and paper suppliers

+ Magazine wholesalers and hauliers
« Data centre and cleud service providers

Mitigation
Robust continuity arrangerents are in place for
disruption to key third parties.

Print options and contingency plans are
regularly assessed.

Our magazine wholesaler finances are kept
under constant review. Cperational contingency
plans are in place to switch to alternative netwerks
should a failure occur in both wholesalers.

Future aperates muttiple data centres in arder
to ensure resilience in key services and avoid
unplanned downtime or service disruption.

Operational and financial due diligence is
undertaken for any new key suppliers or material
changes. Contracts, service levels and outputs are
closely managed on an on-going basis for key thirg
party services.

Governance oversight

The Beard regularly discusses the security of
supply and receives presentations from ELT
members in regard to their key supphers where
the Board deems an update is required. You can
also read mere about our Business Model and
how our busmess is diversified in the Strategic
Report on pages 6 to 53.

Principal Risks Heat Map

@ Strong mitigation

Gross Risk [before mitigation)

1. Personal data

2. Staff - Key person risk

3. Cyber security and IT

4. Economic & geo-political uncertainty
5. Digital advertising market changes

6. Reliance on third party distribution platforms
7. Reliance on third party service providers

8. Pandemic impact continues

9. Media market disruption and changing consumer habits
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O Average mitigation

Whilst Future's trading results overall have proven
resilient during the pandemic penod of FY 2020,
continuation of the pandemic may have longer
term impacts on other stakeholders such as
employees, customers, suppliers, the wider
economy and consequently the success of the
Group.

Mitigation

The safety of Future’s employees has been a
prionty. All staff are supported in their heed to
work from home acceording to their personal
circumstances.

Intra-company communication has continued
at regular intervals using accessible technology
- monthly town hall streaming of communication
to all staff including real time Q&A sessions, in
addition to listening sessions hosted by senior
business leaders.

Effort to keep in touch and maintain contact
with customers has been a focus with ¢reait
extended to regular customers when necessary
to assist and ease pressure on their cash flows
during the recent periods of difficulty.

Supplier payments have continued to be made
in accordance with suppher payment terms.

Governance uversight

The Board has received regular updates on the
impact of COVID-19 on our people and on the
business and the mitigations being put in place
to protect them. You can read more about this on
page 49,

High

B Low mitigaticn

Impact

Low

Failure 1o anficipate and respond to market
disruption and changing consumer habits
may affect demand for our preducts and
services and our ability to drive long-term
growth.

Mitigation

Future's strategy priority is to stay relevant
for newer generations and new media
models.

The Group continues to grow its organic
audience and that of its acquired websites
through the investment in its editorial
content.

The Barcroft acquisition has extended
Future's capability to access the high
growth market of VOD and social channel
content distribution in addition to extending
the Group's capability to develop video
content on owned websites.

The Group continues to develop s
partnerships with digital app stores
to maximise distribution of its digrtal
subscription content.

Governance oversight

The Chief Executive provides the Board with
regular updates on market and competitor
activity. You can also read more about our
Business Model in the Strategic Report on
pages 61053

Low

Prabability High




Strategic Report

Longer term viability statement

Assessing the Group’s longer

term prospects and viability

The Directors have based their assessment of viability on the Group's
current strategy. which is outlined in pages 12-33. The Group's
prospects are assessed primarily through its annual long-term
detailec planning process which considers profitability, the Group’s
cash flows, committed facilities, liquidity and forecast funding
requirement over the next three years. This exercise is completed
annually and was signed off by the Board in September 2020. As part
of this the Board considers the appropriateness of key assumptions,
taking into account the external environment and the Group's
strategy.

The assessment period

Athree-year period is used for the Group's Viability Statement as this
aligns with the length of the Group’s detailed plan, and this horizon
maost appropriately reflects the dynamic and changing media
environment in which the Group operates.

Assessing the Group’s viability

The viability of the Group has been assessed, taking into account the
Group's current financial position, including external funding in place
over the assessment period, and after modelling the impact of certain
scenarios arising from the principal risks, which have the greatest
potential impact on viability in that period.

A number of scenarios have been modelled, considered severe but
plausible, that encompass these identified risks. Whilst each of the
risks on pages 40 to 42 has a potential impact and has been
considered as part of the assessment, only those that represent
severe but plausible scenarios were selected for modelling. None of
these scenarics individually threaten the viability of the Group. The
assessment undertaken includes the impact of the recommended
offer for GoCo Group ple.,

The scenarios have been run both individually and with 2) and 3)
combined {as the combination of all downside scenarios occurring at

once is considered to be remote) as well as running the impact of
the recommended offer for GoCo Group plc (where the acquisition
does not deliver the results that are expected and also where the
acquisition does not complete as aresult of it not obtaining
shareholder approval), both separately, and with the combined
downside scenario,

The scenarios have been modelled using the Group's existing
£135m RCF which runs to February 2023 and the £215m term loan
for the acquisition of GoCo Group ple which runs to November 2022
and amertises at £20m per quarter from 30 June 2021. The £30m
COVID-1© facility that was agreed in April 2020 has been cancelled
and so has not been included in the modelling. As these facilities
expire within the three year time period we have assumed for the
purposes of this viability assessment that the Group will undertake
a further refinancing exercise to both ‘right-size’ and lengthen the
tenor on the Group's facilities prior to their expiry.

The scenarics are hypothetical and purposefuily severe with the
aim of creating outcomes that have the ability to threaten the
viability of the Group. The Group has multiple control measures in
place to prevent and mitigate the scenarios from taking place

Although each of the downside {(and the combined) scenarios
result inincreased leverage they all result in headroom over the
existing bank facilities and covenants at all testing points {even
where nane of the varicus options available to the Group in order to
maintain liquidity, such as reducing any non-essential capital and
operating expenditure as well as not paying dividends, are utilised).

The results of the above stress testing showed that the Group
would be able to withstand the impact of these scenarics occurring
over the assessment pericd.

Viability statement

Based on these severe but plausible scenarios, the Directors have
areasonable expectation that the Company will continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three-year
period censidered.

Scenario

Associated Principal Risk(s)

Description

1) Data security
breach

1. Personal data

A serious data security or regulatory breach results in a significant
rmonetary penalty of €20m and a loss of reputaticn among customers
resulting in a significant reduction in Media revenues and additional IT
costs whilst the breach is rectified. Given the inherent uncertainty of total
quantum, this test is purposely severe as a stress test for the Group.

2) Significant Media
revenue reduction

2. Key person risk
5. Digital Advertising
6. Third party distribution platforms

9. Media market disruption and
changing consumer habits

This scenario assumes a significant reduction in eCommerce and
advertising revenues {net of direct cost reductions) compared to the
three year plan of 10% per annum. The scenario also assumes no bonus
payment in any of the next three years.

3} Significant
change in external
environment

4, Economic & geo-political
uncertainty

7. Third party service providers
B. Pandemic impact continues

This assumes a reduction in Events, Advertising and Magazine revenues
as well as a print margin decline and extended collection days and an
overseas third party distributor going bankrupt, resulting in bad debt
exposure and supply disruption.

The scenario also assumes no bonus payment in any of the next three years.
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Our People

Qur Audience

How we engage
with our stakeholders

Qur purpose is to change people’s lives through sharing cur knowledge
and expertise with others, making it easy and fun for them to do what they
want. Shared and enduring values are at the heart of any successful
organisation, and that's why cur core values underlie everything we do. In
order to create these values, it is important to first identify who our
stakeholders are, understand what matters to them, and how our
operations impact on them and their communities.

The Board is responsible for leading stakeholder
engagement, ensuring that we fulfil our obligations to
those impacted by the business. We believe that
considering our stakeholders in key business decisionsis
not only the right thing te do, but is fundamental te our
abiiity to drive value creation over the longer term.

In this section we identity our tive key stakeholder
groups and have pravided an overview of their interests,
their concerns and the ways in which the Board acted
with regard to these groups when taking its key strategic
decisions throughout the year and what the Board has
learned from these interactions having regard (among
other matters) to the factors set out in Section 172(1)(a)
to (f) of the Companies Act 2006. The Board will
sometimes engage directly with certain stakehelders on
particular issues, but the size and distribution of our
stakeholders and of Future means that stakeholder
engagement often takes place at an operational level,
within the context of the Board's agreed strategy. Inthis
section we show how the Board engaged with each of our
key stakeholder groups, summarise the specific actions
we took for stakeholder groups in response to the
COVID-19 pandemic and set out some case studies which
give more detail of how cur stakeholders are considered
when making specific decisions.

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of Future plc have always taken
decisions for the long term, and collectively and
individually our aim is always to uphold the highest
standards of conduct. A broad range of stakeholders
are important to the Group at local. regienal and
funiclional levels.

Day-to-day engagement with our key stakeholders, and
other local stakeholder groups. is conducted at the level
and in a format best suited to the context. This may be
iocally, regionally or functicnally, by the Board or senior
management, depending on the stakeholder. Where the
Board does not engage directly with our stakeholders, it is
kept updated so Directors maintain an effective
understanding of what matters o our stakeholders ang
can draw on these perspectives in Board decision-making
and strategy development. As the Board receives
presentations and makes decisions, we enstire that the
impact on any of these groups is considered. We
periodically review which are our key stakeholder
relationships and examine how we engage with them. We
also consider ways to ensure that we maintain open lines
of communication with these stakeholder groups and
whether there are ways that the Board's engagement can
be improved to help us operate more effectively.

44 [ FUTURE PLC




Our people

,  Ourtalented

Tcﬁglﬁ?r’ and engaged
workforce are

committed to upholding
our values, enabling us
to deliver on our
promises and we
recognise that listening
to them and keeping
them engaged is
essential to that success
continuing.

You can read more
about how we invest and
reward our people on
page 50 and how the
Group engages,
including how we helped

them negotiate the
COVID-12 pandemic, on
page 50.

Image removed

How the Board engaged in 2020

Workforce engagement has always been a key priority for the Board. Claire MacLellan, the
Chief Operating Officer who is responsible for global HR, attends Board meetings once a year
to give updates and an HR dashboard, showing key statistics, is reviewed at each Board
meeting. Our employee opinion survey formally captures their views and is a key part of how
we track engagement. During October 2019 the Board visited the New York office, and in
March the Bath office. In addition. in response to the challenges raised by the pandemic, we
held a number of live events via Google hangouts led by the executive team.

Feedback, suggestions and concerns from employees across the business are also
considered through channels such as town hall meetings and ELT hstening sessions. The
Board receives regular updates on these topics.

The Board considered the impact of the Tl Media acquisition on the existing Future
people, and how the Tl Media people would integrate into the Future community, including
looking at the different approaches to furlough, best practice ways of working and the
impact on diversity.

What we learnt
Our people are proud to work at Future and are proud of Future's response to COVID-15.
Managing the integration of new businesses intc Future's culture is something that we do
well (but there is always room for improvement).
Inclusion and Diversity is very important to our people and the education and awareness
programmes in this area are very much in demand. Mental well-being has been a key focus
area during the year, with many colleagues finding the loss of physical office space isolating.

What we are going to do in 2021

Listening, learning and responding to our people will continue to be a priority during the next
12 months. We have, as part of this. formalised our internal communications calendar to
ensure we have the opportunities to interact whilst the company works remotely.
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Our audicnee

We create fans of our
\I brands by giving them
a place where they
want to spend their time and
where they go to meet their
needs. They are central to our
business and without them we
would not exist.
You can read more about our
audience and how we have
to dellght them an

pages i4 to 19.

How the Board engaged in 2020

The Board receives regular audience insight reports throughout the year and we
looked at our audience needs at our Board strategy day. The impact of COVID-19 on
aur ability to meet the needs of our audience and how this was addressed was
discussed as part of the hroader COVID-19 response debate.

The Board considered how we can diversify our audience when discussing
acquisition opportunities. The demands and resource requirements to create
scalable platforms were alse discussed.

Cyber security risk discussions included a focus around ensuring that any
threats to our audience were quickly identified and mitigated. We are working
tewards embedding the overriding GDPR principle of ‘data protection by design and
default” in our organisation.

What we learnt

Qur content has been a source of help and advice for hundreds of millions of people
each month, and this need was met even more $o during the early period of Lhe
pandemic and global lockdowns. Meanwhile our magazine readers have heen eager
to access our content and have been turning to our subscriptions to ensure that
they can continue to access our content when the marketplace was disrupted.

What we are going to do in 2021

Looking ahead. the challenge is to ensure that the platforms we evolve and the
technology we use continues to meet the demands of our audience.

image remoeved
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Our commereial
partners
Working on our behalf,
our commercial partners
are a face for our
business. Ensuring they are
motivated to deliver good quality
work helps us deliver the best
service to our audience.
You can read more about ocur
commercial partners and how we
work with them on page 52.

Strategic Report

How the Board engaged in 2020
The Board receives reports on how we have worked with our commercial partners
throughout the year, with a focus on key commercial events, e CES, E3 or new
product launches.

The Board considered how we can build and improve on our existing commercial
partnerships when discussing acquisition opportunities.

What we learnt

By working with our commercial partners we can diversify our content
monetisation, reaching a wider audience whilst staying relevant to them.

Our unique refationship with many of our endemic advertisers meant that we were
able to host a number of virtual events with significant engagement in response to
the cancellation of the physical events.

What we are going to do in 2021
We will continue our engagement with cur commercial partners, ensuring we are
adapting to their needs in this changing environment.

Our supplicrs
We believe it is important
D that our suppliers are not
°e only price competitive but
also have a strong compliance,
quality, service, sustainability and
innovation ethos.
You can read more about our
suppliers and how we work with
them on page 52.

How the Board engaged in 2020

Engagement with suppliers is key to our vaiues, ranging from our approach to
Modern Slavery (our statement can be found on our website), to the protection of our
other stakeholders' data, to name just a few. Cne of the key pillars supporting this
statement is our Suppiier Code and we continue to engage with suppliers on this.

What we learnt

Compliance is key for our suppiiers and visits to our key production suppliers and
processes ensure that we carry out the right due diligence to help them comply
and ensure the highest standards which are vital to keep slavery and human
trafficking out of our supply chain.

What we are going to do in 2021
We will continue cur engagement with our suppliers, providing support and
guidance to ensure adherence with our Supplier Code.

Our investors

Shareholders are the
QWMP owners of Future.

i The Board places
great importance on having
positive relationships with all
shareholders and seeks to
ensure there is an appropriate
leve! of dialogue with them.

How the Board engaged in 2020
We conduct extensive engagement with our institutional investors throughout the
year. Our AGM and investor presentations gives the Board the opportunity to
engage with investors on the running of their company, and to receive feedback.
The Board receives regular updates on investor communication activity, changes
to the shareholder register, analysis of share price performance and particular
Investment themes such as environmental, social and corporate governance. In
addition. the feedback from sharehclder / analyst interactions is shared with the
Board on a regular basis, via our Corporate Brokers.

What we learnt
Investors understand the strategy that underpins our future growth plans and are keen
to see the traction from these.

YYou can read more about the feedback we had from shareholders on the
implementation of our new remuneration policy for 2012/20 on page 84.

What we are going to do in 2021

We will continue to engage with our shareholders throughout 2021. We lock forward
to welcoming shareholders, subject to there being no COVID-19 restrictions in place.
atour AGM in February where they will have an opportunity to meet the new Board
members, Rachel Addison and Mark Broocker, for the first time and vote on their
election and other resoiutions.
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How we engage with our stakeholders

Stakeholder engagement case studies

COVID-19 response

The business implications of the
COVID-19 pandemic have been fast
moving and. at times, uncertain. A
summary of the varicus actions taken by
the Group are shown an page 49. The
Board discussed the Group’'s response
and the impact on stakehaolders, in
particular our peopie, our audience and
aur suppliers.

Acquisition of Tl Media

During the Board's discussions on the
acquisition of Tl Media the Board gave
extensive consideration to what the impact
of the proposed acquisition would be on
the various stakeholder groups. This
involved an appraisal of the financial
effects of the acquisition, the operational
risks involved in its integration, optimal
financing arrangements and regulatory
risk relating to the Compelilion and
Markets Authonity. In addition, the Board
considered the impact of the acquisition
onh the employees of both Future and Tl
Media, particularly during the consultation
process with employees, the audience and
suppliers, as well as the potential
consequences for existing shareholders.

Workforce

We continue to be a responsible employer
in our approach to our people, ensuring
we communicate and engage with them
regularly in a variety of ways and that the
voice of the workforce is heard and taken
into account when making decisions.

The Board agreed a series of
engagement initiatives to supplement the
existing initiatives including:

e arranging an annual workforce Q&A

with lhe Board

 the Senior Independent Director to

continue to take the lead in
engagement across the locations
including attendance at the staff
conference.

Image removed
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COVID-19
response

This section provides a
snapshot of how we have
approached the COVID-19 crisis
since mid-March 2020. it also
directs you to sections of the
Annual Report where you can
find more detail on each of
these matters.

Our governance structure
(detailed on page 64) provided
a stable foundation from which
we could respond to the
changing situation, led by our
Executive Leadership Team. A
summary of our COVID-19
response is set out opposite.

image removed

OUR PEOPLE
Home working stipend ..

Refund of pay cuts ...
Hardship fund created . . e PAQE 5O
.. Page 51
Page 36
Increased staff communications Page 5}

Accelerated online training

Facilitated NHS volunteering ...

Mentat health support .. Page 50

OUR AUDIENCE

Created new COVID-relevant content
Created virtual events and webinars
Trialled new titles and media Page 15

Page 36

Accelerated processing of refunds.

OUR SUPPLIERS

Evolving the magazine distribution model to support
our supply chain and commercial partners....
Extended credit where needed

OUR INVESTORS
Continuing strong financial governance
Maintaining our dividend............

OTHER
Repaid government support in full

Board pay cut -.Page 80
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We are part of the audience and the community and we take this responsibility
very seriously. This section highlights what we are doing to make a positive impact
through our sustainability and stakeholder engagement strategies. Day-to-day
engagement with our key stakeholders, and other local stakeholder groups, is
conducted at the level and in a format best suited to the context.

® Recycling and waste
management

& Gender pay gap reporting

® Payment practices
reporting
® Chatity and outreach

® Quarterly Townhall “Ask
me anything” sessions
“Ask Zillah" SlackChat

8 ELT listening sessions

® Health & safety policy

® Employee engagement
review

® Modern slavery statement
® Whistleblowing policy
® Anti-bribery policy

® Inclusion and diversity

We are a people business first and foremost.
Our six company values underpin everything
we do.

Our colleagues are key stakeholdersin the
suceess of our business and therefore their engagement hasbeen a
key priority in 2020. This year we have delivered a broad range of
peop'e initiatives, from ensuring that we are promoting a safe,
healthy and inspiring workplace to raising our game in creating a truly
diverse ang in¢lusive culture for ail our colleagues,

The measure of our success in this area is our colleague
engagement. This year we have introduced a structured approach to
gathering colleague feedback - our "What Matters” survey asks key
questions to help us understand how our colleagues are feeling and
put in place the relevant interventions. Engagement and
trust will continue to be priorities for us and in 2021 we will he
building more frequent epportunities te listen and respond to our
calleague voice.

i

Wellbeing, health and safety

At Future, pricritising nealth and colleague wellbeing is a critical part
of our company culture. By supporting our cofleagues physically,
mentally and emotionally they can be fulfilled in their career and give
their best performance.

The health and safety of all employees is a key priority for the
Group. Future s largely an office-hased environment; all locations
across the Group comply with relevant legisiation and we
communicate our health and safety policy to all employees. Inthe
UK, during the year to 30 September 2020, thers were no fatalities
and one minor injury across all sites (2019: ne fatalities and nine
minor injuries). There were no fatalities or injuries in the US or
Australia during the year (2019: nil). Qur response to CQOVID-18 was
swift and due te the strong technology infrastructures in place,
Future was able to quickly pivot to enable all of cur colleagues to work
remotely. We provided all colleagues with a stipend to supporthome
working set ups and have taken key steps to develop our office
spaces to be COVID-secure.

Weltheing at Future doesn't stop with physical safety. In 2020 we
have taken a number of steps to ensure the mentat and emotional
wellbeing of our colleagues is supported.

This year we have recruited and trained over 50 Mental Health
First Aiders across our UK sites to provide our colleagues with
resources and confidential support focusing around mental health.
They run weekly drop in sessions and are available at any time viaa
dedicated email account. We have a Cclleague Assistance
Programme in each of our geographies which provides colleagues
with access to free and confidential support services suchas a
qualified counsellor. In the US, we arranged a wellbeing gift in
partnership with our healthcare provider to be delivered to our
colleagues’ doors during lockdown.

Staying connected is also critical to ensuring cur colleagues'
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welibeing. We communicate regularly and leverage technology
platforms such as instant messaging and chats, video calling and
weekly newsletters to keep our colleagues in the know and to
celebrate success. Our Executive Leadership Team hold quarterly
town hall sessions for all employees and extended leadership teamm
meetings where we discuss key strategic initiatives and the
performance of the business. All of these communication channels
have been particularly important during the lockdowns enforced by
the COVID-19 pandemic.

2021 GOAL:

We will prioritize Colleague Voice and put in place robust
feedback mechanisms and reporting to continue to drive
a culture of colleague &ngagement.

Inclusion and diversity

Creating a truly inclusive workplace starts with respect. By
appreciating and celebrating our differences we are creating a Future
that is a more dynamic and inspiring place to be for our employees. We
are working hard to ensure that our workforce reflects the diverse
communities we serve, and that we create an inclusive culture where
each employee can truly be themselves at work. Through 2020 we
have really built momentum towards this geal of inclusion.

Throughout 2020 we have celebrated diversity in cur organisation
through internal events, communications and training. This has
included monthly focuses on Women & Gender Equality, Pride and
Saocial Mability. We are comimitted to educating our colleagues and
raising awareness of diversity challenges. During Inclusion Week in
2020 the theme was Fach One. Reach One with a series of
opportunities to learn about inclusicn in many contexts and to share
our own inclusion stories,

In June 2020, we launched the Inclusion and Diversity Forum,
chaired by our Global CRG, Mike Peralta. We now have 30
ambassadors from across the globa! business involved in the forum,
empowered to champion inglusion at Future and drive the agenda for
change.

Embracing diversity underpins our commitment to providing equal
opportunities to our current and potential employees and applying fair
and equitable employment practices. We codify this through cur
Equality and Diversity Policy. our I1&D Strategy and our values,

_ Male _ Fenjgle
Board 5 63% 3 37%
Senior managéﬁent 7 47% 8 53%
Direct reports V 45 69"-/0 “ 20 ” 31%
All Collea_gues 1.032 50% 1,026" S(V)%V V

2021 GOAL:
Gain accreditation as an Inclusive Employer through the
ongeing development of our Inclusion & Diversity strategy.

Strategic Report

Development
2020 has seen Future welcome over LOOO new colleagues into the
business through acquisition and hiring. We have developed our
onboarding process which kicks in the moment someone says “yes” to
working at Future, leveraging innovative technology, to ensure new
colleagues settle in quickly and can navigate our business successfully
from day one.

We have launched a new online learning portal called "Future
University” which gives colleagues access to bitesize learning
opportunities and have supported over 40 colleagues in the UK to
begin work-based professional qualifications which will support their
ongoing career at Future.

Development at Future is underpinned by a simple yet robust
performance & potential model which ensures colleagues have regular
1-2-1 and development meetings with their managers to discuss their
objectives, career aspirations and ongoing development requirements.

Qur approach to development also extends to supporting outside of
Future. In 2020 we launched the Future Foundation which intends,
through investment of our time, expertise, resources and passion, to
provide the opportunity for disadvantaged children to reach their full
notential. This year we have launched two programmes under the
Foundation umbrelta to provide mentoring, coaching and internships to
disadvantaged students, inspiring them with the confidence and skills
to pursue a career in media.

2021 GOAL:
Launch a global internship pregramme for disadvantaged
younyg people which brings a new generation of skills and
talents into the Future business.

Policy on disability
The Group aims to ensure that when considering recruitment, training,
career development, promotion or any other aspect of employment, ne
employee or job applicant is discriminated against. either directly or
indirectly, on the grounds of disability.

If an employee became disabled while in employment and as a result
was unable to perform their duties, we would make every effort to offer
suitable alternative employment and assistance with retraining,

Our audience

Our strategy is to ensure we only ever have
experts creating content for us, toensure
that we can reet our audiences’ needs. You
can read more on page 14 about how we
approached this during the year.

We actively seek to understand cur audiences better than anyone,
leveraging this knowledge to help partners inform and optimise their
campaigns. We have developed a detaiied understanding of our
readers using a wide range of tools including syndicated research,
web analytics and “The llluminate Panel”. our proprietary reader
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survey utility. This Audience Insight enables our partners to access
highly relevant and knowledgeable communities that will support the
success ot therr campaigns.

It 1s mission criticat to Future to represent our audiences fully and
so our Inclusion & Diversity ethos reaches into aur approach to our
content. In 2020 we responded to the Black Lives Matters movement
with 10 pledges to ensure we are equally representing BAME people
within our organisation and our content. This includes diversity
targets within our imagery and contributor population and donating
advertising space on our digital platforms to support awareness
campaigns. in August 2020 we donated $500K of digital advertising
space to the Racial Injustice Campaign.

2021 GOAL:
Impilement reqular content audits to drive inclusive
content.

Our commerceial
partncrs

We provide a premium, brand-safe
environment for cur partners to access and
engage valuable consumers across multiple touchpoints including
websites, social media. video, print and events. Through creative
centent-led campaigns and digital advertising solutions, we take cur
commercial partners closer to the audiences that matter.

Future is 2 mermber of the Responsibie Media Forum, a partnership
between 25 leading global media companies to identify and take
action on the social and environmental challenges facing the sector.
As part of the Forum we participate in identifying trends and areas for
prioritisation based on sound research and robust discussions,
engage with stakehclders, campaigners, policy makers. academics
and peers; and run collaborative projects and events on key issues.

2021 GOAL:
Ensure thought leadership as the advertising industry
wrestles with the issues of user privacy.

www.futureplc.com/modern-slavery-statement. You can read
more about how we work with our suppliers tc ensure we operateina
way Lhalis elhically responsible danid enviturnnentally sustainatle on
page 105,

2021 GOAL:
To ensure that legacy suppliers from acquisitions are
fully compliant with our Supplier Code.

Our investors

We aim to have an open relationship with our
shareholders, and shareholders can find
up-to-date information on Group activities on
the Company's website at www.futureple.
com. There 1s a specific Investor Relations section on that site which
includes links to all of the Group’'s public announcements made via
the Regulatory News Service of the London Stock Exchange.
including the Company's latest annual and interim results.

All Directors are available to meet shareholders at the AGM cren
request by contacting the Chairman or Company Secretary. The
Executive Directors hold a series of meetings presenting the interim
and annual results to those shareholders who request a meeting in
order to update them on the progress of the business and gauge their
views following the analyst presentations of the results, and host an
annual capital markets day with various senior members of the
Group management team which has proven to be popular. The
Chairman offers to meet with key shareholders at least annually. and
during 2020 he met or spoke individually with the Company’s key
shareholders. Hugo Drayton consulted with our largest shareholders
as part of our process of finalising the Remuneration Policy which
was approved by shareholders at the AGM in February 2020.

Inorder that all Directors are aware of the views of sharehaolders,
each Board pack includes a note of views expressed by shareholders
during meetings held with Directors or as repeorted to Directors
through the Company’s brokers, together with copies of analysts’
notes, press articles and other relevant information.

Our suppliers

We engage with cur suppliers to address
challenges and drive positive change
through our supplier code of conduct and
processes. We are committed to doing
business ethically and have a zero-tolerance approach to modern
slavery. Future’s Modern Slavery Act staterment for the current and
previous years is published on our corporate website:

2021 GOAL:
Ensure all investors are able to meet with management
or the Board at least twice in the year if they wish to.
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Strategic Report

Non-financial information statement
The Company is required to comply with the new non-financial reporting requirements set out in Sections 414CA

and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006. The table below sets out where in the Annual Report the relevant information
regarding the key non-financial matters can be found.

Reporting Requirement

Policies and standards
which govern our approach

Infermation

Environmental matters

Employees

Human Rights

Social Matters

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery

Description of Principal Risks and
impact of business activity

Description of business maodel

Non-financial KPIs

CSR Policy

Future Playbook,
Diversity Policy,
Whistleblower Policy

Slavery and Human Trafficking Policy

C5R Policy

Anti-bribery and corruption policy,
Whistleblowing policy

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Future strategy wheel

Sources & Definitions

Corporate Responsibility Report pages 50 to 52
Directors’ Report, page 104

Corporate Responsibility Report, page 51
Corporate Governance Report, page 71
and Directors' Report, page 104

Corporate Responsibility Report, page 52

Corperate Responsibility Report, page 50

Directors’ Report, page 104

Risk section, pages 38 to 42 and
Directors’ Report, page 106

Strategic Report, page 21

Strategic Report, pages 6to 7,
Scurces page 33
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Financial

Chief Financial Officer

Review

Rachel Addison

Financial summary

The financial review is based primarily on a comparison of resulls T
the year ended 30 September 2020 with those for the year ended

30 September 2019. Unless otherwise stated, change percentages
relate to a comparison of these two perieds. Organic growth is
defined as the portfolio at constant F X rates (1) excluding acquisitions
and disposals made during FY 2019 and FY 2020 and (i) including
the impact of closures and new launches.

FY2020 FY2019
£m £m

Revenue 339.6 2215
Adjusted operating profit’ 93.4 522
Adjusted profit befare tax’ 90,9 50.3
Operating profit 50.7 26.7
Profit before tax 52.0 12.7
Basic earmings per share (p) 46.4 2.9
Diluted earnings per share {p) 45.4 93
Adjusted basic earnings per share (p) 76.3 501
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (p) 74.7 47.5

1Adjusted items are a non-GAAP measure. For further details refar to the saction on
Alternative Performance Measures on pags 59,

The Directors believe that adjusted resuits provide additional useful
informatian on the core operational perforrmance of the Group, and
review the results of the Group on an adjusted basis internally. See
page 59 for a reconciliation between adjusted and statutory results.

Group revenue increased 53% or £118.1m to £339.6m (2019:
£221.5), achieved crganically (increasae of 8% at constant currency
and actual currency) and through acquisition, with FY2019 and
FY2020 acquisitions net of disposals contributing £105.6m to
revenue growth in the year.

UK revenue growth of 67% or £69.2m to £171.9m (2019: £102.7m)
included £64.0m of revenue from the Tl Media acquisition and
£11.1m from the Barcroft acquisition. UK crganic digital revenues
{which include digital display advertising and eCommerce) grew
strongly by 33%. UK events and magazine divisions were materially
impacted by the pandemic and total UK organic revenues declined
by 7%.

Performance has been strong in the US where growth of 41% or
£48.9m to £167.7m (2019: £118.8m) was boosted by underlying
organic growth of 19% and increased further by the inclusion of
£23.2m incremental year-on-year revenue from the SmartBrief
acguisition.

Media revenue increased by £82.4m or 53% and by 23%
organically despite the cancellation of in-person events due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Organic digital advertising on piatform revenue
grew 16% and organic eCommerce revenue was 58% ahead of
the prior year. Strong digital advertising and eCommerce revenue
growth has been the product of the effective monetisation of Future's
online audience. In the year, Future saw its online audience increase
to 281.8m through the increased scale and diversification of the
Group, with organic audience growth of 48%.

Magazine division revenue increased by 54% to £102.3m (2019:

Revenue

FY2020 Fy2019

Segment £m Segment £m
UK us Tatal UK us Total Crganic
£m £m £m £im £m £rn Yo var Yov var
Digital display advertising on platform 36 68.0 99.6 227 57.8 805 24% 16%
Digital display advertising off platform n.2 29.4 40.6 - 8.5 8.5 378% 19)%
eCornmerce 24.5 54.8 79.3 153 318 472 68% 58%
Events, digital licensing other online 12.5 53 17.8 124 6.3 187 (5% (26)%
Total Media 79.8 157.5 2373 504 104.5 154.9 53% 23%
Print & digital content 70.2 35 73.7 387 41 42.8 72% {30)%

Print advertising, licensing,

publisher services and other print 219 6.7 28.6 136 102 238 20% (27)%
Total Magazines 921 10.2 1023 52.3 14.3 G6.6 54% {29)%
Total revenue 17.9 167.7 339.6 1027 8.8 2215 53% 6%
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“The Group has demonstrated significant
resilience by delivering an exceptional set of
results in challenging circumstances with the

L

£66.6m), following the acquisition of TI Media. Magazine organic
revenue performance declined by 29%, with the decline materially
impacted by store closures as a consequence of COVID-19.

Operating profit

Statutery operating profit increased by £24.0m to £50.7m (2019:
£26.7m) and statutory cperating margin increased to 15% (2019:
12%). Adjusted operating profitincreased by £41.2m to £23.4m
(2019: £52.2m) with adjusted operating margin increasing to 28%
(2019: 24%), reflecting the strong growth of the Media division and
the operating leverage provided by the increased scale of the Group.

Adjusted operating profit and margin

£1000 28%  30%
£30.0 24%
£80.0 25%
£700
20%
£60.0
£ 149
& £s00 15%
£40.0 il
£300 10%
5%
£200
5%
£100
£0.0 0%
FY 2016 Fv 2017 Fy 2018 FY2019  Fy2020

Adoption of IFRS 1€ Leases
The Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases from 1 October 2019, resulting
in the recegnition on the balance sheet of assets and liabilities relating
toleases previously accounted for as operating leases. On transition
the Group has applied the modified retrospective approach, with the
right-of-use asset measured as if IFRS 16 had always applied and the
difference between lease assets and lease liabilities recogrised within
retained earnings. Comparative periods have not been restated.
Adoption of the standard has resulted in an increase in reported
assets of £16.0m, which includes a deferred tax asset of £0.7m,
and anincrease in reported liabilities of £16.8m. with the balance of
£0.8m being recognised within retained earnings at 1 October 2019.
On acquisition of Tl Media, the Group recognised assets of £8.4m.
which includes a deferred tax asset of £0.1m, and net liabilities of
£8.4m on the acquisition balance sheet,
Inthe income statement the operating lease rent expense has been

backdrop of the COVID-19 pandemic”

-

replaced by depreciation of nght-cf-use assets {(£3.7/minthe year)
and net finance costs on lease liabilities (£C.7m). Operating profit

has increased by £0.5m as a result of applying IFRS 16 Leases from 1
October 2019 compared to what would have been reported under IAS
17, due to the charge being split between depreciation and interest,
with a decrease of £0.2m in total earnings. Prior periods have not
beenrestated.

Earnings per share F¥ 2020 FY 2018
Basic earnings per share (p} 46.4 a9
Adjusted basic earnings per share (p) 763 S0
Diluted earnings per share [p) 45.4 93
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (p} 74.7 475

Basic earnings per share are calculated using the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of 95.6m (2019:
82.2m), the increase reflecting the weighted impact of the issue
of 8.2m shares to fund the acquisition of Tl Media, 1.8m to settle
the Mobile Nations deferred consideration, and C.7m to fund the
acquisition of Barcroft Studics, as well as the issue of 3.8m shares to
settle vested share options.

Adjusted earnings per share is based on profit after taxation which
is then adjusted to exclude share-based payments (relating to equity-
settled share awards with vesting periods longer than 12 months) and
associated social security costs. fair value movements on contingent
consideration (and unwinding of associated discount) and on the
currency option, exceptional iterns, arnortisation of intangible assets
arising on acquistions and any related tax effects. Adjusted profit
after tax was £72.9m (2019: £41.2m).

Exceptional items

Exceptional costs amounted to £17.1m (2019: £3.4m) andrelate
largely to acquisition and restructuring related costs in respect

of the Tl Media acquisition (£3.8m and £2.1m respectively),
SmartBrief integration costs of £0.1m, onercus property costs

of £1.8m, impairment of the TI Media legacy finance system of
£0.8m and £1.5m loss on disposals relating to the sale of Amateur
Photographer, WorldScccer and Trustedreviews.com, as required by
the Competition and Markets Authority, as well as UK Cycling Events
Limited and International Craft & Hobby Fair Limited. following the
acquisition of TI Media.
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TiMedia restructuring costs charged in the year are associated
with realised acauisition synergy savings. Onerous property costs
relate to ongring nperating costs and the impairment of right-of-
use assets in respect of the Bromsgrove and Bournemouth offices
which were permanently closed following the onset of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Net finance costs and refinancing

The Group agreed a new £30m multi-currency Revolving Credit
Facility ("RCF") in April 2020. The RCF, which stood alongside
Future's existing debt facilities, was arranged in crder to provide Lhe
Group with additional working ¢capital headroom to maintain the
underlying growth momentum of the combined business, whilst
navigating the impact of COVID-19. This facility has not been required
{and has not been drawn) as at 30 Yeptember 2020 and has bewn
supsequently cancelled.

Net finance income of £2.8m was recoghised in the year (2019:
net expense of £14.2m) which includes a £7.6m reduction in the fair
value of the contingent consideration payable for the SmartBrief
acquisition offset by £1.1m arising on the unwinding cf the associated
discourit on the contingent consideration and a £1.2m loss on the
currency option cbtainad to hedge the Group's currency exposure to
the Mobile Nations earnout (settled in February 2020).

Net adjusted finance costs increased to £2.5m (2019: £2.1m)
which inciudes external interest payable of £1.8m reflecting the
drawdown of the core RCF to fund the TI Media acquisition and
£0.4min respect of the amartisation of issue costs relating to both
the Group's onginal £135m facility and the additional £30m facility
that was agreed during the year. A further £0.8m of interest was
recognised in relation to lease liabilities (offset by £0.1m of interest
income on sublet properties) recognised following the adoption
of IFRS 16. This is oifset by £0.4m of finance income which was
generated whilst the Group was in a net cash position, following the
receipt of placing proceeds ahead of the completion of the Tl Media
acquisition in April 2020 and the Group’s strong cash generation.
Leverage at 30 September 2020 was C.6x.

Taxation

The tax charge for the year amounted to £7.7m (2019: £4.6m),
comprising a current tax charge of £9.8m (2012: £7.0m) and a
deferred tax credit of £2.1m (2019: £2.4m). The current tax charge
arises in the UK where the standard rate of corporation tax is 19%
and in the US where the Group pays a blended Federal and State tax
rate of 28%.

The Group's adjusted effective tax rate is 19.8% (2019: 18%), which
includes a credit of £1.5m arising on the part release of a provision
recognised for uncertain tax positions on the basis that certain tax
risks are now considered less likely to crystallise, Further information
is provided in the accounting policies and note 8.

The Group’s statutory effective tax rate is 15% (2019: 36%), with
the difference between the statutory rate and adjusted effective rate
being the impact of certain exceptional iterns being deductible for
tax purposes and the fair value gain on the SmartBrief contingent
consideration being non-taxable. This is significantly lower than the
FY2019 statutory effective rate, which was increased by the fair value
loss on the contingent consideration recognised inrespect of the
Mobile Nations acquisition in the prior year.

Dividend

The Beoard is recommending a final dividend of 1.60 per share for the
year ended 30 Sepleniber 2020, payable on 16 February 2021 to 3l
shareholders on the register at close of business on 15 January 2021

Cash flow and net debt
Net debt at 30 September 2020 was £62.1m (2019: £40.3m)
reflecting the additional drawdown of debt to fund the Tl Media
acquisition offset by strong cash generation.
During the year, there was a cash inflow from operations of £91.9m
(2019: £53.7m) reflecting the Group's strong trading performance.
Excluding exceptionalitems, adjusted operating cash inflow was
£100.0m (2019: £57.7m). A reconciliation of cash generated from
operations to adjusted free cash flow is included below:

FY2020 FY2012
£ £m

m
Cash generated from operations N9 537
Cash flows related to exceptional items 8.0 40

Settlernent of social security costs on share-based payments 4.0 -

Lease payrments following adoption of IFRS 16 Leases (3.9} -
Adjusted operating cash inflow 1000 577
Cash flows related to capital expenditure (4.0} (4.0)
Adjusted free cash flow 9%6.0 537

Other significant movements in cash flows include £4.0m
(2019: £4.0m) of capital expenditure, repayment of bank loans and
overdrall (nel of drawdowns and arrangement feos) of £75.7m (2019:
net drawdown of £19.3m), payments of £75.8m {(2019; £65.8m) to
fund acquisitions (including disposals), proceeds from the issue of
shares (net of costs of shareissue) of £101.0m {2019: £nil), and the
acquisition of own shares of £8.5m (2019: £nil). The Group paid a
dividend in the year of £1.0m (2019: £0.4m). Foreign exchange and
other movements accounted for the balance of cash flows.

Adjusted free cash flow increased to £96.0m (2019: £53.7m),
representing LU3% of adjusted operaling prulit (2019, 103%),
reflecting the ongoing efficient cash management by the Group
and including a one-off operating cash benefit realised as a result of
completing the T1 Media acquisition mid-month.

Adjusted free cash flow

£96.0m

£000 ——

22 o I —

£80600 ——mMmM——

£m

£53.7m

£400 ——

£20.0

£0.0

FY 2016

FY 2017 Fy 2018 Fy 2019 FY 2020
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Going concern

As part of the year-end process and as required by 1AS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements, the Directors have underiaken a going
concern review. This included reviewing the Group's forecasts and
projections. and assessing the headroom on the Group's combined
existing multicurrency Revolving Credit Facility ("RCF™) of £135
million (following the subsequent canceliation of the £30m COVID-19
facility), and banking covenants after applying several severe but
plausible downside scenarios to those projections as part of the
assessment made for the Viahility Statermnent, provided on page 43.
This assessmentincluded various individual and combined scenarios
both including the impact of the recommended offer for GoCo Group
plcand in the unlikely event that this did not compiete as planned. None
of these scenarios individually threaten the viability of the Group.

Even in the most extreme downside scenario modelled the Group
waould be able to operate well within the leve! of its current available
debt facilities and covenants.

The Directors also note that at the year end the Group had net
currentlabilities of £34.3m (2019: £65.6m). This was primarily driven
by the deferred income balance of £12.9m relating to events and
subscripticns, the FY2020 all staff profit pool which is accrued and
not paid until December 2020 and the nature of the Tl Media business
acquired in the year where the profile of cash receipts from wholesalers
is often ahead of payment of certain magazine related costs.

After due consideration, the Directors have concluded that thereis
areascnable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for at least 12 months from the date

Financial Review

Alternative performance measures
Alternative performance measures (APMs) are used by the Board
to assess the Group's performance, providing additional useful
information for shareholders on the underlying performance of the
Group. These measures are not defined by IFRS and are not intended
to be a substitute for IFRS measures.

The Group presents adjusted operating profit and EPS, which
are calculated as the statutory reported measures stated before
charges relating to share-based payments (relating to equity-settied
share awards with vesting periods longer than 12 months}, and
associated social security costs. fair value moverments on contingent
consideration (and unwinding of associated discount) and oncurrency
option, exceptional items, amortisation of intangible assets arising
on acquisitions, and any related tax effects. EPS is used as a key
performance indicator for the Performance Share Plan. The table
below reconciles the APMs to the statutory reported measures.

Conclusion

The Group has had another transformational year following the

completion of the Barcroft and Tl Media acquisitions and has

demonstrated significant resilience during the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group is well placed to achieve its ambitions for 2021 and beyond.
The Strategic Repert and the Financial Review are approved by the

Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

/QBAJ—-——-* toatey

of this report. For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going Rachel Addison
concern hasis in preparing the consolidated financial statements for Chief Financial Officer
the year ended 30 September 2020. 10 December 2020
FY2020
Decrease in Fair vaiue
Amortlsation fair value of loss on
Share-based Exceptional of acquired contingent uUnwinding currency
Statutory payments tems Intanglbles consideration of discount option Tax impact Adjusted
Revenue (Em) 3396 - - - - - - - 3396
Operating profit (Em) 50.7 55 156 21.6 - - - - 93.4
Net finance [costs)/income (£m) 2.8 - - - (7.6) 13 12 - (2.5}
Other expense (Em) (1.5) - 1.5 - - - - - -
Profit before tax {Em) 520 5.5 171 216 (7.6} 13 12 - Q0.9
Tax (Em) (7.7) - - - - - - {10.3} (18.0)
Profit after tax (Em} 443 5.5 171 216 (7.6} 11 1.2 (10.3} 72.9
Basic earnings per share (pence} 46.4D 5.8p 17.9p 22.6p (8.0)p 1.zp 13p (10.9}p 76.3p
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 45.4p 5.6p 17.5p 22.p (7.8)p 11p 1.2p (10.4}p 74.7p
FY2019
Increase in Fair valua
Amortisation fair value of gain on
Share-based Exceptlonal of acquli contil u ing currancy
Statutory payments ftemns Ir i |deration of option Tax impact Adjusted
Revenue (fm) 2215 - - - - - - - 2215
Operating profit (Em) 26.7 9.0 34 131 - - - 52.2
Net finance {costs)/income (Em) (14.2) - - - n7z 12 0.8) - 27
Other income (£m) 0.2 - - - - - - - (o]
Profit before tax (£m) 27 9.0 3.4 131 n7 12 {0.8) - 503
Tax {Em) {4.6) - - - - - - {4.5) (9
Profit after tax (Em) 81 2.0 34 131 n7 1.2 (0.8) {4.5) 41.2
Basic earnings per share (pence} 99p 1n.0p 41p 159p 14.2p 150 N.oHe (55)p 501p
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 23p 10.4p 3.9p 15.1p 12.5p 14p (0.9)p (5.2)p 47.5p
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Dear fellow sharehoider,

L am pleasen tnintraduce ot Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 30 Septemiber 2020. This report
outlines how the Board has ensured that robust and
appropriate governance procedures are in place to ensure
effective, entrepreneurial and prudent management of the
Company that will deliver the long-term sustainable
success for the benefit of our shareholders and broader
stakeholders. You can read more about our approach to
this on pages 44 to 48,

In this report, we set out our approach to corporate
governance and provide detail on the role of the Board of
Directors, followed by a more detalled focus on the work of
each of the three key Board committees: the Audit and Risk
Committee. the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Together, these give a clear
insight into how we manage corporate governance
principles and processes within the Group.

Our approach to corporate governance
Corporate governance does not mean ticking various
legislative and regulatory boxes, but a thoughtful and
considered appreach from the Board down to the
Company's operations to identify and apply the principles
of correct corporate governance.

Corporate governance essentially involves balancing the
interests of a company's many stakeholders, such as
shareholders, senior management, staff, customers,

Chairman’s
Introduction

Richard Huntingford
Chairman

suppliers. financiers, the Government, and the communities
of which we are part.

Strong governance helps to cultivate a comnpany culture
of integrity and stakeholder alignment, alongside corporate
structures that improve leadership, accountability and
effectiveness. This brings a sharper focus to strategic
objectives and translates into better decision-making which,
in turn. drives competitive advantage and growth, resulting
in stronger corporate performance and a sustainable
business overall - something Future has fully embedded.

The Board has maintained a strong focus during the year
onthe Company’'s short, mediurm and long-term strategic
goals, ncluding the integration of recent acquisitions with
the Board closely monitoring the performance of acquired
businesses against the investment theses prepared at the
time of their acquisition. This ensures that the Company has
the right people in place to deliver onits strategy. During this
period of continued growth, it i vital tn ensiire that the
Company's governance processes are robust in order to
ensure that the business is protected and that all
stakeholders’ interests are taken into account.

The emergence of the global COVID-19 pandemic
provided an unprecedented challenge to all companies, as
boards and senior management sought to understand the
implications of the pandemic for their companies and the
Hetessa y »leps to protect thew businessos and their
stakeholders. The strong governance environment that
Future had in place as the COVID-19 crisis unfoided

“The strong governance environment that Future had
in place as the COVID-19 crisis unfolded undoubtcdly
led to high-quality decision-making which ensured that
we maintained the strong business momentum we had
prior to the pandemic, whilst at the same time — and
most importantly — looking after the intercsts of all
our stakcholders, particularly our employees”



undoubtedly led to high-gquality decision-making which
ensured that we maintained the strong business
momentum we had prior to the pandemic, whilst at the
same time — and most importantly — looking after the
interests of all our stakeholders, particularly our employees.
Further detail of how the Company responded to these
unprecedented times is set out throughout the report and is
summarised on page 49.

Culture and values and people

QOur effective governance has fostered a streng company
culture which is underpinned by a set of values of how we
behave that serve as guardrails to ensure that everyone
stays focused en delivering our strategy, whilst staying true
to who we are. The Board recognises the importance of the
Company’s culture in achieving its goals (“results matter.
success feels good™), and has a key focus on setting this
culture. and ensuring that the necessary resources are in
place to allow our people to do the best jobs they canin
delivering the Company’s strategy.

The Board is kept up-to-date on key issues regarding
employees by the inclusion in Board packs of an HR
Dashboard, with the Chief Operating Officer or HR Director
attending Board meetings to discuss matters relating to
people and culture. The two main focuses of the pecple and
culture team this year has been ensuring the overall welfare
of our employees throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, as
well as ensuring that those who have joined the Future
family as a result of recent acquisitions are fully aligned with
the culture of the Company. The Board is satisfied that the
approach toward engagernent with the workforce described
inthe Corporate Responsibiity Report on pages 50to 53is
robust. This will be kept under review. As described on page
102 inthe Remuneration Report, the pension contribution
rates for the Chief Executive are not, at the date of this
report, fully aligned to that available to the workforce,
although future reductions have been confirmed.

The Board has a number of opportunities to consider
cultural metrics, particularly in relation to its business as
usual reporting on people, our audience and during cur
reviews of our key risks. Our culture is embedded in
everything we do at Future and when | visited sites
(pre-pandemic ) and engage with colleagues | am proud to
see how colleagues embrace and understand this. You can
read more abeout this on page 50 to 53.

Board changes during the year

Meredith Amdur was appointed as an independent
Non-Executive Director on 6 February 2020 and has
in-depth knowledge and understanding of the US media
market and experience of digitally-led environments, along
with a strong network in North America.

Penny Ladkin-Brand stepped down from the position of
Chief Financial Officer, to assume the role of Chief Strategy
Cfficer on 1 June 2020 following completion of the Tl Media
acquisition, at which time Rachel Addison joined the board
as Chiet Financial Officer,

Corporate Governance

Board changes since the year-end

Mark Brooker was appointed as an independent
Non-Executive Director on 1 October 2020. Mark has Board
level public listed company experience combined with
platform-based expertise, and a successful track record
across a variety of operational, strategic and financial roles.

Stakeholders

Consideration of the Group's full range of stakeho!ders,
including our people, investors, our audience, strategic
partners, and suppliers, continued to be an integral part of
the Board's discussions and decision-making. An overview
of the Board's engagement activities with each of cur key
stakeholder groups can be found on pages 44 to 48 of

this report.

(e et

Richard Huntingford
Chairman of the Board

Compliance with the 2018 Code

The Company confirms that it has complied in full with the
provisions of the 2018 Code throughout the financial year.

BOARD LEADERSHIPS AND COMPANY PURPOSE

Promoting the long-term
sustainable success of the Company

Generating value for shareholders ... .

Contributing to Wider SOCIELY .....ooceumssnen e

Purpose values and strategy and
how these and our culture are aligned

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
Roles and responsibilities

COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND EVALUATION

Nomination Committee Report

Board evaluation

AUDIT, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Audit and Risk Committee report

REMUNERATION

Annual Statement by the
Remuneration Committee Chair

Remuneration at a glance and in context..

Annual Report on Remuneration

Page 70
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Governance Framework

Stakeholders

The owners of the Company and the other stakeholder groups to whom the Board is responsible.

Board
The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of the Group and for ensuring leadership within a framework of
effective controls, The key roles of the Board are:

« setting the strategic direction of the Group;
= oversering implementation of the struleyy Ly erisuiing that the Croup is cuitably regsourced to arhisve its strategic aspiralions;

« providing entrepreneurial leadership within a framework of prudent and effective cantrols which enables risk to be assessed and
managed,

« ensuring that the necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Group to meet its objectives;
« reviewing the Group’s culture supported by its values; and

= other matters reserved for the Board can be found on the website at
https:/finvestor.futureplc.com/investors/schedule-of-matters/

Chairman Chief Executive Senior Independent
o : . ‘ Director
+ Primarily responsible for overall « Responsible for executive
operation, leadership and management of the Group « Provides a sounding board to the
governance of the Board. as a whole Chairman.
» Leads the Board, sets the agenda « Delivers strategic and commercial - Leads the appraisal ot the
and promotes a culture of open abjectives within the Board's stated | Chairman's perforrmance with the
debate between Executive and risk appetite. other Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors. Ensures,
that there is a focus on Board
succession plans to maintain
continuity of skilled resource.

. . . . ually.
« Builds positive relationships with all annuaily

the Group's stakeholders. « Acts as intermediary for other
Directors, if needed

» Available to respond to sharehoider
concerns if contact through the
normal channels is inappropriate.

« Provides advice and actsas a
sounding board.

« Ensures effective communication
with our shareholders.

Non-Executive Directors
« Contribute to developing our strategy.
« Scrutinise and constructively challenge the performance of management in the execution of our strategy.

« Bting their diverse expertise to the Board and Board Committees.
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Corporate Governance

Board and Board Committees meeting and attendance

Nomination Audit and Risk Remuneration General

Board' Committee Committee Committee meetings?

Richard Huntingford 8(8) 3(3} - - 2(2)
Zillah Byng-Thorne 81(8) E - - 2{2)
Rachel Addison? z2{2) - - - 01{0Q)
Meredith Amdur¢ 5(5) 1(1) - - 01{Q)
Hugo Drayton 8(8) 3{3) 3(3) 6 (6) 1{2)
Penny Ladkin-Brand® & (6] - - - 1(2)
Alan Newman 8(8) 34{3) 3(3) 6 (6) 1(2)
Rob Hattrell 8 (8) 343 3(3) 6 (6) 2(2)

1. tn addition to the eight Beard meetings, four Board calls were held to discuss business matters that the Chairman and Group Chief Executive declded should be considered by the Board.
2. All Directors recelved papers for all meetings. Where Directors were unable to attend a meeting they had the opportunity to commentin advance and received a briefing on any decisions taken.
Hugo Drayton, Penny Ladkin-Brand and Alan Newman were unable to participate in the General Mesting held in November 2019 due to prior business commitments.

3. Rachel Addison was appointed to the Board on 1 June 2020.

4._Meredith Amdur was appointed to the Board on 6 February 2020.
5. Penny Ladkin-Brand resigned from the Board on 1June 2020.

&. In addition to the scheduled meetings, the Senlor Independent Director and the Non-Executive Directors meet once a year without the Chairman present in arder to appraise his perforimance,

Principal Board Committees

Audit and Risk Committee

= Oversees and monitors the Company's
financial staternents, accounting
processes and audits {internal and
external).

= Ensures that risks are carefully identified
and assessed, and that sound systems
of risk management and internal control
are in place.

« Reviews miatters relating to fraud and
whistleblowing reports received.

Remuneration Committee

= Reviews and recommmendis the framework
and policy for the remuneration of the
Chairman, the Executive Directors, the
Company Secretary and senior executives
in alignrment with the Group's reward
principles.

« Considers the business strategy of the
Group and how the remuneration policy
reflects and supports that.

= Reviews workforce remuneration and
related policies and alignment of
incentives and rewards with culture, to
help inform setting of Directors’
remuneration policy.

« Consults with shareholders on the
remuneration policy.

SEE PAGE 74 FOR MORE INFORMATION

SEE PAGE 80 FOR MORE INFORMATION

| Nomination Committee

+ Reviews the structure, size and
composition of the Board and its
Committees.

« ldentifies and nominates suitable
executive candidates to be appointed to
the Board and reviews the talent pool.

« Considers wider elements of succession
planning below Board level, including
diversity.

SEE PAGE 70 FOR MORE INFORMATION

Executive Leadership Team

Considers Group-wide initiatives and priorities. Reviews the implementation of operational plans. Reviews changes to policies and
procedures and facilitates the discussion of the development of new projects. Reviews and prioritises principal risks.

Board standing committee

Disclosure Committee which oversees the Compainy's compliance with its disclosure obligations.

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 f 65



w
hid
o
et
u
a
]
0
-
<}
T
=
o
[=}
=1]

Board of Directors
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Richard Huntingford

POSITION: independent
Non-Executive Chairman
NATIONALITY: British

APPOINTED: December 2017 and
as Chairman in February 2018

Zillah Byng-Thorne
POSITION:

Chief Executive

NATIONALITY: British

APPOINTED: November 2013 and
as Chief Executive in April 2014
A

Rachel Addison
POSITION:

Chief Financial Officer
NATIONALITY: British
APPOINTED: June 2020

Meredith Amdar
POSITION:

Independent Non-Executive
NATIONALITY: American

APPQINTED: February 2020
AR

Key skills and experience:

* Provides strong leadership of
the Board in fulfilling its role of
overseeing the development and
delivery of Company strategy

= Ensures healthy debate and
appropriate support for, and
challenge of, executive
management in their defivery of
strategy by Non-Executive
Directors

» Provides leadership in
stakeholder relations

External appointments:
Non-Executive Director and
Chairman Designate of Unite
Group ple. Non-Executive Director
of JPMorgan Mid Cap Investment
Trust plc and The Bankers
Investment Trust pic. Richard had
a 20-year career at Chrysalis plc
and was CEQ from 2000 {0 2007,
following which he was Chairman
of Virgin Radio until its sale in
2008. More recently, he has been
Non-Executive Chairman of
Crown Place VCT plc from 2012 to
2020 and of Wireless Group plc
(formerly UTV Media pic) from
2012 to 2016 and Non-Executive
Director and Chairman of Creston
plc from 2011to 2016.

Education: Richard is a
chartered accountant {(FCA),
having qualified with KPMG.

66 { FUTURE PLC

Key skills and experience:

+ Hag a strong track record in
developing and delivering
against successful strategy

« Focus on driving operational
excelience

+ |s a proven people manager,
identifying and develaping
talent at senior level

External appointments:
Non-Executive Director of GoCo
Group plc, Flutter
Entertainment plc and THG
Holdings plc. She was Chief
Financial Officer of Trader Media
Group (owner of Auto Trader)
from 2009 to 2012, and interim
Chief Executive Officer from
2012 1o 2013, Before this, Zillah
was Commercial Director and
Chief Financial Officer at Fitness
First Limited and Chief Financial
Officer of the Thresher Group.

Education:

Zillah is a chartered
management accountant
{CIMA) and qualified treasurer
{ACT). She has an MAin
Management from Glasgow
University and an MScin
Behavioural Change from
Henley Business Schaol.

Key skills and experience:

+ Strong financial and
commercial expertise

+ Wealth of finance experience
in large listed multinationals

External appointments:
Rachel was previously Tl
Media's Chief Finance Officer.
Before that she was managing
director of Trinity Mirror's
Regional Media division and
CFO/CO0 and executive board

mermber of Local World Limited.

Education:

Rachel is a chartered
accountant and holds aBScin
Economics from Loughborough
University.

Key skills and experience:

» Editorial and publishing
content

« Digital

* Technology platforms

+ Advertising and brands

External appointments:
Meredith is currently Chief
Executive Officer of Rhetorik, a
teading data supplier to
technology vendors. She was
previously President and CEQ of
Wanted Technologies, 2
Canadian listed recruitment
data analytics provider, and has
held executive roles with
Microsoft, Deloitte and DirecTV.

Education:

Meredith holds a BA from the
University of North Carolina in
limternational Studies, an MSc
from the London School of
Economics in Politics and an
MBA in Business Administration
and Management from Cornell
University.
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Mark Brooker

POSITION:
Independent Non-Executive
NATIONALITY: British

APPOQINTED: October 2020
A®

Hugo Drayton

POSITION: Senior
Independent Non-Executive
NATIONALITY: British

APPCINTED: December 2014
A(®n

Alan Newman
POSITION:

Independent Non-Executive
NATIONALITY: British

APPCOINTED: February 2018
A@®

Rob Iattrel}

POSITION:
Independent Non-Executive
NATIONALITY: British

APPOINTED: October 2018
A®

Key skills and experience:

» Board roles, Executive and
Non-Executive, in public
companies

* UK and International
consumer and B2B businesses

» Digital platforms

External appointments;
Currently Nen-Executive
Director at AA plc, Equiniti
Group plc and William Hill ple.
Mark was previously Chief
Operating Officer of Trainline
(formerly thetrainline.com)
where he had responsibility for
the UK and International
consumer and B2B businesses,
including the Marketing and
Product functions. Mark joined
Trainline from Betfair where he
also held the role of COO.

Prior to this, Mark spent 17
years ininvestment banking
advising UK companies on
equity capital raising and M&A,
latterly as a Managing Director
at Morgan Stanley.

Education:

Mark holds a Master’s degreein
Engineering, Economics and
Management from Cxford
University.

Key skills and experience:

* Advertising and marketing.
technology, customer
behaviour, media, executive
leadership, business
development.

External appointments:
Hugois a trustee of the British
Skin Foundation and is a regular
contributor to trade press and
publishing conferences. He
served as CEO of the advertising
technology business Inskin
Media from 2009-19. Prior to
Inskin, he spent two years as
CEO of behavioural targeting
specialist, Phorm, following two
years as European Managing
Director of Advertising.com. He
spent 10 years at The Telegraph
Group, as Group Managing
Director, and previousty as
Marketing & New Media
Director. He has also chaired the
British Internet Publishers’
Alliance.

Education:

Hugo holds a BA in Latin
American Studies & French
from University College of
London.

Key skills and experience:

« Corporate finance, accounting
and audit, executive
leadership, investor relations.
media, telecommunications
and technology, public
company leadership and
governance, strategy and
M&A.

External appointments:
Alan is Chief Financial and Chief
Operating Officer of Ebiquity plc
and Chairman of the Freud
Museum Lendon. He was Chief
Financial Cfficer of YouGov ple
from 2008 to 2017 and before
that was a Partner at Ernst &
Young Business Advisory
Services and at KPMG
Consulting. where he worked
mainly with clients in the media,
telecommunications and
technology sectors. He
previously held corporate
management roles at Pearsen
pic and MAI plc (now United
Business Media).

Education:

Alan is a chartered accountant
and has an MA in Modern
Languages (French and
Spanish) from Cambridge
University.

Key skills and experience:

* Digital platforms, eCommerce
and online sales, retail and
customer behaviour,
technology, business
development, executive
leadership.

External appointments:
Vice President, eBay UK, where
he leads cne of eBay's strongest
markets worldwide. Previously
at Tesco, Rob was most recently
responsible for the
supermarket’s General
Merchandise business across
the UK and Central Europe. He
has also held the position of
Partner in the global retail
practice at Accenture.

Education:

Robk graduated from Oxford
University with a degree in
Geography.
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Board activities

Feocus area Key stakeholders

Activilies

« Applying the Board's strategic understanding of
geopoiitical and economic nsks in international markets
to the Cormpany’s challenges and opportunities.

« Considering acquisitions and divestments as identified
ancl deterrine appropriate Course.

» Monitoring the performance of the Company against
agreed strategic objectives, including progress against
acquisition theses,

Strategy @ Our pecple
and
operatlon; @ Our audience
(see Strategic )
Report )
starting on Qur commerciat
page 4) partners
@ Our suppliers
W Qur investors
Leadership, m Qur people
people and ‘
culture .
{see page 50} W Qur investors

kink to strategic pricrities

» Diversifying our
audience

» Scalable platform
» Continued
diversification of

content monetisation

+ Ongoing investment

e

s Receiving an update on ermployee views and
engagerment

« Ensuring the Company remains at the forefront of
developing and embedding best practice in responsible
business behaviour.

« Maintaining and enhancing Future's culture and values
and key policies and procedures and ensure these are
rolled out to existing and acguired businesses.

« Reviewing whistleblowing statistics, details of cases raised
through the Speak U provision and related independent
investigatons.

» Continuing to monitor senior executive talent
managerment and development plans to provide
succession for all key positicns.

Finance @ Our audience » Reviewing and approving The Group budyel.
[see Strategic » Reviewing financial Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
Report on Our commercial )
page 4 and 4’1{\}3 partners = Appraving full year results, half year results, trading update
Cinancial and the Annua! Report
Review on @ Our suppliers * Reviewing the Group's dividend policy.
age 54
Pad ) « Reviewing the key risks to the Group and the controls in
) fi ir mi .
% Our investors place for their mitigation
» Considering and maonitoring the Group's risk appetite and
principal risks and uncertainties.
« Approving the viability and going concern statements.
« Reviewing and approving the tax strategy.
Governance % Our people « Monitoring and reviewing the Company's approach to
[see page corporate governance, its key practices and its ongoing
60 of the @ o i compliance with the 2018 Code.
ur suppliers }
Sovemance « Reviewing the results frorm the internal Board
eport] effectiveness evaluation.
m Ourinvestors « Approving updsted Committees’ terms of reference.

» Continuing ta keep key policies updated and monitor
ongoing compliance

s Receiving and considering feedback from shareholder
engagement

« Raviewing and approving the Modern Slavery statement

+ Ongoing investent

+ Scalable platform

= Continued
diversification of
content monetisation

» Ongoing investment

» ONgoing investrnent
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Board evaluation

The Directors completed a detailed Board performance evaluation
guestionnaire as part of the annual performance evaluation process.
Given the recent appointment of two additional Non-Executive
Directors and a new Chief Financial Qfficer, the Board considered that
an external evaluation would be more beneficial in 2021 ance the
newly appointed Directors are more firmly established, and that the
2020 evaluation should therefore be carried out internally.

Each guestionnaire was analysed and a summary of the results and
the Board's performance was presented to the Board for discussian.
The Board considers this exercise to be of significant value, and focus
is placed on reviewing the quality of information provided to the
Board at the Board's discussions, the effectiveness of the Board, the
composition of the Board, including the skillset of the various
Directors, highlighting whether there are any gaps in the breadth and
depth of the Board that should be addressed by the Nomination
Committee as part of its succession planning. and to ensure that the
Board is best placed to deliver on its strategic goals and ensure the
long term sustainable success of the Company.

The Board determined that, going forwards, a performance
evaluation should be carried out by an external facilitator once every
three years, as required by the 2018 Code, with the first performance

Corporate Governance

Summary of performance evaluation

Following an internal performance evaluation carried out in 2019, the
following main cbjectives were identified for 2020, together with
steps taken to address them.

In 2020, an internal performance evaluation was again carried out,
by way of questionnaire, Identifying areas of strength and weakness.
The questionnaire was structured to provide direct comparison with
the previous year, allowing the Board to identify improving or
declining trends and menitor the effectiveness of the steps taken to
address the previous year's findings. The 2020 performance
evaluation, which was discussed at the September 2020 Board
meeting, concluded that the Board is highly engaged with strong
shareholder focus and clear alignment to vision and strategy. making
for constructive and challenging debate. Thereis a culture of open
communication. mutual trust and respect for each other’s opinions
and industry knowledge. The Board also agreed on the following
actions for the forthcoming year:

2020 evaluation

Objectives for 2021 Steps to be taken during 2021

Utilising our skills « The Board's contribution is dependent

evaluation to be conducted by an external facilitator nc iater than

2021.

2019 evaluation

Objectives for 2020

Steps taken during 2020

Further diversity

on Board would be
welcome {especially
US media and UK
PLC experience).

» Appointment of Meredith Amdur and
Mark Brooker.

Board to take

moare proactive

role in succession
planning and
talent development
at ELT level, and
formalise approach
to workforce
engagement.

« The approach to succession planning
was reviewed during the year.

» The Board asked the Nomination
Committee to review the talent
development pians for the ELT.

« The Board agreed its approach to
workforce engagement (see page 45
for more information).

Review the scheduie
of Board and
Committee meetings
to allow for fuller
discussions.

« The meeting schedule was reviewed
and revised,

Promote
opportunities for
formalftechnical
training and ensure
that regular updates
are provided on
technological

and business
developments.

« When a specific training need is
identified, where appropriate, such
training is delivered by the topic being
included at a Board meeting so that
all Directors can benefit. Alternatively,
training is delivered by way of formal
presentations, individual meetings and
site visits in order to learn more about
a particular inftiative or project.

» Routine paper on horizon scanning.

matrix as part of our
Board succession
planning.

on its ability to add strategic relevance,
diversity of perspective and governance
expertise. The Board will continue to
evolve its skills and diversity mix,

Reorganisation
of our Board
Committees and

- their remits.

« To make certain changes to
membership of our Beard Committees.
The aim of these changes is to make
the best use of Board talent.

Reviewing our
stakeholder
engagement
mechanismsin
relation to the 2018
Code,

« The interests of our stakeholders are
central to the way we operate as a
company. The Board will review the
ways in which we engage with them to
ensure that they facilitate dialogue and
that the interests of our stakeholders
are always considered in our decision
making.

Continuing to set
and monitor our
corporate culture.

« The Board will continue to ensure that
the policy, practices and behaviours
throughout the business are aligned
with the purpose, values and strategy of
Future.
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Nomination Committee

introduction from

Members Since Nomination Committee
Richard HURGNGTOrd. . 2017 Chairman:
[Chair) During the year, the Nomination
Meredith AMdur .. 2020 Image removed Committee has continued its focus on

Mark BrooKer ...
Zitllah Byng-Thorne
Hugo Drayton.......
Rob Hattrell....

2020 (From Oclober 2020}

The Cormpany Secretary, or nominee, acts as secretary
to the Commiltee.

Details of individual Directors” attendance can be
found on page 65.

Key objective of the Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee supports the Board in
Executive and Non-Executive succession planning.
Our key objectives as a Nomination Committee are:

* To make sure the Board has individuals with the
necessary range of skills and knowledge and
diversity of experiences to lead the Company.

« To ensure that it 1s ettective in discharging ils
responsibilities and overseeing appropriately all
matters relating to corporate governance.

Key responsibilities

« Ensure succession plans are reviewed,

» Improve diversity on the Board and in the pipeline
for senior management roles.

» Further strengthen the senior management team.

Key actions from 2019/20
¢ Board and Committee compaosition
» Board succession planning

Priorities for 2020/21

» Monitor Board composition for alignment of relevant
skills, expetience and divetsity to Company strateqgy.

s Approve the Board Diversity Policy.

« Qversight of the ELT's development and succession
planning.

the skillset of, and succession
planning for, the Board. The
Committee’s first task was to
complete its search for an additional
Non-Executive Director with relevant
US medhia experichee which led to the appaintment of Mared|lh
Amdur on 6 February 2020.

Skills matrix

During the year, the Nemination Committee again reviewed and
analysed the composition of the Board and the specific skills and
attributes that each Director brings to the Board. A skills matrix,
aligned to the Company’s strategy for long term sustainable success
has been developed, and each Director assessed against it.
Following this review, the Committee identified the need for an
additional Non-Executive Director with public company board
experience and knowledge and understanding of digital pfatform-
based businesses. Following a search process, this led to Mark
Brooker being appointed to the Board on 1 October 2020.

Succession planning

The Committee, on behalf of the Board, regularly assesses the
balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, and the
composition of the Board in terms of skills, experience, diversity and
capacity.

For the appointments of Meredith Amdur and Mark Brooker,
Heidrick & Struggles were appointed o lead the search for the new
Non-Executive Director. Heidrick & Struggles do not have any other
contiectivn wilhy 2y of the Dircetors, or the Company. Working with
the Committee, Heidrick & Struggles developed a candidate
specification and a drew up a shortlist of suitable candidates for the
additional Non-Executive Director role, sach of which was subject to
athree stage process including interviews with all the Board
members.

The Chief Executive and Executive Leadership Team (ELT)
succession planning is a particular focus of the Committee. Whilst
the Committee and Board hope very much that the current Chief
Executive. Zillah Byng-Thorne, will continue to lead the Company for
the foreseeable future, the Committee felt it would be prudent to
engage an executive search firm, Russell Reynolds, to perform a
desk-top review of the external Chief Executive talent pool. In
addition, the Committee has continued to monitor the ELT and
senior management talent poo! to ensure that succession planning
for business-critical roles is proactively reviewed. The Board
considered the implications of the new requirements relating to the
development of a diverse pipeline for successicon for the Board and
the ELT contained within the 2018 Code.
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Director induction programme example

Corporate Governance

We have a detailed Director induction programme which all new Board members participate in.

Training on ethics
and other topics

Briefed on outcomes
of most recent
effectiveness

review

Meeting with
investors

Meeting with
colleagues during
site visits

Board diversity policy

Our objective of driving the benefits of a diverse Board, senior
rmanagement team and wider workforce is underpinned by our
strong culture of diversity and inclusion. The Board is developing a
Diversity Policy. which is intended to be approved during 2020/21
and will be available on our website. The Policy will ensure that it
remains an effective driver of diversity in its broadest sense, having
due regard to gender, ethnicity, social background, skillset and
breaclth of experience.

Diversity and inclusion have continued to be promoted across the
business with a number of initiatives, ncluding education and
capacity building, resource groups. talent acceleration and
development and leveraging data and analytics to help achieve our
ambitions. You can read more about the work that has been done in
this area and the benefits they bring to the Group on page 51.

The Commuttee has focused on these areas for a number of years
and will continue to consider the various diversity facters set outin
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (the 2018 Cade) and the
Hampton-Alexander and Parker Reports appropriately. We have
37% female representation on the Board, You can see more
information on the gender split across the Board, senior
management team and the Group as a whole on page 51.

Committee performance and effectiveness

The Commitiee’s performance was evaluated as part of the internal
effectiveness survey, as described on page 69. The review was
completed by all Committee members and no issues arose.

Meeting senior
executives

Site visits
{COVID-19
permitting)

Information
on the Group
budget and
strategy

Last Annual Report

Independence

During 2019720, the Committee reviewed the balance of skills,
experience and independence of the Board. For Non-Executive
Directors independence in thought and judgement is vital to
facilitating constructive and challenging debate in the boardroom
and is essential to the operational effectiveness of the Future
Board and its committees.

The Committee is satisfied that the external commitments of
the Board's Chairman and members do not conflict with their
duties as Directors of the Company.

After the year-end, the Committee also considered the
Directors proposed for re-electicn by shareholders at the AGM.
Following discussion of the skills and contribution of each Director,
and in conjunction with the Board perfocrmance evaluation
conductedin September 2020, the Committee suppeorts the
proposed re-election of all Directors standing for re-election (or
election) at the AGM in 2021. In line with hest oractice, each
Committee member was excluded from approving the proposal
for their re-election (or election).

f&.\.w;lw—ug@

Richard Huntingford
Chairman
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Q&A with

Meredith Amdur

What
attracted you
to Future?
Great executive
leadership, its
arnbitiveg aind its
fundamental
platform and
content assets.
Future is the
media company I'd always hoped would
amerge - being truly technology and data
driven, without de-valuing editorial and
economically shrewd by building strong,

image removed

non-commoditized vertical specialised niches,

What skilis do you bring to the
Board and why do you think they
are important?

A breadth of international, industry and
functional experience relevant to the unique
mix of technology and editorial content for
koth B2B and B2C audiences. My background
gives me a uniguely muiti-disciplinary
exposure to the growth opportunities and
challenges Future faces as it continues to
avalve.

What surprised you from the
induction?

The unusually strong alignment amaong bath
internal and external stakeholders, whom |
met as | got to know the Company. Often
when you peer under the hood of a firm, you
find very different perceptions of what needs
to happen and by whom. The induction
revealed a very coherent and consistent set of
valles and aspirations.,

What do you think is the biggest
challenge?

Sustained success creates its own risk of
expectation - continuing to meet and exceed
the market's ever higher bar - but also of
unanticipated external market risks of what
you don't see coming if you're onky focused on
near term operations, That's why working well

ahead to manage and in fact exploit changes
like the end of cookies or the importance of
video is so critical. There is risk in getting tco
comfortable and missing the next opportunity
to create entirely new solutions and lead the
rnarket. Innovation 16 an gvar-usard winrd, hirt
I'm a believer in remaining paranoid about
being blind-sided by the next big thing.

How did COVID-19 impact your
induction programme?

My onboarding had just started as the
COVID-19 alarm bells started to ring so | was
quickly thrust into the real time decisions
required to be made by the Board and
executive in how to manage the health and
viability of the business, supporting
management as it navigated very unsettled
waters, whilst also clearing the acquisition of
T Media. | picked up my induction after the
dust settled and several major earnings and
integration hurdles already had been cleared.
This staggering of the onboarding/induction
experience provided a much more “real-time”
pragmatic approach to the nature of the
guestions | posed and turned onboarding into
more practical support.

What do you think is the biggest
opportunity?

| see massive opportunities in the B2B media
and data services space where content and
intent data are so critical to the direct
marketing formula. Future can continue te
diversify and build powerful two-sided
networks across the data-driven information
and advertising marketspaces, With a
rnanagement rigour unique among
publishing companies, Future is poised to be a
major inforrmation and economic media hub
in North America and globally, thanks to the
power of its two greatest and eminently
scalable strengths: tremendous first party
editorial content across a range of professional
and consumer interest areas, combined with a
“digital and platform first" organizing
principle,
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Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Audit
and Risk Committee, [
am pleased to present its
report for the year ended
30 September 2020.
This report sets out how
the Committee has
discharged its dutiesin
accordance with the UK
Corporate Goverriance
Code 2018 (the 2018 Code) and its key activities and
findings during the year.

We have continued to discuss and challenge the
assumptions and judgements made by management in
the preparation of published financial information and to
oversee the internal controls, including oversight of the
external and internal audit processes.

The Committee has an annual work plan linked to the
Group's financial reporting cycle, which ensures that it
considers all matters delegated to it by the Board. In
addition to its annual work plan, it reviewed the risk
associated with the Tl Media acquisition and considered
the approach to how the internal audit should be
resourced.

This year the Board undertook an internally-facilitated
review of the effectiveness of the Board and Board
Committees, including this Comrmittee, in accordance
with the requirements under the 2018 Code and you can
read more about this on page 69.

image removed

S |

Alan Newman
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee
10 Decernber 2020

r -1
“The Audit and

Risk Committee's
primary objective
is to provide
effective financial

governance”

L. -~

Members
Alan Newman (Chair} .
Meredith Amdur... 2020 (From October 2020)
Huge Drayton.... 2015
Rob Hattrell . i 2018
ftetited from the Committee in Scptember 2020)

Key cbjective of the Audit and Risk Committee

» To monitor the integrity of the Group's financial reporting processes.

» To enisure that risks are carcfully identified and assessed, and that
sound systems of risk management and internal control are in place.

Key responsibilities

» Overseeing the accounting principles, policies and practices
adopted by the Group.

« Overseeing the external financial reporting and associated
announcernents.

« Overseeing the appointment, independence, effectiveness and
remuneration of the Group's external auditor, including the
policy on the supply of non-audit services.

» Conducting a competitive tender process for the external audit
when reguired.

» Reviewing the rescurcing, plans and effectiveness of internal
audit, which is independent from the Group's external auditor.

» Ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control environmernl.

» Monitoring the Group’s risk management processes and performance.

« Ensuring the establishment and oversight of fraud prevention
arrangements and reports under the whistleblowing policy.

« Ensuring the Group's compliance with the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code.

« Providihg advice to the Board on whether the Annual Report and
Accounts, when taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides all the necessary infunnation for
shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business
rmodel and strategy.

Key actions from 2019/20

» Reviewed and challenged the application of accounting principles,
policies and practices to the annual and half year results
announcements and the Annual Report.

» Workead with PwC and Deloitte to plan the transition of
external auditor.

+ Reviewed the effectiveness of internal audit and the Group's
underlying control environment.

s Termns of reference of Committee revised to ensure

compliance with the 2018 Cade.

Priorities for 2020/21

» Continue to moenitor legislative and regulatory changes that may
impact the work of the Committee.

« Cansider the impact of proposed audit industry changes.

» Consider a wider range of topics for Committee training.
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Membership and meetings

During the year, the Committee met three times and met privately with
the external auditor once. Details of individual Directors' attendance
can be found on page 65. In addition to the Committee members, the
Chief Financial Officer, the Group Finance Birector, Group Financial
Controller, and the external auditor attended parts of these meetings
by invitation. The Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive may also
attend meetings. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the
Committee. The Chairman of the Committee holds regular meetings
with the external auditors who have an opportunity to discuss matters
with the Committee without management being present and alsc with
the Chief Financial Officer (who has responsibility and custody of the
internal audit function).

Meetings of the Committee are scheduled close to the end of the half
and full year, as well as before the publication of the associated half and
full year financial reports, so as to ensure the Commuttee is informed
fully, and on a timely basis, on areas of significant risks and judgement.

The Committee received sufficient, reliable and timely information
from management to enable it to fulfil its responsibilities.

The Board has confirmed that itis satisfied that Committee
members possess an appropriate level ofindependence and depth of
financial and commercial, including sectoral, expertise. For the
financial year ended 30 Septernber 2020, Alan Newman was the
member of the Committee determined by the Board as having recent
and relevant financial experience.

Going concern and viability statements

The Committee reviewed the updated wording of the Group's
longer-term viability statement, set cut on page 43. Todo this, the
Committee ensured that the model used was consistent with the
approved three-year plan and that scenario and sensitivity testing
aligned clearly with the principal risks of the Group. Committee
members challenged the underlying assumptions used and reviewed
the results of the detailed work performed. The Cormmittee was
satisfied that the analysis supporting the viability staterment had been
prepared on an appropriate basis. The Committee also reviewed the
going concernstatement, set out on page 52 and confirmed its
satisfaction with the methodology, including appropriateness of
sensitivity testing.

Fair, balanced and understandable
The Committee considered whether the Annual Report is “fair,
balanced and understandable’, in ine with the requirements of the
2018 Code. The Committee members were consulted at various
stages during the drafting process and gave input to the planning
process, as well as having the opportunity to review the Annual Report
as awhole and discuss, prior to the November 2020 Committee
meeting, any areas requiring additional clarity or better balance in the
messaging.
In this respect the Committee focused on:
+ a qualitative review of disclosures and a review of internal
consistency throughecut the Annual Report and Accounts;
* areview by the Committee of all material matters. as reported
elsewhere in this Annual Report and Accounts;
* arisk-comparison review, which assesses the consistency of the
presentation of risks, and significant judgements throughout the
main areas of risk disclosure in this Annual Report and Accounts;

Corporate Governance

= areview of the balance of good and bad news; and
s ensuring it correctly reflects:
« the Group's pesition and performance as described on pages 54
to59;
« the Group's business moedel, as described on page 21.
« the Group's strategy, as described on pages 4 to 37.

Onthe basis of this work together with the views expressed by the
external auditor, the Committeerecommended, and in turn the Board
confirmed, that it could make the reguired statement that the Annual
Reportis ‘tair, balanced and understandable’.

The Committee also received regular updates frem the Chief
Financial Officer on provisions made for litigation and the Committee
considered the apprepriateness of the methodology applied.

Risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for determining the nature and
extent of its principal and emerging risks and the extent of the Group's
risk appetite. and for monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group's systems of risk management and internal control. Further
details of the risk management objectives and process are on pages 38
to 39.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are
addressed inthe Strategic Report and in the table on pages 40 to 42.
The Board has delegated to the Committee the responsibility for
monitoring the effectiveness of the systems of risk management.

Internal control

The Board determines the objectives and broad policies of the Group
and meets regularly, when a set schedule of matters which are required
to be brought to it for decision is discussed. Overall management of the
Group's risk appetite, its tolerance to risk and discussion of key aspects
of execution of the Group's strategy remain the responsibility of the
Board. The Board has delegated to the Audit and Risk Committee the
responsibility for establishing a system of internal controls appropriate
to the business environments in which the Group operates.

Key elements of this system include:

- A clearly defined organisation structure for monitering the conduct
and operations of the business.

- Clear delegation of authority throughout the Group. starting with
the matters reserved for the Board.

- A formal process for ensuring that key risks affecting operations
across the Group areidentified and assessed on a regular basis,
together with the controls in place to mitigate those risks. Risk
consideration is embedded in decision-making processes at all
levels and the most significant risks are periodically reviewed by the
Board. The risk process is reviewed by the Audit and Risk
Committee.

- The preparaticn and review of comprehensive annual budgets.

- The monthly reporting of actual results and their review against
budget, forecasts and the previous year, with explanations obtained
for allsignificant variances.

- The Finance Manual which outlines key control procedures and
policies to apply throughout the Group. This includes clearly
defined policies and escalating authorisation levels for ail
procurement activity including capital expenditure and investment,
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Significant financial reporting judgements

The Committee considered the following issues relating to the financial staternents during the year.
These include the matters relating to risks disclosed in the external auditor’s report:
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Area of focus Reporting issue

Role of the Committee

Acquisition

accounting a number of significant acquisitions during the year.

As outlined on page 2 in the Strategic Report, the Group has cormpleted

At the request of the Committee the Group engaged third party valuations
experts to assist In the preparation of the purchase price aliccation exercises.
for the most significant acquisitions. The Cornmittee has reviewed detailed
papers setting out the acquisition accounting undertaken, including
purchase price allocations and cpening balance sheet fair value assessments,
(including valuation of contingent consideration where relevant) performed
for the Barcroft and Tl Media acquisitions, aswell as the finalisation of the fair
values assigned to the SmartBrief acquisition.

The Group has goodwill and other intangibles totaliing £493.6m on
of goodwill the halance sheet at 30 Septermnber 2020. The level of Intangibles
and long lived has increased significantly fror the priot yes! dug w e Tiivedia
assets acquisition. IAS 36 requires an impairment test to be performed

for goadwill on an annual basis or where there 1s an indication of
fmpairment.

Carrying value

Managernent prepared a detailed impairment assessment, which set out the
Justification of continuing with the existing cash generating units (CCUs} of
Ulturd US in lighkt of she T) badin acap irdion ana tne Signiflean esparisigg
of the Group {for further detalls in respect of this judgement see page 153}
This assessment concluded that no impairment was required for both the
identified CGOUs of the UK and US businesses at 30 Septernber 2020

The Committee chalienged the CGUs identified and the detailed assessment
and the assumptions made, which included:

- Long-term growth rate to perpetulity UK: 3%, US: 3%

- EBITDA margins assumed UK 31.0% to 4£0.0%, US: 26%

- Discount rate (post-tax} 78% (both UK and US)

Refer to note 12 on page T44 for further information in respect of the carrying
value of goodwill and long lived assets.

The Due ta the significant acquisition-related activity a number of iterns
classification {such as acquisition or related integration and restructuring costs)

The Cornmittee reviewed and challenged information provided by
management explaining the nature and rationale for the inclusion of these

of exceptional totalling £171m are considered exceptional In nature. items as exceptional and discussed them with the auditors. Refer to nete 5 on
fterns page 137 for further information in respect of exceptional items.
Tax A provision for uncertain tax positions totalling £5 6m was recognised The Committee discussed the net release of aspects of the provision for
in 2019. In tha year £1 5m has heen released to the income statement uncertain tax positions, noting developments in the Group's transfer pricing
as particular areas of uncertainty have been resolved or reduced policies and tax autherity engagement in FY 2020 and the reduction in the
An additional £0.4m has been recognised in respect of acquired perceived level of risk associated with aspects of the provision that had been
uncertain tax positions The provision recognised on the balance recognised previously.
sheet is now £4 5m. The main risks that continue to be provided for
are transfer pricing in both the US and the UK. The transfer pricing The Committee therefore agreed with the recommendation to reduce the
risk arises because the group has material INntra-group transactions levet of provision after applying the measurement principles of IFRIC 23.
relating to the cross border licensing of platform technology and . . - .
9 . sorp il . The Committee also discussed the recognition of a deferred tax asset in
brands This risk represents £41m [FY 2019 £4 3m) of the Group's total respoct of Tl Media and reviewed detailed ared b "
e alled papers pre managemen
provision of £4.5en (FY 2019: £5 6m). pec e e etalled papers prep: ¥ menage
as part of the work undertaken on acquisition accounting,
In the year an additlonal deferred Lax asset of £14.2m has been i
. . L - Thase papers set out relevant technical reterences and included forecastls
recognised as part of the TI Media acquisition accounting in respect of N i . N
) ) . . reflecting the profitability of Tl Media as a standalone business.
historic UK tax losses and unused capital allowances. As this was part
Pfthe opening balance sheet taken on from Tl Media there was no The analysis concluded that despite a forecast continued decline in ragazine
impact on the income statement of the initial recognition of this asset. revenues the Ti Media business was still expectad to generate significant
. . . taxable profits (pefore any upside synergies arising as a result of the
The Group utilised £3.6m in the year of previously recognised US tax ) P _( Y p ynerg sl g. N
. K o combined business are considered) and therefore it was highly probable that
losses far which there is a remaining deferred tax asset of £21mon X N 3 N L -
. o the TI Media 'streamed’ profits will be sufficient to utilise the level of asset
the balance sheet aswe pelieve that it is highly probable that these K A . .
. . recognised in the foreseeable future. Therefore the reguirements set out in IAS
will be utilised in the foreseeable future. ) T
12 income Taxes for the recognition of losses as an asset were satisfied.
Provision for The Marketforce business acauired with TiMedia is & print distribution The Committee challenged the provision calculations prepared by
magazine business. Contracts with the newsstand whaolesalers and international rmanagement based on the review of relevant historic and recent returns
returns distributors are on a sale or return basis. The claims window for which experience and data. This demonstrated that the level of provision

returns are permitted can extend to as long as 12 months in respect
of the export market and thesefore a provision is made for estimated
unsgld copies where the date for submitting returns clairms has not
yet passed.

At 30 September 2020 the Group's total provision for returns was
£37)m The provision is calculated based on the latest sales data
and, where not yet available, on latest sales forecasts and market
experience.

The returns provision s allocated against the receivable

ledger balance for each wholesaler / distributor, which is then
accounted for as appropriate in the balance sheet as either a net
debtor or a net creditor,
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recognised was appropriate

Refer to nate (d} of the section Critical judgerments in applying the Group's
agcounting palicies on 133.




Conclusion / Action taken

The Committee agreed with the judgements made by management in respect
of the acquisition accounting undertaken during the year and the presentation in
the Group's results for the year ended 30 September 2020.

Refer to note 28 on page 159 for further information in respect of the acquisition
accounting undertaken in the year.

The Committee agreed that the CCUs used in the assessment (being UK and

Us) continue to be appropriate, particularly in light of the level and swiftness

of integration of TI Media {and historic acquisitions) onto Future's systems and
platform and the interdependency of revenues across the Group, both between its
brands and the Media and Magazine divisions.

The Cornmittee also agreaed with management's conclusion that no impairment

is required on the basis that there is significant headroom on both the UK and US
goodwill and intangibles, even when reasonably possible changes are made to the
undertying assurnptions and inputs.

Tha Committee and management will continue to closely monitor both the level
of headroom on goodwill and other indefinite lived intangibles and whether the
CGUs identified remain appropriate as the Group continues to evolve.

The Committee agreed with the conclusion that these items should be separately
presented within exceptional iterns, given their nature and magnitude, and
excluding them assists the users of the financial statements to better understand
the results of the core operations of the Group.

The Cornmittee agreed with the approach taken to release elements of

the provision for uncertain tax positions that was recegnised in 2012 on the
basis that the risks associated with these elements of the provision are now
considered to be less likely than not to crystallise

The Committee agreed with the recognition of a deferred tax asset as part
of the TI Media acquisition accounting relating to losses and unused capital
allowances.

The Cemmittee and management will continue to moeniter the appropriateness
of these judgements in FY2021 and beyond, considering the Group's activities

and the effect on its tax liabilities, and developments in applicable tax legislation,

accounting standards and relevant guidance, including the newly adopted
IFRIC 23.

See page 127 for mare information inrespect of the impact of IFRIC 23,

The Committee agreed with the level of returns provision recognised by
management, noting that a balanced and prudent approach had been taken in
respect of the level of provision recognised.

Corporate Governance

with larger capital projects. acquisitions and disposals requiring
Board approval. This framework is kept under periodic review.

- Aformal controls framework that defines the key controls and the
specific risk that each of these key controls is designed to
mitigate.

- Appropriately qualified staff in our finance, legal andhurman
resource functions with business continuity plans to ensure that
all key roles have adequate cover.

- Aregular timetable of internal controls reviews that include the
testing of key controls and walk-throughs of processes, reported
to the Audit and Risk Committee.

- Regular formal meetings between the Chief Executive, the Chief
Financial Officer and senior management to discuss strategic,
operationaland financial issues.

The framework of internal contral has continued to operate

throughout the COVID-1% pandemic.

Internal audit

Internal control reviews are conducted by the Group's central
finance function which are presented to the Committee. The annual
internat cantrol review plan is approved by the Committee at the
beginning of the financial year and any significant issues identified
within internal control review reports are considered in detail by the
Committee along with the remediation plans to resclve those issues.
Progress against the plan and actions from previous internal control
review papers are monitcred by the Committee throughout the year.
The effectiveness of the internal audit function is assessed annually
by the Audit and Risk Committee.

There are a number of key financial processes that are reviewed
every year covering the controls over our bank accounts, payroll and
the debtors ledger. In addition to these standing reviews there were
specific reviews conducted at the request of the Committee in FY
2020 relating to the revenue recognition for online advertising
income and to the usage across the business of corporate credit/
debit cards.

Each of the internal control review reports presented to the
Committee in FY 2020 were assessed to have a moderate assurance
level indicating that there were no significant weaknesses or failings
in the control envircnment but that some improvements were
required to enhance the effectiveness of the existing controls. The
Committee and the Beard are satisfied that these systems cperate
effectively in all material respects and with material weaknesses
remediated in a timely fashion.

The Committee regularly considers the level of internat audit
resources to ensure it is appropriate to provide the right level of
assurance over the principal risks and controis throughout the
Group. Following the acguisitions in FY 2020, which have further
diversified revenue streams and added considerable complexity and
scale to the business, the Committee has decided that the Group has
reached a scale where a dedicated internal audit functionis
appropriate and will trial an outsourced provider to conduct internal
controls reviews in FY 2021. The basic framework of conducting
standing controls reviews over key financial process and specific
reviews at the request of the Cormmittee will remain in place and the
outsourced internal audit provider will conduct these reviews
following their appointment and report directly to the Chair of the
Audit and Risk Committee.
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External audit independence

The Committee is responsible for reviewing the independence of the
Company's external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PWC),
agreeing the terms of engagement with them and Lhe scope of their
audit, PwC has a policy of partner rotation, which complies with
regulatory standards, and, in addition, PwC has a structure of peer
reviews for its engagerments, which are aimed at ensuring that its
independence is maintained.

Maintaining an independent relationship with the Company's
external auditor is a critical part of assessing the effectiveness of the
audit process. European Union legislation on permitted non-audit
services came into effect from 17 June 2016 which introduced a
permitted non-audit services fee cap for certain services of 70% of the
average audit fee over a consecutive three-year period. This cap came
inte effect for the Group in the financial year ended 30 September
2020. The Committee has agreed the Group's pohcy on nen-audit fees,
and this was reviewed by the Committee during the year ended 30
September 2020. The Committee also regularly reviews the level of
audit and non-audit fees paid to PwC. The key principles of the policy on
non-audit services are:

The Committee has approved a list of all permitted non-audit
services which are allowed under UK statutory legislation and
complies with the European Union Directive on audit and non-audit
services. Permitted services include audit-related services such as
reviews of interim financial information or any other review of
financial statements required by law to be audited.

The Audit and Risk Committee updated its policy to ensure that
non-audit services listed in appendix B of the FRC's revised Ethical
Standard 2019 are not offered to the external auditor.

Any service that is on the list, if in excess of £100,000. requires the
approval of the Committee.

During 2013/20, the external auditor provided services in relation to
the Group's interim and year end results and Reporting Accountant
services inrespect of the prospectus that was prepared for the Tl
Media acquisition. The external auditor has also confirmed to the
Committee that they did hot provide any other non-audit and additional
services and that they have not undertaken any work that could lead to
their objectivity and independence being compromised.

The nen-audit services supplied by the external auditor can be tound
in note 4 of the financial statements and the total fees incurred for
services which must be provided within the 70% fee cap totalled
£146,000. This was beiow the permitted fees of £150,000 (being 70%
of the average audit fee for the previous three financial years), and so in
compliance with the FRC's Revised Ethical Standard 2019. The
non-audit services primarily relate to Reporting Accountant
procedures inrespect of acquisitions where a prospectus was required
and in each instance the Committee considered and approved the use
of the external auditor for these services. Inthe caseof each
engagement, it was considered appropriate to engage PwC for the
work because of their existing knowledge and experience from prior
Group engagements. The Committee discussed with, and received
canfirmation fram, the external auditor that the audit tearm have not
relied an any of the work performed in the Reporting Accountant roles
undertaken as part of the audit and their objectivity and independence
has been sateguarded.

The lead partner is rotated every five years. Katharine Finn was
appointed as the lead audit engagement partner in 2018.
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Assessment of audit process
The scope of the external audit is formally documented by the auditor.
They Jiscuss the draft proposal with managemenl before it is referrad
to the Commitiee who reviews its adequacy and holds further
discussions with management and the auditor before final approval.
inrespect of the financial year ended 30 September 2020, the
Committee assessed the performance and effectiveness of the
external auditor, as well as their independence and objectivity. onthe
basis of meetings and a questionnaire-based internal review which was
completed by the Committee members and regular attendees to the
Committee. The summary of the resuits of the gquestionnaire has been
reviewed by the Committee.

Audit tender and appointment

Asannounced last year, following A tender process, the Audit and Risk
Cummittes recommended, and the Board agreed lo recortnnem! to
shareholders, that Delcitte LLP be appoeinted to succeed PwC (who had
held office since 1999) as the Company's auditors. However, given the
high level of acquisition integration activities and the impending change
in Chief Financial Officer in 2019/20, the proposed change of auditor
was deferred until the year eriding 30 September 2021. A resolution to
appoint Dejoitte LLP as auditors for the year ending 30 Septermber
2021 is being proposed to shareholders at the Company's AGM to be
held on Wednesday 10 February 2021. You canread more about this in
the Notice of AGM on page 164. The Company has complied with the
provisions of the Competition and Markets Authority's Crder for FY
2020 in respect to audit tendering and the provision of non-audit
Services.

Assessment of the effectiveness of the
Committce

The Cormmittee effectiveness in respect of the year ended 30
September 2020 was evaluated as part of the internal review described
on page 69. The key issues that were identified in the previous year's
assessment were discussed by the Committee to ensure these were
adequately addressed and the Chairman provided an update where
appropriate,

Louking forward

As well as the regular cycle of matters that the Committee schedules

for consideration each year, we are plannming over the next 12 months to:

« Continue to monitor legislative and regulatory changes that may
impact the work of the Committee.

» Consider the impact of proposed audit industry changes.

~» Consider a wider range of topics for Committee training.

The Committee’s report was approved by a Committee of the Board of
Directors on 10 Decermnber 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

3}

Alan Newman
Chairman of the Audit Committee
10 December 2020
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Directors'

Remuneration

Report

Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Hugo Drayton

Members since
Hugo Drayton (Chair)
Mark Brooker ... 2020 ifrom Qctober 2020)

Alan Newman..........2018 (retired from the
Committee in September 2020)

Rob Hattrell s 2018

Other Directors and executives, including Richard
Huntingford (Board Chairman), Meredith Amdur (Non-
Executive Director), Zillah Byng-Thorne (Chief Executive)
and Claire MaclLellan (Chief Operating Officer) have been,
from time to time, invited to attend meetings of the
Committee. The Company Secretary, or nominee, acts as
secretary to the Committee. No individuals are involved in
decisions relating to their own remuneration.

Details of individual Directors’ attendance can be found
on page 65.

Key objective of the Remuneration Committee

Our objective is to have a fair, equitable and competitive
total reward package that supports our vision; and to
ensure rewards are performance-based and reinforce
leng-term shareholder value creation.

Key responsibilities

» Designing the remuneration policy.

« Implementing the remuneration policy.

» Ensuring the competitiveness of reward.

» Designing the incentive plans.

» Setting remuneration for the Executive Directors and
Board Chairman.

= OQverseeing all share awards acress the Group,

Key actions from 2019/20

+ Engaged with shareholders around proposed
Remuneration palicy changes

» Terms of reference of Commiittee revised to ensure

compliance with the 2018 Code

Key actions from 2020/21

+ Ensure the Remuneration Policy is implemented to align
with business strategy and culture

« Continue to meniter rernuneration practice across the
Company as a whole, keeping abreast of market practice

Dear Shareholder,
Unbehalfof the Board, | am delighted to present the Direclors’
Remuneration Report for the financial year ended 30 Septernber 2020.
As in previous years, this report is split into three sections: (@) this
Annual Statement: (b) the Policy Report, setting out the Group's
Remuneration Policy ("Policy”) for Executive and Non-Executive
Directors; and () the Implementation Report, setting out details of
Directors’ remuneration for the financial years ended 30 September
2020 and ending 30 September 2021

Performance and Reward in 2020

The COVID-19 pandemic has disrupted rany people, businesses and
communities in recent months. and looks set to remain a very real
challenge inte 2021 and beyond. Faced with such uncertainty, § weuld
like to start this letter by recognising our brilliant employees across the
globe, who have shown great agility in adapting to new ways of working,
while ensuring that Future has continued to provide new routes to
connect with our communities, and to reach new audiences in
innovative ways. This resilience and hard work has ultimately delivered
another year of stellar financial and operational performance, of which
we should all be proud,

At the onset of the pandemic. Future took decisive action to ensure
the business was sustainable, including the creation of virtual events
and modifying the subscription distribution model to allow audiences
to access contenton all digital platforms. Te safeguard the health and
safety of our colleagues. all staff moved to work-from-home in
mid-March, with increased communication and touchpoints
established — including weekly CEQ letters and virtual town halls, which
included an increased focus on menial wellbeing — to ensure a
continued strong team ethos. Inresponse to feedback around the
increased costs of hame-working, the Group established a work-from-
home stipend for ali employees. while a hardship fund was put in place
for any employees facing financial difficulty due to the pandemic.

As part of the initial cost saving measures, the Senior Management
team and Board volunteered 20% reductions to their salaries and fees
over the period March to May. The reduction in pay was returned to the
Senior Management Team in H2 2020 while the Board agreed te forgo
their loss of earnings. All TI Media employees also took tiered salary
reductions based on reduced hours for a limited period. These
reductions were paid back to all employees. A number of employees
were furloughed across Future and Tl and have since heen offered the
opportunity to return to work, and all temporary reductions in pay have
been topped up. A smallamount of Government support was received
from the UK Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme and from the
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equivalent US Government fund by Future (and by Tl Media pre-
transfer), and this has been fully repaid.

Highlights from our full-year results include strong adjusted diluted
EPS growth of 57% to 74.7 pence per share and an increase in adjusted
operating profit of 79%, to £93.4m._This performance continues to be
underpinned both by investment in our core businesses and cur
strategic acquisitions, to drive further growth. Following CMA approval.
in April Future completed its largest acquisition to date — T) Media —
with strong progress made over the remainder of the year in welcoming
new colleagues, following the TUPE transfer in June, andleveraging
their strong portfolio of brands. The Board is excited by the long-term
prospects of the acguisition, and in particular by the potential for
introducing new revenue models and further expanding the Group's
reach outside the UK.

Reflecting this continued strong financial and operational
performance. the Committee approved maximum bonus payments for
Zillah Byng-Therne, Penny Ladkin-Brand and Rachel Addison, with the
bonuses for Penny and Rachel pro-rated to reflect their respective 8
months and 4 months on the Board in the role of Chief Financial Officer.
50% of the bonuses earned for FY 2020 will be paid in cash, and 50%
will be deferred in Future plc shares for 2 years. Further details are
included cn page 96. A similar, full payout of the Group-wide profit pool
is plannedin December 2020, reflecting our strong belief that all
employees should share in the outstanding perfoermance to which they
have contributed.

Performance conditions attached to PSP awards, made to Executive
Directors in Novernber 2017, were tested to 30 September 2020. Qver
the performance period, the Company’s share price and EPS (each
representing 50% of the award) significantly exceeded the targets set
at grant. Accordingly, these shares vested in full in November 2020.
Further details, including the value of these awards, are included on
page 97.

Asoutlined in last year's report, Executive Directors were granted
awards under the PSP on 25 November 2019 {for Rachel Addison 1
June 2020), representing 200% of salary for the CEO and 167% of
salary for the CFO. These awards will vest, subject to the achievement
of stretching absolute TSR and EPS growth targets (each weighted

Corporate Governance

50%), and are subject to a two-year holding period that follows the
three-year vesting period. Further details are included on page 88.

The Committee is satisfied that overall pay outcomes inrespect of
the year ended 30 Septernber 2020 are appropriate and reflect
Future's continued exceptional financial and operational performance.
The annual bonus outcome for the year reflects another strong year of
profit growth. while vesting of awards granted under the PSP in
Novermber 2017 reflects strong longer-term financial, value creation for
shareholders over the performance pericd. More broadly, the
Committee is satisfied with the Group's decisive response to the
COVID-19 pandemic and the impact this had on the experience of all
key Future stakeholders during the year ~ including shareholders,
employees and customers. The Committee has therefore nat
exercised any discretion in relation to the outcome of the variable pay
schemes. or to overall remuneration levels.

AGM outcome and actions arising

You will recall that following a detailed consultation with majer
shareholders, we submitted our Policy to shareholders at our last AGM,
receiving 83.20% of votes in favour. We were pleased that a significant
majority of sharehclders supperted the revised arrangements, which
aimed to reflect Future's extraordinary growth and cur admission to a
Premium Listing and the FTSE250. The current remuneration
structure remains clear, simple, and appropriately aligned with the
Company's strategy, risk appetite and culture. This direction and clarity
will be further enhanced by a new, all-company Value Creation Plan,
which is fully aligned with shareholders' interests, and benefits every
employee inthe business.

The Committee is pleased to report that a majority of sharehclders
voted in favour of the Implementation Report. Noting that overall
shareholder support was below 80%, the Committee looked into the
votes received and, as noted in 2 19 June 2020 update, understands
that the main reasons for dissent were related to actual CEO
remuneration and the proposed increase in CFO remuneration for
FY 2020. inrespect of actual CEQ remuneration, the Committee notes
that these outcomes were delivered as a resuit of Company
performance over the preceding three years, and in accordance with

Crowth inthe value of a hypothetical £100 holding over the 10 years to 30 September 2020
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the prevailing remuneration policy, as approved by shareholders. In
respect of the CFO's remuneration, these changes are consistent with
the approved Policy and reflect the need to focus and reward our
critical senior talent cver the next phase of the Company’s
development. In conclusion, the Committee considers that the main
reasons for the dissenting vote against the Implementation Report are
addressed by the Remuneration Policy, and that no further actions are
required at this time. We continue to welcorme feedback frorm our
shareholders and, in accordance with our Terms of Reference, will
continue to keep all elements of Executive Director remuneration under
periodic review. Recognising the fast pace of change and continued
success that Future continues to deliver and strive for, we will submit a
revised Rermuneration Policy for shareholder approval at the
forthcoming February 2021 AGM (the rationale and details are
explained below).

Board changes

As announced in October 2019, Penny Ladkin-Brand served as Chief
Financiat Officer through the cormpletion of the acquisition of T Media
after which, on 1 June 2020, she stepped down from the Board and
assumed the role of Chief Strategy Officer. As acontinuing employee.,
Penny retained all interests in outstanding share incentives, which will
remain subject to the original performance conditions and vesting
timeframes, These awards were pro-rated to reflect her new
responsibilities. Details of the adjustment are shown in the table on
page 101

Rache! Addison took on the role of Chief Financial Officer on 1 June
2020, with her remuneration arrangements in line with the prevailing
Remuneration Policy and consistent with those of her predecessor,
namely; a salary of £350,000; a pension contribution aligned with the
majority of UK employees at 6% of salary; a maximum annual benus
opportunity of 150% of salary, which is pro-rated for time served in her
first year; and eligibility for an annual award under the PSP. Rachel was
granted a pro-rated award of 17.222 shares under the PSP or 1 June
2020. which will vest based on the same three-year EPS and absolute
TSR targets set outinlast year's report.

Finally, during the year we were also pleased to welcome two new
Non-Executive Directors to the Future ple Board: Meredith Amdur, with
effect from 6 February 2020; and Mark Brocker, with effect from 1
October 2020. Mark joined the Remuneration Committee from the
date of his appointment. Fees paid to Meredith and Mark are in line with
the fees paid to the other Non-Executive Directors, as disclosed on
page 103, and in accordance with our Policy.

Looking ahead: remuneration in 2021

Future's strategy is to deliver exceptional results: on-going investment
in organic growth, to cement our market leadership positions and
develop lead generation revenues, has been successtully paired with
targeted, value-generating acquisitions. to diversify our content
offering, revenue streams and geographic reach. While the COVID-19
pandemic continues to disrupt, the Board remains confident in Future's
ability to deliver further growth, through effective execution and agility
in our response to the evolving media landscape.

Future's senior management and staff drive the delivery of our
ambitious strategy. and therefore the Committee has considered, at
length, how best to incentivise, motivate and retain Future’s workforce,
for the benefit of all of our stakeholders. Our aim is for colleagues to

remain focused on the execution of the Group's ambiticus long-term
goals, and to be aligned to, and rewarded for, delivering furiher
market-leading results for our investors, while retaining expertise
within the Group in the years ahead.

Reflecting the entrepreneurial and ambitious culture on which
Future’s recent success is based, our proposed solution is the
implementation of a new Value Creation Plan (VCP), in which Future's
employees — including Executive Directors - will participate and share
in the value created for sharehelders {(above a hurdle rate of return)
over the next three to five years. The value and focus of the proposed
VCH s instrumental in harnessing the very best talent, in order to
achieve Future's collective long-term goals.

The Committee engaged with Future's 15 largest shareholders as
part of its consuitation on the proposed VCP arrangements; f wourld like
{o thank those who made time to provide the valuable input which
helped to shape the final design of the plan. We are confident that the
pian represents the best interests of all stakeholders and further
enhances our pay-performance linkage. In addition to the VCP, and
building on feedback received as part of the consultation, we are
propesing a number of further best practice changes to the Policy.
These include: a material increase to in-post shareholding guidelines;
the introduction of post-employment shareholding guidelines aligned
with the Investment Association's Principles on Remuneration; and an
accelerated timeframe for aligning the Chief £xecutive's pension
contribution with the wider workforce. Full details of the proposed VCP
are set out on page 103, with other changes to the Policy set out inthe
Policy Table on pages 86 to 87.

Other decisions in relation to 2021 remuneration

Effective 1 October 2020, the Chief Executive's salary will be
increased by 21% to £575,000, the first review of her salary since 2018.
This increase reflects the Committee's assessment ot Ziliah's
individual performance in role, her leadership in delivering exceptional
results for our shareholders, and more generally the increase in size,
complexity and geographical spread of the Group in recent years.
Further details on the background to this change are included on page
102 of this Report. The Committee observes first-hand the dedication
and time that Zillah gives to her role, and strongly believes that the
increase positions the resulting salary level appropriately against the
market. Refiecting the level of increase, the Committee has agreed that
this salary level will remain fixed for at least the next two years.

Inline with our commitment in the Remuneration Policy approved by
shareholdersin 2020, the Chief Executive’s pension benefit will be
reduced tomatch the benefit of the wider workforce in two stages from
15% to 6% by 2022 (10 10.5% of salary in January 2021 and to 6% of
salary in January 2022). The Chief Financiai Officer will receive an
inflationary pay rise ¢f 1.5% in January 2021, in line with the wider
workforce, whilst her pension contribution wilf remain at 6% of safary,
in line with that available to other Future employees.

The annual bonus will operate on the same basis as last year, with
maximum oppartunities of 200% and 150% of salary for the CEO and
CFO respectively, and performance assessed against adjusted
operating profit. Subject to shareholder approval, the VCP will replace
participation in the PSP for the next three years, adding new clarity and
simplicity to the long-term incentives for the Executive Directors (and.,
indeed., our other employees).

Full details of our approach to executive remuneration in FY 2021 are
included onpages 94 t0 103.
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Workforce pay considerations

The Committee takes an active role in monitoring pay and practices
across the wider workforce, and considers this information when
determining the remuneration of Executive Directors. This included the
US Employee Share Plan programme which is being launched in 2021

You will see more informaticn about this in the AGM notice on page 164,

as the rules are being put to shareholders for approval. Reflecting her
rcle in the Group's People and Culture agenda, the Chief Cperating
Officer, Claire MacLellan, is invited to attend Committee meetings ona
regular basis to provide updates on werkforce initiatives and to offer an
employee perspective on the Committee's decisicn-making process.

This year, for the first time under the revised reporting regulations.
we have disclosed ratics of CEQ pay te the wider population, shown on
page 99. We will monitor the headline ratios — as well as ratios of salary
and pay, exciuding long-term incentives — as part of our overall
deliberations on future executive remuneration, and provide further
commentary on this area in subsequent reports.

Finally, the Committee continues to consider and embrace equality
and diversity in the workforce, Details of our gender diversity across
the Group are provided on page 51, with the Committee noting a
headline reduction in the median gender pay gap for 2019/20. We
remain confident in the Group's long-term commitment to building a
diverse, inclusive and gender-balanced waorkforce, through on-going
initiatives such as the formation of a colleague Inclusion & Diversity
forum, development of internship programmes for under-represented

Remuneration at a glance

Corporate Governance

groups, and a partnership with inclusive Employers, to support the
delivery of a programme of training and education across the Group.
We are pleased with the continued progress made in this area during
the year and look forward te further development over the coming
years.

Conclusion
Itis a huge privilege to collaborate with the talented Executive and
Non-Executive team at Future, Future's restless ambition for
responsible growth continues to create an exciting corporate
environment. This year’'s acquisition of TI Media delivers further
opportunities for diversification and new success, on behalf of Future’s
shareholders, and all its stakeholders.

| would like to thank Future's shareholders, many of whom | have
engaged with this year: above alll would like to pay tribute to the whele
Future workforce, for the positive, caring and creative way they have
faced the multiple challenges of this unprecedented year. The scene is
set for further growth and success.

i —
L
A

Hugo Drayton
Chair of the Remuneration Cornmittee
10 December 2020

This table sets out a summary of how the remuneration policy will apply during FY 2021

Remuneration element

Application of the remuneration policy

The Chief Executive's salary will increase by 21% on 1 October 2020, fixed for a period of two
years. The Chief Financial Officer will receive an inflationary pay rise of 1.5%, in line with the

Base salary
See page 102 for more details

wider workforce, in January 2021.
« Chief Executive £575,000

e« Chief Financial Officer £355,250
Future annual inflationary pay rises for Executive Directors are in line with the wider workforce.

'n line with our commitment in the Remuneration Policy approved by shareholders at the AGM
in 2020, the Chief Executive's pension benefit will be reduced to match the benefit of the wider

Pensions and benefits
See page 102 for more details

workforce. The current {(15% of salary) benefit will reduce to 6% in two stages by January 2022,
There is no change to the Chief Financial Officer’s pension or benefits.

« Chief Executive 15% of salary, reducing to 10.5% in January 2021
= Chief Financial Cfficer 6% of salary (in line with the wider workforce)

No changes to maximum award levels of;
» Chief Executive - 200% of salary

Annual bonus
See page 103 for maore details

« Chief Financial Officer - 150% of salary
Bonus to be paid: 50% in cash in Novernber 2021; and 50% in Future shares, deferred for two years.

The performance measures for FY 2021 are based solely on adjusted operating prefit, adjusting
for any material acquisitions, as required.

New Plan, replacing the PSP, subject to shareholder approval:
One-off award of units rewarding employees with a percentage of any shareholder value

Value Creation Plan
See page 103 for more details

created over the next three to five years, above a hurdle rate of return of 10% per annum.
Units vest based on value created in terms of £ Total Shareholder Return (TSR] and are
converted to Future shares.

For Executive Directors, vested shares shall be required to be held until the fifth anniversary of

the date of grant.

Performance Share Plan
See page 103 for more details

Subject to approval of the VCP, no further awards will be made to existing Executive Directors
under the PSP over the life of this Policy.
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2020 outcomes

Performance Threshold* Target® Maximum? % of maximum
Measure £m £m £m Actual % weighting achieved
Annual Benus

EBITDA 659 67.6 76.0 101.9 100% 100%
Overall 100%
PSP

Adjusted EPS 23.0p - 26.0p 74,70 50% 100%
Share price 400p - 450p 1,505p? 50% 100%
Overall 100%

1Representing 100% of | TIP awards granted in November 2017, visting of which was dependent on adjusted EPS and share price performanee tn.30 Seplenibar 2020. See page 97 for further detatls,

2 Based on the average share price for any S0 day penod from the date of the grant of the award up to and including the last day of FY 2020

3 Awards vest on a straight-line basis between threshold, target and maximum performance. For threshold performance, 25% of the maximum award vests for the annual bonus and PSP respectively.
Adjustments are made to targets for matenial acguisitions, being those that contribute EBITDA of more than 15% of the total Group's EBITDA for the relevant financial year Acquisitions in the year did not
meet this threshold, therefore no adjustment to targets was made (however. 1f an adjustment had been made then the banus would still have paid out in full. due to the leved of performance in the yeary

This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups {(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as
amended). lt also meets the requirements of the UK Listing Authority’s
Listing Rules and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules.

In accordance with the Regulations, the following sections of the
Remuneration Report are subject to audit; the single total figure of
remuneration for Directors and accompanying notes (page 95):
Scheme interests awarded during the financial year (page 97),

Payments to past directors (page 100); Payments for loss of office
(page 100); and the statement of directors’ shareholdings and share
interests (page 100). The remaining sections of the report are not
subject to audit.

The Committee is seeking sharehoider approval for anew
remuneration policy at the 2021 AGM. The principal changes compared
to the previcusly approved policy are identified in the relevant sections
below and relate primarily to the introduction of a new Value Creation
Plan (VCP) as well as a number of best practice features.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Group aims to balance the need to atiract. retain and motivate
Executive Directors and other senior executives of anappropriate
calibre, with the need to be cost effective, while at the same time
rewarding exceptional perforrmance. The Committee has designed a
remuneration policy that balances those factors, taking account of
prevailing best practice, investor expectations and the level of
remuneration and pay awards made generally to employees of the
Group.

In determining the level and make-up of Executive Directors’
remuneration, the Committee carefully considers the following
principles:

= Remuneration packages offered to Executive Directors should be
competitive with those available for comparable roles in high-growth
companies and companies operating in similar markets, cn a similar
scale and with a similar culture to Future. They should be sufficiently
competitive to attract, retain and metivate high calibre Directors to
perform at the highest levels, while at the same time ensuring that
recruitment and remuneration expenditure is not excessive and that
remuneration does not encourage excessive risk-taking.

» The interests of Executive Directors should be aligned with those of
shareholders by ensuring that a significant proportion of

remuneration is linked to Group performance.

« Remuneration packages and employment conditions of Executive
Directors should be considered in conjunction with both those of key
senior managers (Keeping succession planning in mind) and all
employees in the Group, in order to achieve a consistent
remuneration policy across the Group.

« The Committee should retain overarching discretion to adjust
performance-related elements of retmuneration, to ensure alignment
of pay with performance, and that there is no reward for failure —
whether financial or operational.

« Executive Director remuneration should support the strategy, values
and culture of the Group. Pay should be simple and easy to
understand, with ail aspects clear and openly communicated to
stakeholders and in alignment with pay philosophies across the
Group.

The 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code sets out principles against
which the Committee should determine the Paolicy for executives. A
summary of the principles and how the revised Remuneration Policy
reflects these is set out below.
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Principle

Approach

Clarity

Remuneration arrangements should
be transparent and promote effective
engagement with shareholders and
the workforce.

The Committee operates a consistent remuneration approach that
15 well-understood internally and externally. Major shareholders were
consulted on proposed revisions to the Policy.

Simplicity

Rermuneration structures should avoid
complexity, and their rationale and
operation should be easy to understand.

Although the VCP is not commeon market practice, the Committee
believes that the structure of the scheme is simple, providing
participants with a share of value created above an absolute TSR
hurdle. Other elements of remuneration are market-standard.

Risk

Rermuneration arrangements should ensure
reputational and other risks from excessive
rewards, and behavioural risks that can arise
from target-based incentive plans, are
identified and mitigated.

Each year, incentive targets will be set which the Committee believes
are stretching and achievable within the risk-appetite set by the
Board The Cormmittee retains discretion to override formulaic
incentive outcomes In the event that this would produce a result
inconsistent with the Company’s remuneration principles.

All variable incentives incorporate malus and clawback. These
provisions allow the Committee to recluce the cutcoemes, potentially
down to zero, in cases of material financial misstaterment, calculation
error, fraud or gross misconduct. The Committee believes that these
triggers are appropriately wide-ranging and has worked to ensure
they are enforceable.

Predictability

The range of possible values of rewards to
individual Directors and any other limits or
discretions should be identified and
explained at the time of approving the policy.

The Committee maintains clear caps on incentive oppeortunities and
will use its available discretion if necessary. The proposed VCP includes
an aggregate cap for all participants for each tranche.

Proportionality

The link between individual awards, the
delivery of strategy and the long-term
perfermance of the Company should be
clear, Qutcomes should not reward poor
performance.

The Committee ensures performance metrics are cleariy aligned with
the Group's strategy each year, maintaining an appropriate balance
between base pay, short and long-term incentive opportunities.
Targets are set to be stretching but achievable, within the Board's risk
appetite.

Alignment to culture

Incentive schemes should drive behaviours
consistent with Company purpose, values
and strategy.

Incentive schemes are perodically reviewed by the Committee to
ensure they remain consistent with the Group's purpose, values and
strategy.

The proposed VCP is an all-employee scheme, which reflects the
entrepreneurial and ambiticus culture of the Group, and provides
Future's employees with the opportunity to share in the value created
for shareholders over the next three to five years.
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This section of the repert sets out the policy for Executive Directors,

which the Company is asking shareholders to approve at the
February 2021 AGM. It is intended that the revised nolicy will corme
into effect from that date, for a period of no more than three years.

Element

Nates to the Policy table

uperatien

For the aveidance of deubt, in appraving this Directors' Remuneration Policy, authority s
giventothe Company to honour any commitments entered into with clrrent or former
Directors under a previous Policy (such as the vesting or exercise of past share awards).

Objective & link to
strategy

Basic annual
salary

Basic annual salary is paid in 12 equal monthly instalments during the year and is reviewed annually.
When assessing the level of basic annual salary, the Cornmittee takes into account performance, market
conditions, remuneration of equivalent roles within comparable companies, the size and scale of the
business and pay in the Group as a whole.

Benefits

Pension

All-employee
share plans

Performance-
related bonus

Value
Creation
Plan (VCP)

Long-term
share-based
incentive
{PSP}

86 / FUTURE PLC

Current benefits available to Executive Directors are car allowance, permanent health insurance,
healthcare and life assurance. Additional benefits may be offered if deemed appropriate.

The Company shall make a cantribution up to a maximum percentage of basic annual salary.

To recruit, retain and
motivate individuals of
high calibre, and reflect
the skills, experience
and contribution of the
relevant Director.

Toensure broad
competitiveness with
market practice.

To cnaure alignmoent
with the wider
workforce and broad
competitiveness
with market practice.

The Company operates a Share Incentive Plan ("SIP") in the UK which gualifies for tax benefits.
The Committee retains discretion to altow Executive Directors to participate in the SIP on the same terms
as other employees.

Targets are set annually by the Committee, based on:
(i) financial performarice against budget and, at the Committee’'s discretion,
(i) individual subjective performance targets which are determined for each Executive Director.

The Committee retains discretion to set the financial targets based on the performance during the
previous financial year and the hudget for the forthcoming year, and perfermance of the individual
against their specific subjective performance targets.

50% of any performance-related bonus earned will be delivered by way of a deferred share award,
which will vest two years after the award date.

A payment equal to the value of dividends, which would have accrued on defetred awards, may be
made following the release of awards to participants, either in the form of cash or as additional shares.
Payments and awards in relation to the performance-related bonus are subject to malus and clawback
provisions, further details of which are included as a note to the policy table.

One-off award of units rewarding Future employees (including Executive Directors) with a percentage of
additional shareholder value created over the next three tofive years, above a hurdle.

{nits vest based onvalue created in terms of £ Total Shareholder Return (TSR) and are converted to
Future shares.

The VCP comprises three equal tranches, based on perforimance measured over three periods, from

1 October 2020 to: 30 September 2023; 30 September 2024; and 30 September 2025. For Executive
Directors, any shares that vest will be required to be held untii the fifth anniversary of grant at the earliest.
Awards under the VCP are subject to malus and clawback provisions, further details of which are included
as a note to the policy table,

Subject to shareholder approval of the VCP, no further awards will be granted under the long-term share-based incentive (P5P) to

To encourage share
ownership byemployees
and align their interests with
those of the shareholders.

Designed to reward
delivery of shareholder
value and
implementation of the
Group's strategy.

Designed to align

the interests of Future
employees and
shiaretivide s, Ly
incentivising the
delivery of exceptional
sharehotder returns
over the long-term.

current Executive Directors during the life of this Policy. Details of the PSP, under which there are a number of awards outstanding, are
included below. for the purpose of transparency. In the event that a new Executive Director is appointed joins when the performance
period(s) of the VCP is materially completed, the Committee reserves the right to make an award under the PSP on the terms set out

in the Policy table, instead of under the VCP - see approach to recruitment remuneration section on page 51.

Annual awards of conditional shares o nil-cost options to Executive Directors.

The scheme rules allow the Committee discration to change the performance targets and the
Committee shal be entitled to exercise its discretion to change performance criteria to the extent that
it reflects market practice and/or the Committee considers atternative performance targets to be more
appropriate to the business.

A payment equal to the value of dividends, which would have accrued on vested awards, may be made
following the release of awards to participants, either in the form of cash or as additional shares.

Awards under the PSP are subject to malus and clawback provisions, further details of which are included
as a note to the policy table.

Designed toreward delivery
of shareholder value inthe
medium-to-long term.



Max. potential value
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Performance measures

Policy changes
for F¥ 2021

Salary increases shall generally reflect market conditions, performance of
the individual, new challenges or a new strategic direction for the business.

There may be occasions when the Committee needs to recognise
circumstances including, but not limited to: an individual's development
inthe role, achange inthe responsibility and/or complexity of the role. In
these circumstances, the Committee may award a higher aninual increase
than the average for the workforce, the rationale for which will be expiained
to shareholders in the Annuat Report on Remuneration.

Not applicabie.

None

The Company shall continue to provide benefits to Executive Directors

at similar levels; where insurance cover is provided by the Company, that
cover shall be maintained at a similar level and the Company shall pay the
prevailing market rates for such cover.

Not applicable.

None

Total cost annually shall not exceed 15% of basic annual salary.
Pensien contributions for the Chief Executive will be aligned with the broader
workforce rate by 1 January 2022.

For Directors appointed from 1 Qctober 2019, the maximum contribution
will be aligned to that offered to the majority of employees in the relevant
jurisdiction at the time of appointment (currently 6% in the UK).

Not applicable.

None

The maximum participation levels for all-employee share plans will be the
limits set outin UK tax legislation.

Not applicable.

None

For both the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer the
Committee retains discretion to vary the potential total maximum
beonus, the weighting of the variable elements and the stretch of the
targets in order to incentivise or recruit Executive Directors, provided
that the total maximum potential bonus for any one year shall not
exceed 200% of basic annual salary and that the maximum bonus
shall only be payable for outperformance of stretching targets.

Target perfermance will typically deliver up to 50% of maximum
bonus, with threshold performance typically paying up to 25% of
maximum bonus.

The perfoermance measures’ relative weightings and
targets are set annually by the Committee. Details of
the measures and their relative weightings are disclosed
annuatly in the Directors’ remuneration report with

the targets disclosed. provided they are not deemed

to be commercially sensitive. The Commmittee retains
discretion to adjust the targets if events occur which
lead it to conclude that they are no longer appropriate.

The Committee also retains discretion to adjust
the outcome of the performance-related bonus for
any performance measure if it considers that to be
appropriate.

None

Tothe extent that performance exceeds the hurdle on a measurement

Units vest based an value created in terms of £ TSR, being
the growth in Future's market capitalisation plus net
equity cashflows to sharehclders (i.e. dividends plus share
buybacks, less share issues), over and above a hurdle rate
of return of 10% per anhum.

Future's starting market capitalisation is based cn the spot

New Plan and
policy element

date, participants share 3.33% of the shareholder value created above clasing price of a share on 30 Septernber 2020 which will
the hurdle, subject to an overali cap of £95m per tranche. o replace the PSP
) _ ) Value created at each measurement date will be calculated for current
Total units awarded will be 980,000 per tranche of which the with reference ta the average closing return index over the E ti
CEO's allocation is 140,000 per tranche and the CFO's allocationis three months ending on that date. Xecutive
. N , Directors,
63,000 per tranche. The remaining units will be allocated to Future's '
; . . To the extent that performance does not exceed the hurdle subject to
employees, with a small pool reserved for future hires and promaticns. " .
onameasurement date, the relevant tranche will lapse in shareholder
full. immediately. There will be no re-testing allowed. approval.
The ultimate release of any shares will be subject to the
Committee satisfying itself that the recorded outcome is a
fair reflection of the underlying business performance over
the period.
Performance targets are set annually by the Committee and ~ No change.
disclosed annually inthe Directors’ remuneraticnreport, However, subject
Awards expressed as a fixed humber of shares, worth up to 200% of safary {or provided they are not deemed to be commercially sensitive. to shareholder

such lower level as determined by the Committee) for the first cycle, and fixed
at that number for the following two cycles.

Whilst the intention is to review the number of shares awarded only every
three years, the Committee would nevertheless reduce the number of shares
granted if the implied % of salary due to be awarded would exceed 2x the initial
grant values. The overall capis therefore 400% of salary.

At the end of the three-year performance period, the
Committee will assess performance against the targets set
and determine, inits absolute discretion, the overall level of
vesting of the award.

Under each measure, threshold performance wilt generally
result in up to 25% of maximum vesting for that element.

Awards are subject to a mandatory two-year holding period
fallowing the end of a three-year vesting pericd.

approval for the
VCP,. no further
awards will be
granted under the
PSP to current
Executive
Directors during
the life of

this Policy.
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Performance measure selection and approach
to target setting

Measures used under the performance-related banus are selected
annually to reflect the Group's main short-term objectives and can
reflect both financial and non-financial priorities, as appropriate.

The Committee considers that adiusted operating profit
{previously EBITDA) is an important and recognised measure of the
Company’s perfermance that reinforces the strategic objective of
profitable growth. The use of £ TSR in the new VCP is directly aligned
with the interests of sharcholders, and ensures that Executive
Directors are rewarded only if they deliver material shareholder
returns over the longer-term. More generally, the focus on absolute
performance measures refiects the Company's unigue business
structure and lack of direct competitors, which would make
v npaisnns {and theretorn target setting) aifficull.

Targets applying to the performance-related bonus are reviewed
annually, based on a number of internal and external reference points.
Performance targets are set to be stretching but achievable, with
ragard to the particular strategic priorities and the econormic
environment in a given year. Targets are typically not disclosed in
advance due to commaercial sensitivity but will typically be
retrospectively disclosed in full, following the year-end, to the extent,
that such commercial sensitivity concerns no longer apply.

Targets applying to the VCP are disclosed prospectively in the table
above. The hurdie rate of 10% per annum is considered tc be between
median and upper guartile, compared to the historical returns of
FTSE250 constituents, with capping of the schemerequiring
performance significantly abave upper decile performance.

Remuneration for other employees

All employees of the Group receive a basic annual salary. benefits,
pension and annual bonus (subject to financial performance). The
rmaximum value of remuneration packages is based on the senicrity
and responsibilities of the relevant role. A key feature of the new VCP
is that a much broader group of employees {in comparison to the
PSP) will be awarded units under the plan te enable them to share in
the value created for sharehoiders above a stretching hurale,
supparting alignment not only with the interests of shareholders, but
alsc alignment of interests across the employee population.

88 [ FUTURE PLC

Shareholding guidelines

The Committee strongly believes in aligning the interests of Executive
Directors and shareholders. Shareholding guidelines were formallsed
in 2018, which require Executive Directors to acguire and inainlain &
holding of Future shares (excluding shares that remain subject to
performance conditions), within five years of appaointment. Reflecting
feedback received from shareholders as part of the most recent
consuftation, the shareholding guideline will be increased with effect
from 2021 to 400% of salary in respect of the Chief Executive and to
300% of salary in respect of the Chief Financial Officer (previously
200% of salary for both Executive Directors). Details of the Executive
Directors’ current shareholdings are provided in the Implementation
Report on page 100.

Also building on feedback received as part of our shareholder
culisultation programmo, the Committee has recnnsitiered the
introduction of post-employment guidelines. 1t is our intention that
from 2021, Executive Directors will normally be expected to maintain
a holding of Future shares for a period after their employment with the
Caompany. This shareholding guideline will be equal to the lower of an
Executive Directors’ actual shareholding at the time of their departure
and the shareholding requirement in effect at the date of their
departure, with such shares to be held for a period of at least two
years from the date of ceasing to be an Executive Director. The
specific application of this sharehalding guideline will be at the
Committee’s discretion.

Malus and clawback

Payments and awards under the performance-related borius, PSP
and VCP are subject to malus and clawback provisions, which can be
applied to both vested and unvested awards. Malus and clawback
provisions will apply for a period ot at least two years after payment or
vesting. Circumstances in which malus and clawback may be applied
include a material misstatement of the Company's financial accounts,
fraud or gross misconduct on the part of the award-holder or anerror
in caliculating the award vesting outcome.

Participants in the performance-related bonus, PSP and VCP are
required to acknowiedge their understanding and acceptance of the
malus and clawback provisions as a pre-condition to participating in
these plans. The Committee is satisfied that the malus and clawback
provisions are appropriate and enforceable.




Pay for performance scenarios

The charts below provide an itlustraticn of the potential future reward
opportunities for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer, and
the potential split between the different elements of remuneration
under three different performance scenarios: *Minimum’, ‘Target',
‘Maximum.

Potential reward opportunities are based on Future’s remuneration
policy, applied to the base salary effective 1 October 2020. The
performance-related bonus is based on the maximum opportunities
set out under the remuneration policy for normal circumstances. Note
that VCP awards will vest in tranches after three, four and five years
(and are thereafter subject t¢ a holding period, bringing the total time
torelease to five years from grant). As the VCP is intended to replace
the PSP for at least the next three years, the values shown reflect the
aggregate value of the VCP amortised over three years.

The 'Minimum’ scenario reflects base salary, pension and benefits
(i.e. fixed remuneration) which are the only elements of the Executive's
remuneration packages not linked to performance.

Corporate Governance

The ‘Target’ scenario reflects fixed remuneration as above, plus
performance-related bonus payout of 50% of maximum. No VCP
value 1s shown for this scenario, reflecting the stretching £ TSR hurdle
rate of 10% per annum - which is higher than the threshold absolute
TSR target applying to previous PSP awards (and achieverment of
which would result in £nil payout under the VCP).

The ‘Maximum' scenario includes fixed remuneration and full payout
of the performance-related bonus. The value of the VCP shown is
based on an accounting fair value assessment as at 1 October 2020,
with the resulting vaiue amortised over three years.

The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 require
a fourth scenario, showing the value at maximum assuming share
price growth of 50% for the purpose of long-term incentive awards.

We have chosen not to illustrate this scenaric above since the value of
the VCF is dependent on share price growth above a hurdle of 10% per
annum. 50% share price growth over the maximum five-year
performance period equates to ¢.8.4% per annum growth and would
generate no value to participants under this scheme.

Zillah Byng-Thorne Rachel Addison
4000 2000
£3,297
wmanearacaasmnianan £]'578
3000 1500
g ]
o 42.4%
o] 45.1% ﬁ
c c
2 o
B 2000 'ﬁ 100¢C
o o
c c
H E]
: :
£1,234 £646
= 34.9% « 33.3%
1000 500
£383
£659
o} Q
Minimum On-target Maximum Minimum On-target Maximum
I Fixed remuneration D Ferformance-related banus vep M Fixed rermuneration D Performance-related bonus vCP
FY 2021 remuneration assumptions
Maximum
performance- Amortised fair
Executive Director Salary Pension Benefits related bonus value VCP valuation
Zillah Byng-Thorne £575,000 1L.6% £17,000 200% £1,487,971
Rachel Addison £350,000 6.0% £12,000 150% £669,587

' Zilah Byng-Thome's pension 1s based on 15% of saiary for 3 months and 10.5% of salary for 8 months of the financ al year
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Policy table for Non-Executive Directors

Nen-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any performance-related bonus, share incentive schemes or pension
arrangements, Details of the policy on tees paid to Non-Executive Directors are set out in the table below:

Policy

Objective & Max. potential Performance changes

Element Operation {ink to strateqy value measures for FY21
Fees MNon-Executive Directors’ fees are To attract and Nen-Executive Not applicable. None.

reviewed annually and paid in12
monthly instalments.,

in addition to the base fee,
additional fees are payable for acting
as Senior Independent Director and as
Chair of any of the Board's
rammittees 10 the evant that the
Board requires the forrmation of an
additional Board Committee, fees for
the Chair (and where relevant,
rmembership) of such Committee will
be deterrmined by the Board at the
time.

The fees paid to the Chairman are
determined by the Cornmittee, whilst
the fees of the Non-Executive

Directors are determined by the Board.

Expenses incurred by the Chairman

and the Nan-Executive Directorsin the

performance of their duties {including
taxable travel and accommodation
benefits) may be reimbursed or paid
for directly by the Company, as
appropriate.

retain high calibre
Non-Execulive
Directors with
broad commercial
and other
experience relevant
to the Company,
and reflact the
time commitment
and responsibilities
of these roles.

Director fee increases
are applied in linc
with the outcome of
the annual fee review
and would narmally
be aligned with the
increase awarded to
the worktorés.

Fees for the year
under review and for
the following year are
setoutin the
Implementation
Report on page 103.

Aggregate fees
paid to Non-Executive
Directors are subject
tethe limits set outin
the Articles of
Association.
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Approach to recruitment remuneration
External Executive Director appointment

In line with our principles on remuneration, the Committee’s objective at the time of an appointment to a new role is tc weight Executive
Directors’ remuneration packages towards performance-related pay that 1s linked to targets set for the financial performance of the Group

against budget, and the Group's performance against its business objectives and stated strategy.

Any new Executive Director’s remuneration package would include the same elements as those of the existing Executive Directors, as

shown below:

Element of
remuneration

Approach

Maximum %

of salary

Salary

The base salaries of new appcintees will be determined by reference to
relevant market data, experience and skills of the individual, internal
relativities and their current basic salary.

The Committee may approve a higher basic annual salary for a
newly appointed Director than the outgoing Director received where it
considers it necessary in order to recruit an individual of sufficient
calibre for the role. Alternatively, where new appointees have initial
basic salaries set below market-level, any shortfall may be managed
with phased increases over a period of up to three years subject to the
individual's development in the role.

n/a

Benefits

New appointees will be eligible to receive kenefits which may include
(but are not limited to) the provision of a car allowance, permanent
health insurance, healthcare and life assurance.

If the Director is required to relocate then the policy is to provide
reasonable, time-limited relocation, travel and subsistence payments
at the discretion of the Committee.

New appointees will also be eligible to participate in all-employee
share schemes, where relevant.

n/a

Pension

New appointees will receive company pension contributions or an
equivalent cash supplement aligned to that offered to the majority of
employees in the relevant jurisdiction at the time of appointment.

nfa

Performance-
related bonus

The structure described in the Policy table will apply to new
appointees with the relevant maxirnum being pro-rated to reflect the
proportion of employment over the year. If used, individual targets will
be tailored to the executive,

200%

Share incentive
schemes

The VCP is intended to be the primary long-term incentive
arrangement under the new Palicy. New appointees will typically
receive awards on the same terms as other executives, as described in
the Policy table, taking into account the proportion of the performance
period remaining and the level of shareholder value already created
under the scheme.

In the event that a new appointee joins when the performance
period(s) of the VCP is materially completed, the Committee reserves
the right instead to make an award under the PSP on the terms set out
in the Policy table.

VCP: Individuat limit of 140,000 units
per tranche, subject to aggregate
plan limit of 98C,000 units per

tranche

PSP: Fixed number of shares, with a
face value of up to 400% of salary
(where used)

In determining an appropriate remuneration package, the
Remuneration Committee will take into consideration all relevant
factors (including quantum, nature of remuneration and the
jurisdiction from which the candidate was recruited) to ensure that
arrangements are in the best interests of both the Company and its

shareholders.

The Committee may make an award in respect of a new
appointment to buy cut incentive arrangements forfeited on leaving a
previous employer on a like-for-like basis. which may be awarded in
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addition to the remuneration structure cutlined in the table above. In
doing so, the Committee will censider relevant factors including time
remaining until vesting, any performance conditions attached to
these awards and the likelihood of such conditions being met. Any
such buy-out awards would typically be made under the existing
perfoermance-related bonus and PSP schemes, although in
exceptional circumstances the Committee may use the exemption
permitted within the Listing Rules. Any buy-out awards would have a
fair value no higher than that of the awards forfeited.
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Internal Executive Director appointment

in cases of appeinting a new Executive Director by way of internal
promotion, the Remuneration { ommattes and Board will be
consistent with the policy for external appointees detailed above,
Where an individual has contractual commitments made prior to their
promotion to Executive Director level. the Company will continue to
honour these arrangements.

Non-Executive Directors
In recruiting anew Non-Fxecutive Director, the Remuneration
Committee will use the policy as set out in the table on page 0.

Service contracts and loss of office payments
Copies of Directors’ service agreements and letters of appointment are
available for inspection on request at the Company’s registered office.

Executive Directors
In summary, the contractual provisions for current Executive
Directors are as follows:

Contract
provision Policy Details
Notice Director or Company A Director may be
periods shail be entitled to _ required o work
serve 6 months' notice during their notice
[in Rachel Addison’s period or be put
case) or 12 months' ongarden leave.
notice {in Zillah
Byng-Thorne's case).
Compensation Director shall be entitled While service
for loss of toreceive up to 6 months’  agreernents allow for
i, salary (in Rachel monthly payments
office Addison’s caseyor 12 during the notice
months’ salary (in Zillah period which are
Byng-Thorne's case) and subject to mitigation,
benefits during any the Committee
unexpired nulive period. retains discretion to
make paymentsin
such manner asis
cdeemed appropriate,
particularly by
reference tothe
circumstances of the
loss of office.
Change of Inthe event of a change Inthe event of
control of control, a Director’s termination by

appointment may be
terminated within three
months of the change of
control by the Company,
or on one month's notice
by the Director (to expire
nalater than three
months from the date of
the change of control).

either the Director
or the Company. the
Director will be
entitled toreceive 6
months’ salary.
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Inaleaver event, the following payments may aiso be made to
departing Executive Directors:

1. Any share-based entitlements granted to an Executive Director
under Company share plans will be determined based on the
relevant plan rules. In certain prescribed circumstances, such as
death., ill-health, injury, disability, redundancy. retirement or other
circumstances at the discretion of the Committee, ‘gocd leaver’
siatus may be applied. Under the PSP and VCFP, for good ieavers,
awards will narmally be reduced pre-rata to reflect the proportion
of the vesting period actually served and tested for performance at
the end of the original performance period. Vested PSP and VCP
awards which are subject to an additicnal holding pericd will
typically be retained and released at the end of the holding period.
with Committee discretion o accelerate the release of such awards
it certain good leaver ar change of contral circumstances. Deferred
bonus shares will normally be retained by the Executive Director
and released in full following completion of the applicable deferral
period, with Committee discretion to accelerate the vesting of
awards in certain good leaver or change of control circumstances;

2. Abonus may be payable for the period of active service in certain
prescribed good leaver circumstiances and in other circumstances
at the discretion of the Committee and subject to the achievement
of the relevant performance targets;

W

. At the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, a contribution to
reasonable outplacement costs in the event of termination of
employment due to redundancy. The Committee also retains the
ability to reimburse reasonable legal costs incurred in connection
with a termination of employment; and

o

Any payment for statutory entitlements or to settle or compromise
claims in connection with a termination of any existing or future
Executive Director as necessary.

|
Non-Executive Directors

Contract

provision Policy Details

Notice Three maonths' Appointed for a three-
periods notice from either year term, subject to

Company or
Director.

annual re-election by
shareholders at the
Company’s AGM.




External appointments

Executive Directors are encouraged to hold a Non-Executive role in
addition te their full-time position in order to broaden their
experience, and may retain any fees received in respect of such roles.
All appointments must first be agreed by the Cormmittee and must
not represent a conflict to their current role. In the case of Zillah
Byng-Thorne, it was agreed at the time of her appointment that she
could hold three Non-Executive roles in addition to her positicn as
Chief Executive. Zillah Byng-Thorne has agreed not to replace any of
her Non-Executive positions as thay time mature. In the case of
Rachel Addison, the Committee has agreed that she may hold up to
two Nen-Executive roles in order to gain further experience to
support her first PLC Board role.

In respect of positions at listed companies, during the financial year
ended 30 September 2020, Zillah Byng-Thorne served as a Non-
Executive Director at Flutter Entertainment plc, GoCo Group plc and
THG Holdings plc for which she retained total fees of £206,830
{compared to £177.000 in 2019). Penny Ladkin-Brandis a
nen-executive director of Next 15 Communications Group ple for
which, during the period from 1 October 2019 to 1 June 2020, she
retained fees of £29.800. Rachel Addison does not currently hold any
outside directerships.

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the
Company

The Committee takes into consideration the pay and conditions of
employees across the Group when determining remuneration for
Executive Directors, although currently does not formally consult
with employees on the executive remuneration pelicy and framework.
The Committee and the full Board is made aware of, and consulted
on, the Company’s Human Resources strategy and takes seriousiy its
obligation to have a greater degree of oversight on the operation of
fair pay policies elsewhere in the Group.

Allemployees receive a basic annual salary, benefits and an
entitlement to receive a bonus, subject to financial perfermance,
under the Group's profit pool bonus scheme. Discretionary share
incentive awards are granted to certain key employees and ‘rising
stars’ under the PSP and DABS schemes, and the Group operates a
Share Incentive Plan in order to encourage active employee share
ownership.

Subject to shareholder approval. the Value Creation Plan will offer
employees of the Group the opporfunity to benefit from the value
created by their efforts in delivering Future’s ambitious strategy over
the next three to five years. Under the scheme, emiployees will receive
anumber of units based on seniority, with a small pool reserved for
future joiners, and for significant promcotions during the performance
periad.

Corporate Governance

Consideration of shareholder views

The Remuneration Comnmittee considers shareholder feedback
received as part of any discussions with shareholders and consults
with shareholders on specific matters as and when appropriate.

As part of its work during 2020. the Remuneration Committee
consulted with Future’s 15 largest sharehoiders to seek their views on
the proposed changes to the Remuneration Policy, as well as
remuneration at Future more broadly. The Cemmittee is grateful for
those investers who actively participated in the consultation and we
welcome the feedback received, which has been used tofinalise the
VCP proposals and to inform other best-practice changes te the
Policy. We are confident that the Policy continues to reflect good
practice while alsc supperting Future in attracting, retaining and
mativating the Executive Directors and dedicated employees who are
integral to the delivery of our long-term strategy. The Committee will
continue to monitor trends and developments in corporate
governance and market practice to ensure the structure of the
executive remuneration remains appropniate.
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Annual Report

On Remuneration

The following report provides details of how the Directors' Remuneration Palicy was
applied for the year ended 30 September 2020 and how the Committee intends to
apply the Policy in the year ending 30 September 2021.

Covernance
The Committee is responsible for determining the overall remuneration
policy ot the tirniip And in par Ligulear fue:

» Determining the appropriate basic annual salaries, incentive
arrangements and terms of employment of Executive Directors,

« Monitoring and reviewing the level and make-up of the
remuneration packages of senior managers, including bonus
schermes and share-based incentives, and ensuring that
remuneration policies and practices do not encourage excessive
risk-taking.

+ Setting the Chairman's remuneration.

= Approving the terms of any new share-based incentive scheme for
any employees of the Group, subject, where appropriate. to
shareholder approval.

The terms of reference of the Rermuneration Commitise, raviewead

annually, are available on the Company’s website (www.futureplc.com).

Advisers

The Committee is informed of key developments and best practice in
the field of remuneration and obtains advice from independent external
consultants, when required, on individual remuneration packages and
executlive remuneration practices in general. The Committee retained
Mercer as its independent consultants during the year. Fees paid to
Mercer for services provided to the Committee during the financial year
were £27,900 (2019: £45,830) on the basis of time and materials.
Fallowing their appointment as remuneration consultants during 2019,
services provided to the Committee by Mercer have included
supporting the review of the Remuneration Policy, regulatory guidance,
advice on shareholder trends and consultation support.

Mercer does not provide any other services to the Group or any of the
Directors and the Committee is satisfied that Mercer remains
independent. Mercer is a signatory to, and foundihg member of, the
Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct (www.
remunerationconsultantsgroup.com) which requires that its advice be
objective and impartial.
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Shareholder voting

The following table shows the results of the binding vote on the FY
2019 Policy Repor Land the advisory vote on the FY 2019
Implementation Report at the 2020 Antual Gener 21 Meeting.

Remuneration Remuneration

Report FY 2019 Policy FY 2019
For {including 58,254,355 64,571,026
discretionary) 75.09% 83.20%
Against 15,324 115 13.0359,300
gains 24.91% 16.80%

Total votes cast
{excluding 77578474 77.610.326
withheld votes)

Votes withheld 5,149.500 5117648

The Company published a statement on i{s website on 19 June
2020 noting its understanding that the main reasons for the voting
outcome in relation to the FY 2019 Remuneration Report were
related to the CEQ's remuneration, and the percentage increase in
CFO remuneration. The Board acknowledges these views, ncting
that these outcomes were delivered as a result of Company
performance over the preceding three years, and in accordance
with the prevailing Remuneration Policy, us apuroved by
sharehoiders.

The Committee continues to monitor evolving best practice on
remuneration matters, and welcomes dialogue with shareholders
on an ongoing basis.

Context to remuneration decisions

The Committee’s decision-making this year has taken into account
arange of internal and external factors, including the Group's
response to COVID-13 and the experience of our stakehoiders
during this period.

As outlined in the Annual Statement, Future took decisive action
garly on during the pandemic to ensure the business was
sustainable and set up for success. The business has actedinline
with the 5172 governance guidelines while continuing to deliver
exceptional results for shareholders. In particular, the Committee
has also been mindful that:

+ Although a small amount of Government support was received

from the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme by Future (and by



Tl Media before it was acquired by Future) and from the equivalent
US Government fund this has been repaid in full.

» No staff had pay cuts (they were all refunded) with only the Chief
Executive & Non-Executive Directors having a year-on-year pay
reduction in the reporting period.

+ Shareholder guidance was maintained throughout the period, and
two upgrades provided.

« Dividends were maintained.

Corporate Governance

«» Staff will be paid full profit poo! bonus for the year, and annual pay
rises for all employees are being budgeted as normal.

« We provided extended credit to suppliers when requested.

« While we removed ¢.200 roles as aresult of the TI Media
integration, this was not COVID-19 related but as a direct result of
the acquisition. Around 50 roles were removed due to the impact
of the change to our business model because of COVID-19.
however we expect tc have net increased headcount due to online

« Leverage decreased during the period.

editorial investments.

Single figure of remuneration for Directors (audited)
The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received for the last two financial years by each Executive and Non-Executive
Director who served in the year ended 30 September 2020:

Year (A} Basic B8) <€) (E) Total (A+B+E) {C+D)
ended 30 salary Taxable Annual {D) Pension single Total Total
£'000 September or fees® benefits’ bonus® frictng benefit? figure fixed variable
Executive Directors
Zillah Byng-Thorne 2020 455 17 950 2,195 68 3,685 540 3,145
2019 475 17 713 4,402 7 5678 563 515
Penny Ladkin-Brand® 2020 249 10 350 1,509 33 2,151 292 1,859
2019 325 15 344 3144 41 3,869 381 3,488
Rachel Addison® 2020 nz 4 175 - 9 305 130 175
2019 - - - - - - - -
Non-Executive Directors
Richard Huntingford 2020 142 - - - - 142 142 -
2019 120 - - - - 120 120 -
Meredith Amdur? 2020 36 - - - - 36 36 -
2019 - - - - - - - -
Hugo Drayton 2020 63 - - - - 63 63 -
2019 53 . - - - 53 53 -
Rob Hattrell 2020 46 - - - - 46 46 -
2019 45 - - - - 45 45 -
Alan Newman 2020 53 - - - - 53 53 -
2019 50 - - - - 50 50 -
Total 2020 1,61 3 1,475 3,704 ne 6,481 1,302 5,179
2019 1068 32 1,057 7546 nz 9,815 1,212 8,603
Notes
1. Benefits for Executive Directars comprise principally car allowance, private health insurance and fife assurance There were notaxable expenses paid to any Director inthe year.
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Zillah Byng-Thorne, Periry Ladkin-Brand and Rachel Addison receivad cash supplements in leu of pension contributions. These additional cash payments are not included in determinmng their
entitlerment to any bonus, share-based incentive or pension entitiement,

. Relates to payment for performance during the year and includes the grant date value of any amount paid in shares under the Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme. Details relating to the Annual Bonus are

set out on page 96

. The PSP figures are consistent with the approach taken in previous reports., 1.e. awards are captured in the year that performance periods have ended (see page 97 for further details). 2020 figure:

relates to 100% of the PSP awards granted on 25 Novernber 2017 which vested on 25 November 2020 following the achievement of the share price target and adjusted EPS target for the three-year
period ended 30 September 2020. The value of these awards has been calculated using the spot closing price on vest date of 1.634p Further details relating to the PSP are set out on page 97. 2019
figure: relates to 25% of the PSP awards granted on 23 November 2016 and 2 February 2017 which vested on 23 November 2019, following the achievernent of the share price target for the period
ended 30 September 2019, The value of these awards has been calculated using the share price at date of vest on 23 November 2019 of 1.414p.

Penny Ladkin-Brand stepped down from the Board on 1une 2020. Penry's rermuneration for 2019 and 2020 was higher than her annualised package, In 2019 Penny was on materity leave for two
and a half months of the year. and the 2019 figure above Includes accrued holiday pay (paid 10 her on her return in 2019) as well as a maternity leave/return to work payment in 2019 and 202011 ine
with the Group's maternity policy.

Rachel Addison was appointed to the Board as Chiet Financial Officer on 1 Jure 2020. Her remuneration arrangements aren line with the prevalling Remuneration Policy and consistent with those of
her predecessor, namely: a salary of £350.000; a pension contribution aligned with the majority of UK employees at 6% of salary; amaximurm annual bonus apportunity of 150% of salary. whichs
pro-rated for time servedon the Board in her first year; and eligibility for an annuat award under the PSP. Rachel was grantec a pro-rated award of 17,222 shares under the PSP on 1 June 2020

. Meredith Amdur was appointed to the Board on 6 February 2020 andis US-based. During FY 2020 Meredith received US$48 000 as remuneration  Sterling equivalent shown in the table above).
. The CEO, CFO and Non-Executive Director salaries and fees were reduced by 20% in March (half of month), April and May 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic The amounts waived were as follows'

Zillah Byng-Thorne £20.218; Penny Ladkin-Brand £14 897, Richard Huntingford £3.108; Meredith Amdur $2.000, Hugo Drayton £1.915; Rob Hattrell £1.915; and Alan Newman £1,815.
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Incentive outcomes for the year ended 30 September 2020

Performance-related bonus

{Annual Bonus Scheme)

During 2020, the Company operated a profit peol bonus for all
employees across the Group, including the Executive Directors. This
profit pool comprised 100% of the Executive Director borus
apportunity for FY 2020, and was subject to outperformance of the
EBITDA budget set. EBITDA refers to adjusted earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amoartisatiorn.

Maximurm opportunities were 200% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 150% of salary for the Chief Financial Officer. The profit
pool pays out a fixed amount of cash for the majority of employees
based on delivering EBITDA performance above Budget. In addtion to
the profit pool component, which accounts for 25% of the Chief
Executive's bonus oppoertunity (werth 50% of salary), afurther

opportunity le earn an additional 150% of satary as abonus is
possible. The same profit poo! scheme applies to the Chief Financial
Officer, with an additional 100% of salary payable as a bonus for
outperformance abaove this level.

Actual adjusted EBITDA performance for the year of £101.9m
significantly exceeded the stretch target of £76.0m {which was 39%
growth on the pricr year), resulting in a formulaic outcome of 134% of
maximum for this element. Adjustments can be made to targets for
material acquisitions, defined as those that contribute EBITDA of more
than 15% of the total Group's EBITDA for the relevant financial year.
Acquisitions in the year did not meet this threshold. therefore no
adjustrnetil lo largets was made. The Committee would note, howaver.
that if an adjustment had been made then the bonus would s till have
paid outin full due to the leve! of over-performance in the year.

Performance Threshold Target Maximum Actual % % of maximum
measure £m £m £m £m weighting achieved
Annual bonus

ESITDA 65.9 B7.6 76.0 e 100% 100%

Overall 100%

Accordingly, all Executive Directors earned 100% of their respective
opportunities under the annuai bonus for the year. The annual bonus
pavments for Penny Ladkin-Brand as outgoing Chief Financial Officer,
and for Rachel Addison as incoming Chief Financial Officer, were
pro-rated to reflect their respective pericds inrole (8 manths and 4
months). In cenfirming this cutcome, the Committee took into
account the broader financial and operational performance of the

Group during the year, the exceptional shareholder returns
generated, and the strong and effective leadership demonstrated by
the Executive Directors.

In accordance wilh the Rermuneration Policy, 50% of these bonus
armounts have been paid in cash, with the remaining 50% to be
converted to Future shares and deferred for 2 years.

Maximum performance Pro-rating

opportunity outcome (% (% of year Bonus «of which ..of which
Executive Base Salary (Y% salaty) of maximurn}  served) outcoma £ rash £ shares
Zillah Byng-Thorne £475,000 200% 100% 100% £950,000 £475.000 £475,000
Penny Ladkin-Brand £350.000 150% 100% 66.7% £350,000 £175,000 £175,000
Rachel Addison £350,000 150% 100% 33.3% £175,000 £87500 £87,500
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Performance Share Plan (PSP}

Awards vesting on performance to

30 September 2020

Vesting of awards made on 24 November 2017 was dependent on two
equally-weighted performance conditions - adjusted diluted EPS and
share price — assessed over the performance period, as follows:

Measure Targets Outcome  Vesting
0% vesting
below 23p
EPS for year 25% vesting
ended
for 23p
30 September 4.7 100%
2020 100% vesting P °
for 26p
Straight-line vesting
between these points
Share Price 0% vesting
{average below 400p
share price .
performance ?5% vesting
- or 400p
for any 20-day 1505p 100%

period from 100% vesting

the date of for 450p

grant to 30 ) )

Septermber Straight-line vesting
2020) between these points

As with the annual bonus, in confirming this outcome the Committee
took into account the broader financiat and operational performance
of the Group over the three-year performance period, the exceptional
returns generated for sharehelders and the strong and effective
leadership demonstrated by the Executive Directors, Notwithstanding
that Future's actual performance significantly exceeded the level
required for maximum vesting, the Committee is satisfied that the
targets originally set were appropriately stretching, with 450p
representing c.170% growth on the trailing 30-day average share price
to 1 October 2017, and adjusted EPS maximum target of 26.0p
representing a 12% increase on 30 September 2017 EPS of 23.2p.

Share price

on vesting
Perfermance (spot

Shares outcome closing

subject % of price on psp
Executive to award maximum}) vest date) outcome
Zillah 134,345 100% 1,634 £2195,197
Byng-Thorne ’ © Bo4P Qb
Penny 92363 100% 1634p £1509,211

tadkin-Brand

The value attributable to share price appreciation above the share
price at the date of grant (325p) was c.£1.8m and ¢.£1.2m for Zillah
Byng-Thorne and Penny Ladkin-Brand respectively (c.80% of the
total value reperted). The Committee has not exercised any
discretion inrespect of this share price appreciation.

Corporate Governancee

Awards granted during the year to

30 September 2020

During FY 2020, the following awards under the PSP were granted to
the Executive Directors:

Face value
Executive Date of (% of Number Vesting
Director award salary) of shares' date
Zillah 25 Nov 200% 67185 25 Nov
Byhg-Thorne 2012 of salary ! 2022
Penny 25 Nov 167% 413372 25 Nov
Ladkin-Brand 2019 of salary ' 2022
Rachel 1Jun 167% 17322 31 May
Addison 2020 of salary ' 2023

1Awards converted into shares using the share price preceding the relevant grant date
{£14.14 for awards made to Zillah Byng-Thorne, Penny Ladkin-Brand and Rachal
Addlson with Rachel's award pro-ratad for her time as CFO).

2 The award made to Penny Ladkin-Brand was subsequently pro-rated for har time as
CFO and reduced to 27,654 shares.

The three-year period over which performance will be measured
began on 1 October 2019 and willend on 30 September 2022, Any
awards vesting for performance will be subject to an additional
two-year holding period, during which malus and clawback provisions
will apply.

Vesting of these awards is dependent on twe equally-weighted
measures over the three-year performance period: adjusted diluted
earnings per share (FPS) and absolute TSR. There is noretest
provision. Details of the vesting schedules are provided below:

Measure Weighting % Targets

0% vesting below 56p

25% vesting for 56p {7% CAGR)
EPS for year

ending i 50% vesting for 62p (10% CAGR)
30 September S0% 00w vesting for 7ip
2022 or above (16% CAGR)
Straight-line vesting
between these points
Absolute TSR 0% vesting below
{% growth 6% per annum
between the 25% vesting for
average of the
6% per annum
three months to 50%

30 September
2019 and average
of the three
months te 30
Septermnber 2022)

100% vesting for
15% per annum

Straight-line vesting
between these points

The performance targets were set reflecting the increase in
maximum gpportunity under the PSP to 200% and 167% of salary
for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer respectively, and
consistent with our commitment that full vesting will require
continued exceptional performance over the next three years.

Awards granted under the DABS during the year were disclosed in
last year's report.
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Pension entitiements (audited)

The anly element of remuneration that is pensionable is basic annual
salary Turing the vear ended 30 Sepiember 2020, employer’s
pension contributions were payable to the Executive Directors as a
salary supplement, at a rate of 15% of salary for the Chief Executive
and Penny Ladkin-Brand and 6% of salary for Rachel Addison
(aligned with the majority of UK employees, as set out nthe Fy 2020
Remuneration Policy). This additional cash payment is not included in
determining their entitlerment to any performance-related bonus,
share-based incentive or pension. The Company had noe liability in
respect of the Executive Directors’ pensions as at 30 September

Review of past performance
Alignment of reward and Total Shareholder Return: Rebased to
Future plc as of 1 October 2010

This graph shows a comparison of Future's total shareholder return
(share price growth plus dividends) with that of the FTSE All-Share
Media index and the FTSE250 Index (excluding investment trusts).
The FTSE All-Share Media index was sefected as it provides a
comparison of Future’s performance relative to the other companies
inits sector, whilst the FTSE250 Index is shown to reflect the Group
having moved up to a Premnium Listing and its inclusion in the

2020. Normal retirerment age under the scheme rules is 75. FTSE250 index during 2019.

Historical TSR performance
Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over the 10 years to 30 September 2020
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The table below shows the Chief Executive's single figure of remuneration and variable pay outcornes over the same period as the graph above.

Mark Wood

Stevie Spring

Zillah Byng-Thorne

2012 2013 2014 2018 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
CEQO single figure of " o 7
e S 00 £546 £430 3| e£3086 £471 £347 £5425° £10887 £5678 L3685

a,

Annual Bonus as % 0% 50% 0% 20% 36% 0%* B8%" 100% 100% 100%
of Maximum
PSP Vesting 100% 0%t 0% 0% 0% 0%? 100% 100% 100% 100%
(% of maximum)

Notas:

1. This represents the second tranche of a deferred bonus share award, which was not subject to performance criterla, The PSP award granted in December 2007 lapsed in December 2010,

2, The first awards granted to Mark Wood under the PSP were granted in January 2012 and lapsed on 18 January 2015, since the relevant performance criteria were not met,

3. The tirst awards granted to Zillah Byng-Thorne under the PSP ware granted in Dacember 2013 and lapsed on 16 December 2016, as the relevant performance criteria were not met.

4. The single figure for Zillah Byng-Thorne for 2014 includes fiva months of her Chlef Financial Officer salary and six months of her salary as Chlef Executjve.

5. Zilah Byng-Thorne walved her perforimance-rélated Sonus for 2015,

&. Zillah Byng-Thorne received a transactlon bonus of £350,000 following the ful letion of the i ition in October 2016. The right to a performance-related
bonus was waived in 2016 as a result of this transaction bonus being paid. The 88% in the table reflects the combination of this transaction benus, the profit poel behus which was
awarded as a result of EBITDA performance achieved for 2017 and the further bonus of 50% of current salary {to be satisfied In shares that must be held for at least one year] for the
achievement of 2017 target EBITDA,

7. Figuras restataed to reflect the share price at date of vest for PSP awards granted in November 2016 and February 2017,
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Basic Taxable

Director salary/fee? benefits Bonus?

Executive Directors

Zillah Byng-Thorne (4% 0% 33%
Rachel Addison n/a n/a n/a
Noh-Executive Directors

Richard Huntingford - 18% n/a n/a
Meredith Amdur n/a nfa nfa
Huge Drayton 21%% n/a n/a

Rob Hattrell 3% nfa n/a

Alan Newman 6% n/a n/z

Former Directors

Penny Ladkin-Brand {annualised)® 17% O% 53%
All employees® )% 3% 0%
Notes:

1Changes in Directors and roles during the 2019/20 financial year were as follows:
« Penny Ladkin.Brand stepped down from the Board on 1June 2020
+ Rachel Addison was sppointed to the Board as Chief Financial Officer on 1June 2020.
« Meredith Amdur was appointed te the Beard on 6 February 2020

2 salary/fees for FY 2020 reflect the voluntary temporary reductions of 20% in March {haif
of month), April and May 2020

3 The figures shown are reflective of any bonus sarned during the respective financlal
year. N ive Di 5 are not eligible to participate in the bonus scheme.

4 Tha incraase for Hugo Drayton reflects the increased base fee (from £45,000 to £55,000,

Corporate Governance

Percentage change in remuneration
of Directors and employees
The Committee has previously monitored year-on-year
changes between the mavement in salary, benefits and
annual benus for the CEQ between the current and previous
financial year compared with that of emplioyees. As required
under therevised reporting regulations, this analysis has now
been expanded to cover each Executive Director and
Non-Executive Director and will be built up over time to display
a five-year history.
The analysis is based on the average earnings per employee

in order to avoid distortions to the Group's total wage bill
because of the movements in the number of employees. The
comparator group used is all Future employees.
the Increased fee for serving as the Senior Independent Director (from £7.300 to
£10,600) and the increased fee for serving as the Chair of the Remuneration Committes
{from £5,000 to £10,000) as disclosed in the Directors' Report on Remuneration for the
year ended 30 September 2019,

5 Penny Ladkin-Brand's salary, taxable benefits and benus have been annualised, to

d if she had r Ined as Chief Fi fal

Officer until 30 September 2020, o aid comparability with prior year.
6 The decreasa in all-employee remuneration is due to a change in gecgraphic mix of the

reflact the remuneration she would have

employee population along with differing contractual terms within T) Media, along with
a higher propertion of employeaes now being based in the UK rather than the US,

Relative importance of spend on pay

The relative importance of spend on pay for the business is shown in the table below. Distributions to

shareholders:
£1.6m (+57%)

Group operating costs

o .
s Group pay: excluding Group pay & Capital expenditure:
~ exceptional costs: £4.0m (nil¥) EBT share
£169.3m [+45) purchase;
£8.5m

Capital expenditure:

23 .
Group operating costs £4.0 et N
o Group pay: P op 9 m Distributions to
~N £72.7m excluding Group pay & I
) exceptional costs: £118.7m shareholders
£1.0m
0.0 500 100.0 150.0 200.0 250.0 300.0

The table above shows the actual expenditure of the Group, and change between the current and previous years, on remuneration paid to all
employees compared to the total operating costs for the Group excluding exceptional costs and remuneration, investment in capital expenditure,
EBT share purchase, and distributions to shareholders. These are considered to be the areas of material outgoings for the Group relating to core
performance. Note that the Group expects cost synergies on the acquisition of TI Media of £20m per annum (see page 10 for further details).

Figures are derived from the Croup's consolidated financial staterments. Distribution to shareholders figures in the table relate to the dividends
paid (or payable) for the FY 2019 and FY 2020 financial years being, respectively, (i} the 1.0p final dividend for the FY 2019 financial year paid in
February 2020; and (i) the 1.6p final dividend proposed for the FY 2020 financial year, payable in February 2021. The dividend figure of £1.6m in the
chart abeve is based on the issued share capital of 98.0m at 30 September 2020.

CEO pay ratio

UK reporting regulations require companies with 250 employees or
more to publish information on the pay ratio of the Group CEQ to UK
employees. In line with this requirement, the table below shows the ratio
of CEQO total pay to that of three employees indicative of lower quartile
(P25). median (P50} and upper quartile (P75) pay received during the
financial year ended 30 September 2020 and includes basic salary.

benefits, pension contributions (for CEQ figure), and the value received
from incentive plans. Cn average the Future plc Group employed 1,196
UK employees during the financial year ended 30 September 2020.

The Committee has opted to use data already available frem the
gender pay reporting as the basis for identifying employees at P25, P50
and P75 (‘'Option B ). This excludes pension, We believe this provides a
reasonable estimate for employees’ pay at these levels within the
organisation.

Individuals pesitioned at each quartile were dentified using the most

Lower Upper recent gender pay gap data from 5 April 2020 Total full-time equivalent
Calculation quartile Median  quartile : ; ;
Financialyear methodology  (P25) {P50) (P75) remuneraftmn for each of these individuals was then calculated on the
) same basis as used in the single figure table for the Chief Executive. All
2020 Option B 1071 841 661

figures are total amounts paid to full-time employees covering the whole
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2020 financial year. Total compensation figures have been checked
to ensure the empioyees identified are representative of pay at these
levels in the organisation. The data points are reflective ol sur
Company structure and types of roles across the organisation and
accordingly the Committee believes the median pay ratio for 2020 is
consistent with the pay, reward and pregression policies for the
Company's UK employees taken as a whole.

A summary of the salaries and total single figures of remuneration
for the relevant individuals is included in the table below:

Lower Upper
Chief quartile Median gquartile
Pay level Executive {P25) (P50) (P75}
Saiary £455.032 £2500G  £31919 £40,765
singlefigure of oy poe s4n  £34457  £43997  £5665

rermuneration

Payments to past Directors (audited)

Former Chief Financial Officer - Penny Ladkin-Brand

Penny stepped down as CFO and from the Board of Nirectars on 1
June 2020. Penny remains an employee of Future, in her new role as
Chief Strategy Officer (CS0). As Group CSO, Penny’s remuneration is
determined in line with the policy that applies to other Executive
Committee members. Penny retains an interest in the PSP awards
granted to her in connection with her former role as CFO (albeit the
award levels were reduced with her agreement to reflect her new
role). See pages 102 for details of the DABS award in the year and
page 97 for details of the PSP awarded and pro-rated during the year.

Payments for loss of office (audited)
During the financial year to 30 September 2020 no payments were
made to Directors intespecl ul loss of office.

Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)

The Company has a policy on share ownership by Executive Directors
which requires that any such Director should accumulate a holding in
shares over a five-year period from appointment where the vaiue of
those shares represents at least twe times salary. Zillah Byng-Thorne
currently meets this requirermnent, as did Penny Ladkin-Brand prior to
stepping down from the Board on 1 June 2020. Rachel Addison, who
was appointed to the Board on 1 June 2020, does not yet meet this
requirement. Subject to the approval of the new Remuneration Policy,
this shareholding requirement will ncrease from 200% to 400% of
salary inrespect of the Chief Executive and from 200% to 300G% of
salary in respect of the Chief Financial Officer with effect from the
2021 AGM.

In respect of Zillah Byng-Thorne, the relevant five-year period
commenced on 1 November 2013 and ended on 31 October 2018. As

Directors’ shareheldings (audited)

a1 30 September 2020, Zillah Byng-Thorne had a holding of 269,569
shares which, at the share price on the same date, were worth
£5,235,030(1,102% of salary).

In respect of Penny Ladkin-Brand, the period commencedon 3
August 2015 and would have ended on 2 August 2020. As at 1 June
2020. the date upon which she stepped down from the Board, Penny
Ladkin-Brand had a holding of 188,262 shares which, at the share
price on the same date, were worth £2,454,936 (701% of salary).

In respect of Rachel Addisen. the period coammenced on 1 June
2020, the date upon which she joined the Board. As at 30 September
2020, Rachel Addison held no shares in the Company. Following the
year end Rachel Addison purchased 2,798 shares on 2 December
2020 at a share price of £17.74.

Balance as at Purchases Share scheme Sales Balance as at
Directors in office at 30 September during exercises during during 30 September
30 September 2020 2019 the year the year the year 2020
Executive?
Zillah Byng-Thorne? 247,205 22364 1,045344 1,045,344) 269,562
Rachel Addison* - - - - -
Non-Executive
Richard Huntingford 24,500 - - 24500
Alan Newman 8750 - - - 8,750
Huge Drayton® - - - -
Rob Hattrell - - - - -
Meredith Armndur® - - - - -
Total 280,455 22,364 1,045,344 {1,045,344) 302,819

Notes:
1. Ali hoidings are beneficial.

2. Details of the share aptions and awards for Executive Directors are set oUt on page 101. No such options or awards are granted to Non-Executlve Directors.

3.0n 26 November 2019, fallowing the full vesting of the PSP award granted on 23 Navember 2315 and 2 February 2017, Zillah 8yng-Thome received 1,045,344 Ordinary shares, Zillah Byng-Thorne sold
1,045,344 Ordinary shares on 26 November 2019 at a price of £14.00 per Ordinaty share, and purchased 11,962 Ordinary shares at a price of £12.54 per share on 3 December 2019 and a further 8,387
Ordinary shares at a price of £11.84 per Ordinary share on 7 February 2020, Max Thorhe (husband of Zillah Byng-Therne) purchased 1,250 Ordinary shares at a price of £15.1895 per Ordinary share on 26
Novernber 2019, and a further 765 Ordinary shares at a price of £11.73 per Ordinary share on 7 February 2020,
Following the year end Zillah Byng-Thorne purchased 4,835 shares on 30 Novernber 2020 at a share price of £16.80, and Max Thome purchased 1,180 shares on the same date at a share price of £16.84.

4, Rachel Addison was appointed to the Board on 1June 2020, Foliowing the year end Rachel Addison purchased 2,798 shares on 2 December 2020 at a price of £17.74.,

S. Meredith Amdur was appainted to the Baard on § February 2020,

ing the year end

ith Amdur pL

385shares on 2 December 2020 at a price of £18.07.

6. Following the year end Hugo Drayton purchased 2,376 shares on 30 Novemleer 2020 at a share price of £16.75.
7. Mark Brooker, who was appointed to the Board after the year end, purchased 1,500 shares on 1 December 2020 at a share price of £17.46.
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Executive Director shareholdings

0% 200% 400% 600% 800% 1000% 1200%

Required helding

Zillah
Byng-Therne

Actual holding (1,102% of salary)

Required hoelding

Rachel
Addison

Directors' interests in share schemes {audited)
Details of options and other share incentives held by Executive Directors and movements during the year are set out in the tables below.

PSP
|

Vested and Balance

Earliest Exercise Balance Granted Lapsed exercised at 30

Date of exercise Expiry price per at during during during the Sept
Director grant date date share [p} 10ct2019' the year® the year year® 2020
Zillah 23 Nov 16 23 Nov 19 23 Nov 26 Nil 622,672 - - (622,672)° -
Byng-Thorne ov ! ' )

02 Feb 17 23 Nov 19 02 Feb 27 Nil 622,672 - - (422,672)5 200,000

24 Nov 17 24 Nov 207 24 Nov 27 Nil 134,345 - - - 134345

23 Nov 18 22 Nov 21° 23 Nov 28 Nil 126,687 - - - 126,687

25 Nov 19 24 Nov 22° 25 Nov 29 NH - 867,185 - - 67,185
Total 1,576,376 67,185 - (1,045,344} 598,217
penny Z3Nov16  23Nov1®  23Nov26 NIl 444,765 . (44s765)5 -
Ladkin-Brand ° ov ov ! ' B '

Gz Feb 17 23 Nov 19 02 Feb 27 Nil 444,765 - - (380,235)° 64,530

24 Nov 17 24 Nov 207 24 Now 27 Nil 92,363 - - - 92,363

23 Nov 18 22 Nov 212 23 Nov 28 Nil 95083 - (18,739} - 76,344

25 Nov 19 24 Nov 222 25 Nov 29 Nil - 41,337 {(13,683) - 27654
Total 1,076,976 41,337 (32,422)  (825,000) 260,891
Rachel 01Jun20 3N May23  O1Jun30  Nil - 17,222 - - 17222
Addison ay un ! ' !
Total - 17,222 - - 17,222
Notes:

1. Fallowing the comgietion of the rights issue on 21 August 2018 the Committee eiected to ‘make guog' all share award holders by increasing their numbker of options. All share incentives
awarded te Zillah Byng-Thorne and Penny Ladkin-Brand prior to that date were therefore increased accordingly, as detailed in the Company's 2018 Annuzl Report.

2, Awards granted since November 2018 are subject to a mandatory 2-year helding period following vesting.

3. Details of awards granted in the year are set out on page 97.

4. Details of awards vesting during the year were set out in last year's report.

5. Awards were converted to nil-cost options as at 3 July 2019. Awards vested in fult following the FY 2019 year end on 23 November 2019, On 26 November 2019 Zillah Byng-Thorne
exercised a total 0f 1,045,344 and Penny Ladkin-Brand exercised a total of 550,000, @n 31 July 2020 Penny Ladkin-Brand exercised an additional 275,000, The award granted on 23

2016 is fully ised for both Zillah and Penny. For the award granted on 2 February 2017, Zillah Byng-Thorne has an unexercised amount of 200,000 shares and Penny

Ladkin-Brand has an unexercised ameount of 64,530 shares. The award granted on 2 February 2017 is fully vested for both Zillah and Penny.

6. Penny's November 2018 and Novermber 2019 awards were pro-rated to 1June 2020 to reflect her time as Chief Financial Officer.

7. There have been no changes in these interests since the year-end. During the year the Committee extended the vesting petiod of certain awards from 24 November 2020 to 25
November 2020 to ensure that they did not vest during a closed period. All outstanding awards were convearted to nil-cost optiens as at 20 November 2020,
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DABS
End of Balance at Granted Released Balance at
Director Date of grant defetral period 10ct 2019 during the year during the year 30 Sept 2020
. 25 Nov 24 Nov

Zillah Byng-Thorne So19 S021 - 25,194 - 25,194

Total - 25194 - 25,194

Penny Ladkin-Brand 25 Nov 24 Nov - 12,155 - 12155

i - 2019 2021 ' '

Total - 12,155 - 12,155

Dilution or reissue of treasury shares under a plan, when aggregated with

Awards under Future pic incentive plans may be satisfied by
treasury shares or the issue of new shares or the purchase of shares
in the market.

Under lnvestment Assaciation guidelines, the issue of new shares

awards under all of a company’s other schemes, must not exceed
10% of the issued ordinary share capital (adjusted for share
issuance and cancellation) in any rolling ten-year period. As at 30
September 2020 this limit had not been exceeded (6.7%).

Implementation of remuneration policy
in the year to 30 September 2021

As outiined earlier in this report, the Remunearation Committee is
proposing changes to the Rermuneraticn Policy principally related to
the introduction of a new Value Creation Plan for Future employees.
Subject to shareholder approval at the Company’s AGM on 10
February 2021, the Commitiee intends to implement the policy as
follows during the year to 30 Septermber 2021,

Basic salary

When reviewing salary levels, the Committee takes into account a
number of internal and external factors, including the performance of
Future during the vear, external market data, historic increases made
to the individual and, to ensure a consistent approach, the salary
review principles applied to the rest of the organisation.

The Chief Executive’s salary was last reviewed in 2018. We
committed fo a pay freeze in 2019, and announced that we would
review the salary in 2020, as part of our published Remuneration
Policy. As part of this review, we took independent advice. and studied
eguivalent market roles. Zillah Byng-Thorne was awarded an increase
of 219 with effect from 1 Oclober 2020. This increase reflects the
Comimittee’s assessment of Zillah's indivicuai performance in role,
her leadership in delivering excepticnal results for our shareholders,

and the significant increases in size, complexity and geographical
spread of the Group in recent years. Since the previous review:
adjusted operating profit has grown from £19m to £33m:; Future's
global audiente has doubled, fram 193m te almost 400m; and total
Group employees have also doubled, from 1,000 to over 2,000 staff,
Furthermore, during the interim, Future plc has entered the FTSE250,
and is now a premium listed company. In recognition of the increase,
the Committee has agreed that this salary level will remain fixed for
the next two years. and will be reviewed again no earlier than 2022.

There will be an annual inflationary pay rise in line with the wider
workforce, of 1.5%. awarded to Rache! Addison with effect from 1
January 2021,

Pension and benefits

Zlah Byng-Thorne's pension benefit will be reduced to match the
benefit of the wider workforce over the next two years. The current 15%
of salary rate wili be reduced to 6% of salary, in two stages (to 10.5% of
salary in January 2021, and to 6% of salary in January 2022}, Rachel
Addison will continue to receive a pension contribution of up 10 6% of
salary (inline with that availabie to the wider workforce) or an equivalent
cash allowance. No changes are proposed to the benefits provided.

Base salary from

Base salary from

Base salary frem

1January 2021 Percentage increase

Director 1 October 2019 10October 2020
Zillah Byng-Thorhe £475,000 £575,000
Rachel Addisen £350,000

- 2.0%

£355,250 1.5%

1. fram appointment as Chief Financial Gfficer or 1 June 2020
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Annual bonus

For FY 2021, the Company will continue to operate a profit pool
bonus for all employees across the Group, inciuding the Executive
Directors on a similar basis to that operated for FY 2020. The
maximum opportunity will remain at 200% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 150% of salary for the Chief Financial Officer, with
payouts linked to delivering adjusted operating profit performance
above Budget. Specific performance targets for the Annual Bonus
are not disclosed due to their commercial sensitivity, howeveritis
the Committee’s intention that these will be disclosed
retrospectively in next year's report. In accordance with the Policy,
50% of any bonus earned will be deferred in Future shares for 2
years under the DABS.

Long-term incentive
Subject to sharehoider approval of the new Remuneration Policy,

Executive Directors and other employees will be granted units under

the new Value Creation Plan, replacing participation in the PSP until
2023. Operaticn of the VCP is cutlined in the Policy Table on page
86, with the key features as follows:

» One-off award of units providing Future's empioyees with a
percentage of additional shareholder value created
(denominated in Future plc shares) over the next 3-5 years,
above a hurdle

» Units will vest based on value created in terms of £ Total
Shareholder Return (TSRY, being the growth in Future’'s market
capitalisation plus net equity cashflows to shareholders (i.e.
dividends plus share buybacks, less share issues), over and
above a hurdle rate of return of 10% per annum

= Future's starting market capitalisation (£1,903m) is based on

the spot closing price of a share on 30 September 2020 (£19.42)

» The VCP comprises three equal tranches, based on
performance measured over three periods, from 1 October
2020 to: 30 September 2023; 30 September 2024; and 30
September 2025

» Value created at each measurement date will be calculated with
reference to the average closing return index over the three
months ending on that date

« To the extent that performance exceeds the hurdle on a
measurement date, participants will share 3.33% of the
additional shareholder value created above the hurdle

s Participants will be allocated an individual share of this amount,
reflecting the number of units they hold. These amounts will be
converted into a number of Future pic shares, based onthe
share price at the relevant vesting date

* The aggregate additional shareholder value created and
allocated to participants is capped at £95m per tranche

s To the extent that performance does not exceed the hurdleon a

measurement date, the relevant tranche will lapse in full,
immediately. There will be no re-testing allowed

Additionally, for Executive Directors:

» Any shares awarded in respect of the first tranche
(measurement date 30 September 2023) will be subject to a
mandatory two-year holding period

Corporate Governance

= Any shares awarded in respect of the second tranche
{measurement date 30 September 2024) will be subjecttoa
mandatory one-year holding period

» Any shares awarded in respect of the final tranche (measurement
date 30 September 2025) will vest on the fifth anniversary of grant

» The ultimate release of any shares will be subject to the Committee
satisfying itself that the recorded outcome is a fair reflection of the
underlying business performanice over the period

Under the proposed scheme, a total of 980,000 units willbe
allocated to employees or reserved in case of future hires and/or
significant promotions. Subject to shareholder approval of the VCP,
Zillah Byng-Thorne will receive an award of 140,000 units in each
tranche and Rachel Addison will receive an award of 63,000 units in
each tranche.

Fees for Non-Executive Directors and the
Chairman
Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any of the Company’s
share incentive arrangements, nor do they receive any benefits. Fees
are reviewed annually, with the Beard Chair's fees set by the
Committee, and those for the Non-Executive Directors set by the
Board as a whole.

The rates for the Chairman’s and Non-Executive Directors’ fees,
which are unchanged at 1 October 2020 are:

Fees effective Fees effective
from from
1 October 2019 1 October 2020

Base fees

Board Chair £200,000 £200,000
Non-Executive £55,000 £55,000
Director!

Additional fees

Senior Independent £10,000 £10,000
Director

Audit and Risk

Committee Chair £10,000 F16000
Remuneration £10,000 £10,000

Cormmittee Chair

T, Meredith Amdur is pald In US$ and for FY 2021 this wifl be subject to a fixed exchange rate
of £1 = US$1.30.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by
0 a—
Hugo Drayton

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
10 December 2020
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Future plc is the holding company of the Future group of companies (the Group).

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s twenty second Annual
General Meeting will be held at 10:3Camcn
Wednesday 10 February 2021 at Future’s
London office at 1-10 Praed Mews, Londor,
W2 1QY. Theresolutions and explanatory
notes are set out in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting on pages 164-171.

Corporate Governance
statement

The Corporate Governance statement,
prepared in accordance with rule 7.2 of the
Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules,
comprises of the following sections of the
Annua! Report: the Strategic Report; the
Corporate Governance Report: the Audit
and Risk Committee Report; the
Nomination Committee Report; the
Rermuneration Committee Report; together
with this Directors’ Report. As permitted by
legislation, some of the matters required to
be included in the Directors’ Report have
been included in the Strategic Report by
cross reference including details of the
Group's financial risk management
objectives and policies, business review,
future prospects and environmental policy.

Directors

The names and biographica) details of the
current Directors are shown on pages 66 to
67 of this Annual Report. Particulars of
their emoluments and beneficial and
non-beneficial interests in shares are given
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
page 94 and 102,

The appointment and removal of
Directors is governed by the Company’s
Articles of Association, the 2018 Code and
the Companies Act 2006. The Directors
may. from time to time, appoint one or
more Directors. In the interests of good
governance and in accordance with the
provisions of the 2018 Cade, all Directors
will retire and submit themselves for
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election or re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

Directors Powers

The Board manages the business of the
Company under the powers set cut in the
Company's Articles of Association. The
Company's Articles of Association canonly
be amended, or new Articles adopted, by a
resolution passed by sharehclders in 2
general meeting by at least three quarters
of the votes cast.

Further discussion of the Board's
activities, powers and responsibilities
appears within the Corporate Governance
Report on page 68 of this Annual Report.
Information on compensation for loss of
office is contained in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on page 92 of this
Annual Report.

Directors’ conflicts of
interests

The Company has procedures in place for
managing conflicts of interest. Should a
Director become aware that they, or any of
their connected parties. have aninterestin
an existing or proposed transaction with
the Company, they should notify the Board
inwriting or at the next Board meeting.
Internal controls are in place to ensure that
any related party transactions involving
Directors, or their connected parties, are
conducted on an arm’s length basis.
Directors have a continuing duty to update
any changes to these conflicts.

movements in the Company’s issued share
capital during the year, are shown in note 22
to the financial statements. The Company
has one class of ordinary shares with a
nominal value of 15 pence each (Ordinary
Shares), which does not carry the right to
receive a fixed income. Each share carries
the right to one vote at general meetings of
the Cempany. There are no restrictions or
agreements known to the Company that
may resu't in restrictions on share transfers
or voting rights in the Company. There are
no specific restrictions on the size of a
holding, on the transfer of shares, or on
voting rights, all of which are governed by
the provisions of the Articles of Association
and prevailing legislation.

Shareholder authority for the Company
to aliot Qrdinary Shares up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £735,107 was granted at
the 2019 AGM. The issued share capital of
the Company at 30 September 2020 was
approxinidately £14,702,243 25 divided into
98,014.955 Ordinary Shares.

Since 30 September 2020, 145 new
shares have been issued as a result of the
exercise of share options by the Company's
share option scheme participans and the
total issued share capital at 10 December
2020 is 98.015,100 Ordinary Shares. The
Company's Ordine y Shares arc listed on
the London Stock Exchange. The register of
shareholders is held in the UK.

Political donations
No contributions were made to political
parties during the year (2019: £Nil).

Directors’ indemnities

The Company had Qirectors' and Officers'
liability insurance cover in place
throughout the year.

Share capital
Details of the Company's issued share
capital, together with details of the

Whistleblowing procedure

Whistleblowing and
anti-bribery policies

it is Future's policy to conduct all of cur
business in an honest and ethical manner,
and we take a zero-tolerance approach to
bribery and corruption. We are committed
to acting professionally, fairly and with



Substantial interests

Corporate Governance

Infermation provided to the Company pursuant to the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules
{DTRs) is published on a Regulatory Information Service and on the Company’s website, The fellowing information has been
received, in accordance with DTR 5, from holders of notifiable interests in the Company's issued share capital.

Shareholder

Aberforth Partners LLP
Standard Life Aberdeen plc
BlackRock Inc

JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc.

Old Mutual Global Investors (UK) Ltd
Jupiter Fund Managernent Plc
Ameriprise Financial, Inc. and its group
Invesco Ltd

AXA [nvestment Managers

Oberweis Asset Management, Inc.

As at As at
30 September 2020 10 December 2020 Nature of holding
10.88% 10.88% Indirect
10.77% Below 10% Indirect
6.56% Below 5% Indirect
6.11% &.11% Indirect
368% 5.68% Indirect
5.55% 5.55% Indirect
5.007% 5.007% Direct and indirect
4.87% 4.87% Indirect
3.81% 3.81% Indirect
3.71% 3% Indirect

*% holding based on tetal number of shares in issue at the time of respective notification.

The Company has not been notified of any other substantial interests in its securities. The Company’s substantial shareholders do
not have different voting rights. The Group, so far as is known by the Company, is not directly or indirectly owned or controlled by

another corporation or by any government.

integrity in all our business dealings and
relationships wherever we operate, and we
are implementing and enforcing effective
systems to counter bribery and corruption.

We have whistleblowing, anti-bribery and
corruption policies which are updated
regularly and published on our intranet. The
whistieblewing policy is designed to
encourage employees to report, in goed
faith, any genuine suspicions of fraud.,
bribery malpractice. modern slavery and
human trafficking. Concerns may be raised
according to a stated escalation process
from anindividual's line manager, via their
head of department, Head of People
Operations, to the Head of Legal and then to
the Board of Directors, including the Senior
Independent Director. Concerns may also
be raised completely anonymousiy by post.
The whistle-blowing policy is also designed
to ensure that any employee whoraises a
genuine concern is protected. During the
year, no issues of concern were raised via
any of the whistleblewing channels.

In addition, to ensure Future is adopting
best practice with anti-corruption
legislation, and to promote transparency, a
Review Kit, Trips and Gifts Log is in place to
track the whereabouts of products sent to
us for review and the acceptance of gifts
and trips by our employees. We also have in
place an Editerial Ethics Committee which
monitors the appreach to gifts and reviews
trips to ensure not only are we legally
compliant, but that we alseo comply with cur
own ethical and editorial standards.

Reducing waste

Sourcing paper

Paper is the largest raw materiaiwe use asa
Group. We work hard to make sure that
whatever we consume, we do it in a way that
is ethically responsible and environmentally
sustainable. Our paper is sourced and
produced from sustainable, managed
forests, conforming to strict environmental

and socio-economic standards. Our paper
mills and paper merchants ali hold full FSC
(Forest Stewardship Council) certification
and accreditation, showing our
commitment to sourcing paper supplies
from sustainable sources.

Recycling of unsold

magazines and gifts

The Group is strongly incentivised to
minimise the number of unsold magazines
and we employ sophisticated techniques to
help achieve this. In the UK, Future's unsold
magazines are either used in recycled paper
manufacture or in other recycling
operaticns, or they are handed to local
schools and hospitals. We also support the
Protfessional Publishers Association's
initiative encouraging readers to recycle
their magazines after use, and are now fulil
members of the OPRL (On-Pack-Recycling-
Label) Scheme which provides full access
to and use of correct recycling labelling,
instructing censumers how to responsibly
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recycle or dispose of cur magazines and
packaging. Gifts on our unsold copies are
incinerated to create further energy, and
any magazine gifts containing electronic
components are removed and responsibily
disposed of in accordance with WEEE
{Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
Directive) regulations.

Packaging

We comply with our obligations under the
Producer Rasponsibility Obligations
(Packaging Waste) Regulations, and carry
out an annual packaging waste audit where
we declare our packaging waste volumes to
the Environment Agency and offset our
waste by purchase of Packaging Waste
Recovery Notes.

We use LDPE4 (number 4-coded
low-density polyethylene) to wrap our
subscriptions and newstrade copies, which
is fully recyclable. Recycling logos were
updated in late Octcober 2019 to show the
latest information available on recyclability
of the wrappers, directing customers to
recycle the bags at local supermarkets. In
addition, the UK subscription mailing copies
of our Home Interest titles were wrapped in
paper rather than plastic from January
2020 onwards.

Recycling and waste
management in the office

We play an active part in recycling across all
of our locations. We have clearly defined
communal waste and recycling areas in all
offices across the UK and US. Last year we
introduced a new food waste recycling
facility in our Bath office in the UK and had
planned to roli it out to other offices. We
worked with our waste provider to complete
quarterly reporting to trace waste usage
more efficiently and moniter progress cn
reducing our waste that is sent to landfill.
Before the offices were closed we were
recycling 50% of waste.

Streamlined Energy & Carbon
Report (SECR} Summary

In accordance with the Companies Act
2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’
Report) Regulations 2013 (‘the 2013
Regulations') and the Companies
{Directors' Report) and Limited Liability
Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report}
Regulations 2018 (‘the 2018 Regulaticns’)
we have reported our Streamlined Energy

Global tonnes CO ¢

Env-reparting-guidance_inc_SECR_31March.pdf
? https://ghgprotocol.org/

3 https:/fwww.govuk/g nment/publications/gr

* Source: IEA (2019) Emission Factors (htips:/fwww.lea.org/t_c/termsandconditions/)

use-gas-reporting-conversion-factors-2020

emigsions from 2018 20719 2020
UK 97 26 106
The combustion of fuel: us 2
gas for heating and fuel for i
hicles (S ] Australia - 1
chicles (Sco
vehicles (Scope ) TOTAL 97 26 109
The purchase of electricity: UK 331 298 235
heat, steam or cooling by the us 3 205 34
Group for its own use [(Scope 2) Australia - -
Location Based TOTAL 334 503 269
The purchase of electricity: heat, UK - - 37
steam or cooling by the Group us - - 34
for its own use (Scope 2) Australia - -
Market Based TOTAL - - mn
Total Emissi tCO.
al |.'n|55|ons { e) 431 599 378
- Location Based
Total Emissions (tCO.e
(CO.e) - - 480
- Market Based
Total Revenue {£m) £130.1m £221.5m  £339.6m
Intenst io (tCOe £
ensn-:y Ratio (tCO.e per £1m) 33 27 1
- Location Based
Underlying global kwWh
energy use from 2020
Total (kWh)
UK 9
The combustion of fuel 549,946
. us 8,854
gas for heating and fue! .
. Australia 5144
for vehicles {Scope 1)
TOTAL 563,944
- UK 1,008,372
The purchase of electricity:
. us 83,247
heat, steam or cooling by the )
. Australia -
Group for its own use (Scope 2)
TOTAL 1,091,619
Total Energy (kWh) 1,655,563
Total Revenue {(fm) £339.6m
Intensity Ratio (kWh per £1m} 4,875.04
Nates:
Thetps: publishing.service. gov.uk/ A 2 ? _datalfi 30/



and Carbon Report disclosure for 2020.
covering the period 1 October 2019 to 30
September 2020.

Methodoclogy

We have used the Environmental
Reporting Guidelines: Including
streamlined energy and carbon reporting
guidance and Greenhouse Gas Protocol
methodology for compiling this GHG data
and have included all required emissions
sources. GHG emissions factors have been
sourced and applied from BEIS conversion
factors for Greenhouse Gas emissions, the
equivalent reports on nen-UK properties
used the CO.e factors provided by the
International Energy Agency ("IEA") for
emissions associated with electricity
consumption. As a Group with only
office-based activities and no
manufacturing activities, under the GHG
Protocol Corporate Standard, emissions
fall under Scope 1 {combustion of fuei) and
Scope 2 (purchase of electricity).

Energy Efficiency Action Taken
In the period covered by the report the
Company has completed installation of
LED lighting in its Bath & London offices
and it is anticipated this will reduce energy
usage by approximately 20%. The
company has also made alterations to
optimise BMS settings to reduce energy
usage across sites. During the next
financial year the company will be
completing TM44 surveys at all sites and
will act on the results accordingly.

intensity Ratio

We are using "Fonnes per £1 millicn
revenue’. Our GHG emissions CO.e
intensity has decreased freom 2.7 tonnes
CO,e per£min 2019 to 1.1 tonnes CO,e per
£m 2020, which is a decrease of 59%.

Office closures due to COVID-19
COVID-15 has had a farge impact on our
kKWh usage as offices have been shut for
periods of time due to government
lockdowns.

Results and dividends

The results of the Group are shown on
page 120 and movements in reserves are
setout in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Corporate Governance

The Board's policy is that dividends
should be covered at least four 'mes by
adjusted earnings per share and free
cashflow. The Company's Employee
Benefit Trust (EBT) waives its entitlement
to any dividends, The Board is
recommending a final dividend for the year
of 1.6p per share (2019: 1.0p per
share) to shareholders recorded on the
register at the close of business on 15
January 2021. The Ordinary Shares will
become ex-dividend ¢n 14 January 2021,

Significant agreements

The provisions of the European Directive
on Takeover Bids (as implemented in the
UKinthe Companies Act 2006) require
the Company to disclose any significant
agreements which take effect, alter or
terminate upon a change of contrel of the
Company. In cammon with many cther
companies, the Group's bank facility is
terminable upon change of control of the
Company. In common with market
practice, awards under certamn of the
Group's long-term incentive plans (details
of which are set out in the Directors’
remuneration report on pages 94 to 103)
will vest or potentially be exchangeable
into awards over a purchaser’s share
capital upon change of contrel of the
Company. There is also a change of control
provision in the service agreements of the
two Executive Directors, exercisable within
three months of 2 change of control by
the Company or on one month’s notice
by the Executive to expire no later than
three months from the date of the

change of control.

Directors' Report, and which is

incorporated by reference, including
information required in accordance with
the UK Companies Act 2006 and Listing
Rule 9.8.4R, can be located as follows:

This Directors’ Report was approved by

order of the Board.
On behalf of the Board

/;'28 AV S— st

Rachel Addison
Company Secretary
10 December 2020

Disclosure of information to
the auditor

The Directors whea held office at the date of
approval of this Directors’ Report confirm
that. so far as they are aware, there isno
relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditor is unaware. and each
Directer has taken all reasonable steps to
ascertain any relevant audit information
and to ensure that the Company’'s auditor
is aware of that information.

Other information
Other information relevant to this

Subject matter Page
Important events since
. . 163

the financial year-end

Likely future developments
; . 1
in the business

Research and development 13
Information on

] T 58
financial instruments

Internal control and risk
management systems in

refation to the process for 75
preparing consolidated
accounts

Employment of 51
disabled persons

Employee involvernent 50
Stakeholder engagement 44
Informaticn on branches 162
Diversity policy 51
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Di rectors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulation.

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group and Company financial staterments in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union. In preparing the group financiat
statements. the Diregtors have also elected to cornnply with IFRSs,
issued by the International Accounting Standards Beard {IASB).

Under company law, Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit
or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing the financial
siaternents, the Directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently:

= state whether applicable IFRSs as adoepted by the European
Unicn and IFRSs issued by IASB have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements;

= make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Group and Cornpany and hence for taking reascnable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregufarities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's and
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group and Company and enable
them to ensure that the financial staterments and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and. as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the Company's website. Legis'ation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
fram legislation in other jurisdictions.

108 [ FUTURE PLC

Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annual Repert and Accounts, taken
as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's and

Campany’s position and performance, business modef and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the
Corporate Governance report confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge:

« the Group and Lomprzny (ndnial slateyvents, which have beon
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and IFRSs issued by 1ASB, give a true and fair view of the
assets, labilities, financiai position and profit of the Group and
loss of the Company; and

» the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the pasition of the Group
and Company, together with a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties that it faces.

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report
i5 approved;
= 50 far as the Director is aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the Group's and Company's auditors are
unaware; and
« they have taken all the steps that they anght to have takenas a
Director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
infermation and to establish that the Group’s and Company’s
auditors are aware of that information.

This responsihility statement was approved by the Board of
Directors on 10 December 2020 and is signed on its behalf by:

Ziflah Byng-Thorne
Chief Executive
10 December 2020
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Future plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Future ple’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements”):

s give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 30 September 2020 and of the
group’s profit and the group’s and the company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and, as regards the company’s financial statements, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

+  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companics Act 2006 and, as regards the group
tinancial statements, Article 4 of the TAS Regulalion.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the Consolidated and
Company balance sheets as at 30 September 2020; the Consolidated income statetnent, the Consolidated Staternent of
comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Company cash flow statements, the notes to the Consclidated and Company
cash flow statements and the Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; the
Accounting policies; and the notes to the financial statements.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)™) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK} are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were
not provided to the group or the company.

Other than those disclosed in the Directors’ Report, we have provided no non-audit services to the group or the company in
the period from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2020.

Our audit approach
Querview
e  Overall group materiality: £2,605,000 (2019: £1,363,000), based on 5% of profit before
tax.

s  Overall company materiality: £4,334,000 (2019: £2,408,000}, based on 1% of total
Materiality assets.

s  The scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures performed

were determined by our risk assessment, the financial significance of components and

Audit scope other qualitative factors (including history of misstatement through fraud or error).

e  We performed audit procedures over three components we considered either financially
significant or higher risk in the context of the Group (full scope andit) and over three
components specific audit procedures were performed on certain account balances and

Key audit transactions.

matters s  We also performed other procedures including Group and component level analytical

review procedures to mitigate the risk of material misstatement in the insignificant
components.

s  Procedures were also performed at the Group level over the consolidation process.
e  The accounting for acquisitions (Group)
» The classification of exceptional items (Group)
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Financial Statements

*  Accounting for uncertain tax provisions (Group)
¢ The valuation of newstrade returns provision {Group)
» Impact of COVID-19

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements.

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to financial reporting and related company legislation and taxation legislation, and we considered
the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws
and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006,
We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements
(including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate
journal entries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure, and management bias in accounting estimates. The group
engagement team shared this risk assessment with the component auditors so that they could include appropriate audit
procedures in response to such risks in their work. Audit procedures perfermed by the group engagement team and/or
component auditors included:

* Discussions with the Board of directors, management and the Group's and Company's legal function, including
consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

» Reviewing relevant meeting minutes including those of the Board of directors and its key sub-committees
(including the Audit Committee);

s  Evaluation of management’s controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities, in particular the whistleblowing
policy and employee code of conduct;

»  Asscssment of matters reported on the Group’s whistleblowing helpline and the results of management's
investigation of such matters;

»  Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates, in
particular in relation to the valuation of goodwill, newstrade return provision, the valuation of assets and liabilities
acquired through business combinations and uncertain tax positions (see related key audit matters below); and

» Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal eniries posted with unusual account combinations.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with laws
and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the finaneial statements, the less likely we would become
aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting & material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any
comments we make on the results of our procedures thercon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This
is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Key audit maiter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
The accounting for the acquisition of Barcroft Studios and ~ Our work over the accounting for the acquisitions was

TT Media. Refer to note 28 for further information. supported by our in-house valuation experts and included
During the year, the Group completed its acquisition of the following procedures:

Barcroft Studios and TI Media. We focussed on the .

We agreed the cash and equity consideration paid to
supporting documentation.

e Based on our understanding of the acquired businesses,
assessed whether all assets and liahilities had been
appropriately identified. We also considered any

accounting for these transactions because they are material
to the consolidated financial statements of the Group and
because there is a degree of judgement in the identification
and valuation of the assets and liabilities acquired.
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Key audit matter

How owr audit addressed the key audit matter

The classification of exceptionol items (£17.1 million (2016
£3.4 million)} Refer to nate 5 for further information

The Group’s accounting policy is to report items of income
and expense as exceptional items where they relate to an
event which falls outside the ordinary activities of the
business and where individually or in aggregate, they have a
material impact on the financial statements.

Exceptional items primarily consist of acquisition related
costs, restructuring costs and onerous property costs. We
focussed on this area because exceptional items are material

to the consolidated financial statements and because there is

a degree of judgement in their classification.

The valuation of goodwill and other intangibles £493.6m
(2019: £329.0 millian}). Refer to note 12 for further
information.

Goodwill is an intangible asset that arises on the acquisition
of a business and refiects the portion of the consideration
paid which cannot be allocated to separately identifiable
acquired assets. Goodwill is not amortised but tested for
impairment at least once a year, or more frequently where
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

We focused on this area because goodwill is material to the
consolidated financial staternents and the assumptions used
in the impairment assessment are inherently subjective. In
particular, the assessment is highly sensitive to changes in
forecast earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment (EBITDA) margins.

Other intangibles have arisen from the acquisition of

businesses where the acquired assets have been separately
identified using the purchase price model, Other intangibles

assets acquired as part of a business combination are initially

stated at fair value. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of these intangibles
over their estimated useful lives (berween one and fifteen
years).

We focused on this area as there is a risk that brands,

required alignment of accounting policies and valuation
methodologies.

»  We used our in-house valualivn eaperts to assess the

appropriateness of the methodology used to value
intangible assets and the reasonableness of certain, key
assumptions, particularly the discount rates, the royalty
rates and the attrition rates.

»  We re-performed the calculation of goodwill,

s We assessed the adequacy of disclosures relating to the
acquisitions, taking into account the requirements of
relevant financial reporting standards and tested the
completeness and accuracy of those diselosures.

Based on the work performed we found that the fair value of
the acquired assets and liabilities was supported by the
evidence obtained and that the accounting for the acquisitions
was appropriate.

We tested the classification of exceptional items by
examining supporting information such as invoices,
payslips, anncuncements or correspondence in respect of the
restructuring and relevant provision calculations. For each
item tested we considered the nature of the item and the
appropriateness of the classification as exceptional.

From the evidence obtained, we concurred with
management’s assessiment to classify and disclose these
costs as scparately reported exceptional items, in line with
the disclosed accounting policy.

Our work to address the valuation of goodwill was supported
by our in-house valuation experts and included the following
procedures:

*  We obtained management’s value in use cash flows
underpinning their goodwill impairment assessment
and tested the mathematical accuracy and reviewed
the key assumptions such as discount rates, long term
growth rates and EBITDA margins.

®»  We assessed whether the forecast EBITDA margins
were reasonable by comparing them to historical
trends and by considering the accuracy of
management’s forecasting in the past. We considered
whether there had been any changes to the business or
to the market environment, which could increase the
level of uncertainty in the forecast.

s We performed sensitivities to confirm that the forecast
EBITDA margins continued to remain the key
assumption to which the impairment assessment was
most sensitive. We also considered to what level the
EBITDA margins would need to deteriorate in order to
indicate impairment.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

websites or other amortised assets are no longer used
following initial acquisition.

These balances remain material and it is possible that
material amortised intangibles may no longer be generating
cash flows, resulting in an impairment to their valuation. The
impact of COVID-1g on the business may also have led to an
impairment trigger.

Accounting for uncertatn tax provisions

The Group is subject to tax laws in a number of jurisdictions,
primarily the US and UK and subject to periodic challenges
by local tax authorities on a range of tax matters during the
normal course of business, including transfer pricing, direct
and indirect taxes and transaction related tax

matters. Where the amount of tax payable is uncertain, the
Group establishes provisions based on management’s
judgement of the likelihood of settlement being required.

In particular, the Group has material intra-group
transactions relating to the cross-border licensing of
platform technology and brands which give rise to transfer
pricing risk. These have needed to keep pace with the rapid
increase in profits over the past 3 years. The net result is that
the group has recognised a material centrally held provision
against uncertain tax positions, the valuation of which is a
highly judgemental area. Where tax positions are not settled
with the tax authorities, the Directors take into account
precedent and the advice of external experts.

We focused on the judgements made by management in
assessing the likelihood of potentially material exposures and
the estimates used to determine such provisions where
required, which could materially impact the amounts
recorded in the Group financial statements.

e  We used our in-house valuation cxperts to compare
the discount rate to our own estimate of the Group’s
cost of capital, adjusted for the effects of tax.

e  We also assessed the reasonableness of the assumed
long-term growth rate in light of external forecasts for
the UK and US economies.

In respect of the other intangibles

*  We reviewed management’s assessment of whether
there were impairment triggers (such as closure of
magazine titles, or the impact of COVID-19 on the
evenis business) and considered whether their views
were supported by the evidence in the business.

¢  We selected a sample of other intangible assets and
performed testing to ensure they are still used in the
business and whether assels are generating sufficient
cashflows to support the carrying value.

*  We also considered the adequacy of the disclosures
with regards to goodwill and intangible assets.

Based on the work performed, we found that the methods
used in the impairment assessment of goodwill and other
intangibles were appropriate and that the conclusions
rcached were supported by the evidence obtained.

Qur work Lo address the value of this provision included the
following procedures:

*  Weengaged our in-house tax specialists to review
the tax provisions as a whole, including the
uncertain tax provision.

»  Wc challenged management’s choice of assumptions
and scenarios in which they anticipated risks would
arise, to confirm the existence of each risk.

&  Weassessed each component of management’s
provision against external evidence, where available,
to confirm their estimate of the amount of tax at
stake from each identified risk.

&  We reviewed the external advice received by
management and compared this with management’s
judgement of the likelihood of risk and our own
experience to assess the probabilities assigned by
management in their weighted average estimate of
the provision as a whole.

s  For the transfer pricing risks, we consulted with our
in-house transfer pricing specialists to gain an
understanding of the current status of tax
assessments and investigations and to monitor
legislative development.

We modelled alternative scenarios to gauge the
sensitivity of the provision as a whole to changing
assumptions.

*  We challenged management regarding the
possibility of a ‘competent authority asset’ in respect
of the transfer pricing risk and challenged their
judgement regarding whether or not they would be
likely to pursue such an asset in their ditferent
scenarios.

Based on the work performed we concluded that the
provision falls within a reasonable range of estimates.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The valuution of newstrade retwrns provisions

Magazine newsstand revenuc is recognised at the date that
the related publication goes on sale where the Group is the
publisher. The amount of revenue recognised is based on the
number of issues printed and an estimate of the number of
returns.

Where the Group is the wholesaler (Marketforce), while
revenue is based on the margin earned rather than the gross
price of the magazine, the estimate of the number of returns
is still a significant judgement.

We focused on this area because of the inherent subjectivity
in ¢stimating the numhber of returns and because of the
significance of Magazine revenue to the Uroup's reposted
result, particularly in light of the acquisition of TI Media and
the Marketforce business, Changes to the estimated number
of returns could have a material impact on Magazine revenue.

Impact of COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic is considered to have a potential
impact on certain aspects of the financial statements. The
areas which might be expected to be impacted by COVID-19
are as set out below:

*  Recaverability of accounts receivable

* Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles

»  Going concern and viability

s Disclosure of the impact on the business

We have also incorporated the guidance for auditors
issued by the FRC regarding COVID-19 and applied this
where appropriate.

Our work to address the valualivu of the provision included
the following procedures:

s  We assessed whether the estimated number of

returns was reasonable by comparing the estimate to
historical trends and by considering the accuracy of
management’s forecasting in the past.

We considered whether there had been any change
to the types of magazines sold or changes to the
market environment, which could inecrease the level
of uncertainty in the estimate, particularly the
impact of COVID-19.

We also examined the number of returns processed
after the yewr-end where available and compared
that data to the level of returns forecast by
management.

Based on the work performed, we found that the methods
and assumptions used to estimate the number of returns
were appropriate and that the provision was supported by
the evidence obtained.

We have considered the impact of COVID-1¢ on various
areas of the Annual Report and performed procedures to
address the risk around the impact of COVID-19.

‘We have set cut our responses to the risk in respective areas
of the financial statements as below:

s  Recoverability of accounts receivable:

We have considered the adequacy of provisions for
impairment of accounts raceivable, considering post
year end cash receipts, testing IFRS g provisions, and
considering the history of collections of accounts
receivable since the start of pandemic

restricions. We considered the evidence supported
management’s decision to increase the provision.

Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles:

O

¢ Wehave reviewed and challenged management's
impairment trigger assessment in respect of other
mtangibles.

o We have considered the impact of COVID-19 on fufure

cash flows supporting the carrying value of goodwill as
set out above,

Going concern and viability:

We have considered the impact on cash flows
supporting the going concern assertion, including the
impact on bank covenants and forecast covenant
compliance,

[=]

¢  Disclosure of impact in the financial statements:

We have audited the disclosures provided in the
financial statements and assessed the reasonableness
of such disclosures. As a result of the procedures
performed, we consider that the disclosures are
reasonable and appropriate.

Overall, we consider management’s assessment of the impact
of COVID-1g on the financial staterents to be reasonable.
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How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which they operate.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Company financial statements
Overall materiality £2,605,000 (2019: £1,363,000). £4,334,000 {(2019: £2,408,000).
How we determined it 5% of profit before tax. 1% of total assets.
Rationale for Profit before tax is a generally accepted As a holding company, the entity is not
benchmark applied benchmark for determining materialityina  considered to be profit-oriented. In such
profit oriented business and this year we circumstances, total assets is a generally
concluded that this was the most appropriate accepted benchmark. Company materiality
benchmark to use. In the prior year, we has been capped at £1,500,000 to reflect its
concluded that adjusted EBITDA was the allocation of materiality for the purpose of

most appropriate bertchmark to determine the Group audit.
materiality, considering the scale of the

business and the impact of the Group’s

ongoing acquisition and integration activitics

on profit before tax. As acquired businesses

are integrated and profits grow to

“normalised” levels, we re-evaluated our

benchmark in the current year.

For each component in the scope of our group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall group
materiality. The range of materiality allocated across components was between £1,100,000 and £2,605,000.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
£130,000 {Group audit) (2019: £68,000) and £130,000 (Company audit) (2019: £68,000) as well as misstatements below
those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Going concern

In accordance with ISAs (UK) we report as follows:

Reporting obligation Outcome

‘We are required to report if we have anything material to add or draw We have nothing material to add or to draw
attention to in respect of the directors’ statement in the financial attention to.

statements about whether the directors considered it appropriate to However, because not all future events or
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial conditions can be predicted, this statement is
statements and the directors’ identification of any material not a guarantee as to the group’s and

uncertainties to the group’s and the company’s ability to continue as a company’s ability to continue as a going
going concern cver a period of at least twelve months from the date of

concern.
approval of the financial statements.

We are required to report if the directors’ statement relating to Going We have nothing to report.
Concern in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially
inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, aceordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
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in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or 8 material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conelude that
there is a maternal misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006
{CA06), ISAs (UK} and the Listing Rules of the Finaneial Conduct Authority (FCA) require us alse to report certain opinions
and matters as described below (required by ISAs (UK) unless otherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 September 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements. (CA06)

in hight of the knowledpy aud underslanding of the group and comprany and their cnvironment obtained in the course of
the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements i1 the Straiegle Repuil aud Dirvectors’ Report. (CA06)

The directors’ assessment of the prospects of the group and of the principal risks that would threaten
the solvency or liquidity of the group

We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding:

+ Thedirectors’ confirmation on page 38-42 of the Annual Report that they have carried out a robust assessment of
the principal risks facing the group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance,
solvency or liquidity.

¢ The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or
mitigated.

s The directors’ explanation on page 44 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the
group, over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their
statcment as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the group will be able to continue in operation
and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures
drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We have nothing to report having performed a review of the directors’ statement that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the group and statement in relation to the longer-term viability of the group. Our
review was substantially less in scope than an avdit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the directors’
process supporting their stalements; checking that the statements are in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK
Corporate Gevernance Code {the “Code™); and considering whether the statements are consistent with the knowledge and
understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit. (Listing Rules)

Other Code Provisions
We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to report when:

«  The statement given by the directors, on page 108, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be
fair, balanced and understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members to assess the group’s
and company’s position and performance, business model and strategy is materially inconsistent with our
knowledge of the group and company obtained in the course of performing our audit.

« The section of the Annual Report on page 76-77 describing the work of the Audit Committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee,

¢ The directors’ statement relating to the company’s compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a
departure from a relevant provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors.

Directors’ Remuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006. (CA06)

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors” Responsibilities Statement set out on page 108, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements in accordarnce with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of




Financial Statements

accounting unless the directors cither intend to liquidate the group or the company or te cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit condueted in accordance with ISAs (UK} will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This deseription forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not heen kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* the company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the members on 11 May 1994 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 1999 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is 22 years, covering the years ended 31 December 1999 to 30 September 2020.

Katharine Finn (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Bristol

10 December 2020
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 September 2020

o«
el
=
1]
=
2
o}
th
3
v}
£
]
£
i

020 2019

Non—'-'GAAE d v ND:d-jﬁ:t.:Z Adjusting Statutory

results items results resulis iterns Tesults

Note £m £m £€m £m £m £m

Revenue 1,2 339.6 - 339.6 2215 - 2215
Net operating expenses 3 (246.2) (42.7) (288.9) {169.3) (25.5) (194.8)
Operating profit i 93.4 {42.7} 50.7 522 (25.5) 267
Finance income 7 0.5 7.6 8l - 0.8 08
Finance costs 7 (2.0) {2.3) {5.3) (2.1} (12.9) {15.0)
Net finance income/{costs) {2.5) 53 2.8 2n 2.0 (14.2)
Other (expense)/income ‘ - 0.5) {1.5) 0.2 - 0.2
Profit before tax 1 90.9 {38.9) 52.0 503 {37.6) 27
Tax charge 8 {18.0) 10.3 {7.7) {93 4.5 (4.6)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 72.9 (28.6) 44.3 412 (33.0) 81

Sea page 128 and hote 10 for & iliation b: dj d and v rosults.
Earnings per 15p Ordinary share

2020 2019

Note pence pence

Basic earnings per share 10 46.4 a9

Diluted earnings per share 10 45.4 a3

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 September 2020

2020 2019
£ £m

Profit for the year 4&4.3 81

Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated income statement

Currency translation differences (8.3) 83
Other comprehensive [loss)/income for the year {8.3) 83
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the parent 36.0 164

Iterms in the staterment above are disclosed het of tax.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

faor the year ended 30 September 2020

Share

Retained

Issued share premium Merger Treasury eamning: Total
capital account reserve reserve {losses) equity
Group Note Em £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 October 2018 12.2 97.2 1249 (0.3) (61.4) 1726
Profit for the year - - - - 8.1 81
Currency translation differences - - - - 8.3 83
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 8.3 83
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 6.4 16.4
Share capital issued during the year 22,24 03 - 155 - - 5.8
Share schemes
- Value of employees’ services & - - - - 3.4 3.4
- Deferred tax on options 14 - - - - 56 5.6
Dividends paid to shareholders 9 - - - - [0.4] [0.4)
Balance at 30 September 2019 12.5 97.2 140.4 ©3) (36.4) 213.4
Retained earnings impact of adopting IFRS 16 - - - - {0.8) (©.8)
Restated balance at 1 October 2019 12.5 97.2 140.4 {0.3) (37.2) 212.6
Profit for the year - - - - 44.3 44.3
Currency translation differences - - - - (8.3) 8.3)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - - {8.3) (8.3)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 36.0 360
Share capital issued during the year 22,24 22 99.8 305 - - 1325
Acquisition of own shares 24 - - - 8.5) {0.6) {31
Share schemes
- Value of employees' services 6 - - - - 56 56
- Current tax on options - - - - 8.4 8.4
- Deferred tax on options 4 - - - - {3.7) (3.7}
Dividends paid to shareholders 9 - - - - {1.0) (1.9)
Balance at 30 September 2020 14.7 197.0 170.9 (8.8) 75 381.3
Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 September 2020
Share
Issued share premium Merger Retalned Total
capital account reserve earnings equity
Company Note £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 October 2018 12.2 972 1589 552 180.5
Loss for the year - - - {1.6} 1.6
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - {1.6) (1.8)
Share capital issued during the year 22,24 0.3 - 155 - 15.8
Share schemes
- Value of employees’ services - - - 3.4 3.4
- Deferred tax on options - - - 23 23
Dividends paid to shareholders 9 - - - (0.4) (0.4)
Balance at 30 September 2019 12.5 97.2 3.4 58.9 200.0
Loss for the year - - - 6.5) {6.5)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - (6.5) (6.5)
Share capital issued during the year 22,24 22 92.8 305 - 1325
Acquisition of own shares - - - {C.6) (0.6}
Share schemes
- Value of employees’ services - - - 5.6 56
- Deferred tax on options - - - {3.9) {39)
Dividends paid to shareholders 9 - - - 1.0) (1.0)
Balance at 30 September 2020 14.7 197.0 61.9 52.5 326.1
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 30 September 2020
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2020 2018
Note £m £m

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment n 20.9 2.5
Intangible assets - goodwill 2 309.7 2187
Intangible assets - other 12 183.9 No3
Investments - 02
Deferred tax 14 1.0 37
Tatal non-current assets 515.5 3354
Current assets
Inventories 0.7 -
Corporation tax recoverable 17 11
Trade and other receivables 15 72.4 419
Cash and cash equivalents 16 19.3 66
Financial asset - derivative 21 - 1.4
Finance tease receivable 21 1.6 -
Total current assets 95.7 51.0
Total assets 1 611.2 3864
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Issued share capitai 22 14.7 125
Share premium account 24 197.0 972
Merger reserve 24 170.9 140.4
Treasury resefve 24 (8.8} {0.3)
Retained earnings/{losses) 7.5 (36.4)
Total equity 3813 213.4
Non-current liabilities
Financial llabilities - interest-bearing loans and borrowings 18 73.6 42.65
Lease liability due in more than one year 18,7 -
Deferred tax 14 2.5 0.4
Provisichs 19 5.1 2.1
Other non-current liabilities 20 - O4
Contingent consideration 21 - 10.9
Total nonh-current liabilities 99.9 56.4
Current liabilities
Financiai liabilities - interest-beaaring loans and borrowings B 7.8 4.3
Trade and other pavables 17 1n6.2 62.4
Coarporaticn tax payable - 8.0
Lease liability due within one vear 6.0 -
Deferred consideration 21 - 43.9
Total current liabilities 130.0 116.6
Total liabilities 1 229.9 172.0
Total equity and liabilities 611.2 386.4

The financial statements on pages 120 te 163 were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 December 2020 and signed on its

behalf by:
Richard Huntingford Rachel Addison
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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Company balance sheet
as at 30 September 2020

Note

2020
£m

2019
£m

Assets
Non-current assets

Investment in Group undertakings 13 356.3 142.2
Deferred tax 14 1.2 45
Total non-current assets 357.5 146.7
Current assets

Trade and other receivables 15 72.6 947
Cash and cash equivaients 16 0.1 -
Financial asset - derivative 21 - 1.4
Total current assets 72.7 961
Total assets 430.2 242.8
Equity and liabilities

Equity

Issued share capital 22 14.7 12.5
Share premium account 24 197.0 972
Merger reserve 24 61.9 34
Retained earnings 52.5 58.9
Total equity 326.1 2000
Non-current liabilities

Financial liakilities - interest-bearing loans and borrowings 18 73.6 426
Total non-current liabilities 73.6 426
Current liabilities

Financial liahilities - interest-bearing loans and borrowings 18 43 -
Trade and other payables 17 26.2 .2
Corporation tax payable - -
Total current liabilities 30.5 c2
Total liabilities 104.1 42.8
Total equity and liabilities 430.2 242.8

As permitted by the exemption under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 no Company income statement ar statement of
comprehensive income is presented. The Company's loss for the year was £6.5m (2019: £1.6m).

The financial staternents on pages 120 to 163 were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 December 2020 and signed on its

behalf by:

Rachel Addison
Chairman Chief Financial Officer

Richard Huntingford

Future plc
03757874
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Consolidated and Company cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 September 2020
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Group Company Group Compahy
2020 2020 2019 2019
£m £m £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 9.2 {4.1) 537 {2.3)
Interest paid 0.4} {1.6) (1.5} (1.4)
Interest paid on lease iabilities (0.7} - - -
Tax paid {8.4) - {3.1) -
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities BlL4 (5.7 497 (3.7)

cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [0.9) - (1.4} -
Purchase of computer software and website development (30 - 28) -
Purchase of magazine titles and websites [GA ] - 1.8) -
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings, net of debt and cash acquired {73.5} - (64.6) -
Disposal of subsidiaries, magazine titles and websites (2.2) - 0.4 -
Net movement in amounts owed to/by subsidiaries - {130.3) - (10.5)
Net cash used in investing activities (79.8) {130.3}) (69.8) (10.5)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Ordinary share capital 104.4 104.4 - -
Costs of share issue (3.4) (3.4) - -
Acquisition of own shares {8.5) - - -
Drawdown of bank loans 1421 1421 842 842
Repayrment of bank loans {220.7) {109.9) [6B.4) 68.4)
Drawdown of overdraft 35 4.3 4.3 -
Bank arrangement fees {0.6) {0.6) {0.8) (0.8)
Repayment of principal element of lease liabilities (3.9} - - -
Settlermnent/{purchase) of derivative 0.2 0.2 (SN2 o7
Dividends paid 0.0) {1.0) {0.4) {0.4)
Net cash generated from financing activities 121 136.1 18.2 139
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13.7 [+}] (2.5) (0.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6.6 - 6.4 03
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {1.0) - 2.7 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 19.3 0.} 6.6 -
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Notes to the Consclidated and Company cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 Septermber 2020

A. Cash generated from/{used in) operations

The reconciliation of profit/{loss) for the year to cash generated from/{used in) operations is set out below:

Group Company Group Company
2020 2020 2019 2019
£m £m £m £m
Profit/{loss) for the year 44.3 {6.5) 8.1 1.6)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and impairment charge 6.9 - 09 -
Amortisation of intangible assets and impairment charge 251 - 14.5 -
Share schemes
- Value of employees’ services 5.6 - 3.4 -
Reversal of impairment - {o.m) - -
Net finance {income)/costs {2.8) 3.0 142 (0.3)
Tax charge/f{credit) 7.7 {0.6) 46 0.1
Loss/[gain) on the sale of operations 1.5 - {0.2) -
e e+ ion* bofore changes a2 @0
Movement in provisions - - (0.7} -
Decrease in inventaries 0.5 - - -
Decrease in trade and other receivables 2.6 - 35 -
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 0.5 [2A] 5.4 (0.3)
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 91.9 {60) 53.7 (2.3)
B. Analysis of net debt
10cteber Othar non-cash Exchange 30 September
Group 22‘:: Cash ﬂoiwr: on acquisiti;: h: !£m ph 20£sz
Cash and cash equivalents 6.6 (15.5) 292 - .0) 19.3
Debt due within one year (4.3) (3.5) - - - (7.8)
Debt due after more than one year (42.6) 78.7 (1M.0) 0.2 11 (73.6)
Net debt {40.3) 59.7 (81.8) 0.2 0.1 {62.1)
10ctober Other noan-cash Exchange 0 Septernber
Group 22:2 Cash ﬂo{\h:: :han%er: moveme{n:ﬁs 22:7‘3‘
Cash and cash equivalents 6.4 (2.5) - 27 66
Debt due within one year {8.5) 4.2 - - {4.3)
Debt due after more than one year (15.7} (23.5) (0.5) {2.9) (42.6)
Net debt (17.8) {21.8) (0.5) {0.2) {40.3)
10ctober Other non-cash Exchange 30 September
Company 221"‘9 Cashflnzwrrs‘ ch.lngsur: mcwamez:: 20£2r:
Cash and cash equivalents - Q1 - - 0.1
Debt due within one year - (4.3) - - (4.3)
Debt due after more than one year {42.6) {32.3) 0.2 13 {73.6)
Net debt {42.6) (36.5) 0.2 11 {77.8)
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1Octower Othear non-cash Exchange 30 Seplember
Company zg:i Cash f\;:‘s\ changEfrs] moveme;: 721:
Cash and cash equivalents 03 {O07) - - -
Debt due within one year (8.5) 85 - -
Debt due after more than one year {15.7) [{23.5) [0.5) 29 {42.6)
Net debt {22.9) {15.3) (0.5) {2.2) (42.6)
C. Reconciliation of movement in net debt
Group Company Group Company
2020 2020 2019 2019
£m £m £m £m
Net debt at start of year (40.3) {42.6) 17.8) {23.9)
increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3.7 0.1 (2.5) (0.3)
Increase in borrowings (35.8) (36.6) {12.3) 150
Other non-cash changes 0.2 0.2 {0.5} {a.5)
Exchange movements 0.1 11 {0.2) (2.9}
Net debt at end of year {62.) {77.8) (40.3) (42.6)
D. Changes in financial assets and financial liabilities
Changesin
fair values
and Adoption Othar
10ctober Financing unu.vinding of IFRS 16 Exchange noncash  3ID Septembsr
Group z:lra cash no:"s‘ Share Iss{u:‘ Acqulsltlt::r:: of dlscotérr\; Lca:‘: maveme::: movchz:rs‘ 2051:‘
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables (net) 360 6.2) - 292 - - {0.3) - 58.7
Cash and cash equivafents 6.6 (15.5] - 292 - - (1.0} - 19.3
Finance lease receivable - ((oN)] - - - 1.8 - (o0 1.6
Financial asset - derivative 1.4 (0.2) - - 1.2 - - - -
Total financial assets 44.0 (22.0) - 58.4 (1.2) 1.8 (.3) {0.1) 79.6
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (53.8) {0.5) - {49.8) - 04 A - {104.8)
Current borrowings {4.3) (3.5 - - - - - - {7.8)
Non-current borrowings {42.6) 787 - {11.0) - - A 0.2 {73.6)
Deferred consideration {43.9) 214 21.8 - {0.3) - 1.0 - -
Contingent consideration {10.9) 36 - - 6.8 - 0.5 - -
Total tinancial llabllves (155.5) Qa7 2.8 {160.8) 6.5 0.4 1.5 0.2 {186.2)
Net financial assets and liabilities (1M.5) ‘77.7 2.8 (102.4) 5.3 2.2 0.2 0.1 (106.b)
Changes in fair values
1 October Financing and unwinding of Exchange 30 September
Group ?23—3 Cash ﬂogrv; Acqulsmocrr\: discmé:: moveme;: 22[]—:
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables (net) 318 (3.4) 8.2 - {0.6) 36.0
Cash and cash equivalents 6.4 {2.5) - - 2.7 6.6
Financial asset - derivative - 06 - 0.8 - 14
Total financial assets 382 (53) B2 0.8 2] 440
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables {(38.8) {6.1) (7.2) - nn {53.8)
Current borrowings (8.5) 4.2 - - - [4.3)
Non-current barrowings {15.7} {24.0) - - (2.9) (42.6)
Ceferred consideration - - (29.3) (12.9) (1.7) (43.9)
Contingent consideration - - {10.9) - - {10.3)
Total financial liabilities (63.0) {25.9) (47.4) 12.9) 6.3) (155.5)
Net financial assets and liabilities (24.8) (31.2) (39.2) (12.1) {4.2) (1.5}
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Financial Statements

Accounting policies

Compliance statement and basis of preparation

Future pic (the Company) is incorporated and registered in the United Kingdom and 1s & public company limited by shares. The address of the
Company’s registered office and its registered number are given on pages 123 and 174. The financial statements consolidate those of Future ple

and its subsidiaries (the Group).

The financial statements of the Group and the individual financial statements of the parent company have been prepared in accordance with
Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)} issued by the International Accounting Standards Beard (IASB) and the [FRS Interpretations
Committee's ((FRS IC) interpretations as adopted by the European Union, applicable as at 30 September 2020, and those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements published in this 2020 Annual Report
are set out on pages 127 to 133. These policies have been applied consistently to all years presented. unless otherwise stated below. These
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for dervative financial instruments, and contingent and

deferred consideration, which are measured at fair value,
The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing these financial statements as stated by the Directors on page 108.

New or revised accounting standards
and interpretations adopted in the
year

The following standards and amendments

became effective in the year:

-IFRS 16 Leases;

- IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax
treatments;

-amendmernt to IFRS 9 Prepayment features
with negative compensation and
modifications of financial liabilities; and

-amendments as a result of Annual
Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle.

There has been no material impact from
the adoption of new standards, amendments
to standards or interpretations which are
relevant to the Group, other than as set out
helow.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases
from 1 October 2019, resulting in the
recognition on balance sheet of assets and
liabilities relating to leases previously
accounted for as operating leases. On
transition the Group has applied the
medified retrospective approach, with the
right-of-use asset measured as if IFRS 16 had
always applied and the difference between
lease assets and lease habilities recognised
within retained earnings. Comparative
periods have not been restated.

Adoption of the standard has resulted in
an increase in reported assets of £16.0m,
whichincludes a deferred tax asset of £0.7m,
and an increase in reported liabilities of

£16.8m, with the balance of £0.8m being
recognised within retained earnings at
1 October 2018.

Inthe income statement the operating
lease rent expense has been replaced by
depreciation of right-of-use assets and
finance costs on lease liabilities.

The Group has taken advantage of the
following practical expedients on transition
to:

« rely on our assessment of where leases
ex)st under current reporting standards
1AS 17 Leases and IFRIC 4 Determining
Whether an Arrangerment Contains a
Lease;

= exclude low-value leases;

= exclude short-term leases, being those
with aterm of 12 months or less from 1
October 2019;

= rely on our assessment of onerous
leases under |AS 37 Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent
assets applied immediately before the
date cofinitial application as an alternative
to performing an impairment review;

+ use hindsight when determining the
lease term where the contract includes
opticns to extend or terminate; and

= exclude initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use asset.

Although there is no change to actual cash
outflows, under IFRS 16 repayments relating
to the principal portion of the lease liability
are presented within cash flows from
financing activities and the portion relating

to the repayment of interest presented
within cash flows from operating activities.
Payments relating to short-term and
low-value leases will continue to be included
in cash flows from operating activities.

The Group's accounting policy for leases
under IFRS 16 is as follows:

Property leases are recognised on the
balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and
corresponding lease liability at the date the
leased asset is available for use. Lease
liahilities are measured at the present value
of payments less lease incentives receivable.
Right-of-use assets are measured equal te
the value of the lease liability plus restoration
costs.

Lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease (for leases
existing on transition the incremental
borrowing rate).

Short-term and low-value leases (as
defined by IFRS 16) are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense inthe
income statement.

Finance costs are charged to the income
statement over the lease term, at a constant
periodic rate of interest, Right-of-use assets
are depreciated over the leasetermona
straight-line basis. Each lease paymentis
allocated between the liability and finance
cost.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax
treatments provides guidance and c¢larifies
how to apply the recognition and
measurement requirements in IAS 12
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New accounting standards,
amendments and interpretations
that are issued but not yet applied by
the Group

Cei Lain new standards, ametielr s ds anud
interpretations to existing standards have
been published that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after

1 October 2020 and which the Group has
chosen not to adopt early. These include the
foliowing standards which are relevant to the
Group:

23.

- Exceptional items — the Group considers

itemns of income and expense as

exceptional and excludes them from the
adjustad recuite where the natire of the

item, or its size, is material and not

related to the core underlying trading of
the Group so as to assist the user of the

financial statements to better
understand the results of the core
operations of the Group. Details of
exceptional items are shown innote 5.

" fricome taxas where there is uncertainty over payment expenses (relating to equity- using the standard rate of corporation tax in

g incomc tax treatments IFRIC 23 has been settled share awards with vesting periods  the relevant jurisdiction.

E oppliod in the meastirement of e provision longer than 12 months), together with Areconciliation ol adjusled operating

% recognised. The adoption of the standard associated social security costs, are pront 1o profil belur g tax is shown befow:

bl has not had a material impact on the excluded from the adjusted results of the

© financial statements, For more detail about Group as the Directors believe they result

E the provision for uncertain tax pesitions, see in a level of charge that woulid distort the e 22:3

_E the ‘eritical judgemsnts’ section on page 133. user's view of the core trading Adjusted operating profit 93.4 522

L performance of the Group. Details of Adijusted finance costs 25 2
— T = share-based payments are shown in note Other income . 02

Adjusted profit before tax 90,9 503
Adjusting items:
Share-based payments

(including social (5.5} (9.0)
security costs]

Exceptional items (note 5) {173} (3.4)

Amortisation of acquired

intangibles {note 12) frep 030

Decrease/(increase) in
fair value of contingent 7.6 (1.7}
consideration

) Unwinding of discount Ly 02
- amendment to IFRS 3 Clarifying the - Amortisation of acquired intangible Fair vaiue (loss)/gai
. . . . ir vailul (2253
definition of a business; assets — the amortisation charge for cirre?\cyeoptigngam on 1.2) 0.8
- amendment to 1AS 1 Definition of Material those intangible assets recognised on
Profit before tax 520 127

and Classification of liabilities;

- |AS 8 Definition of Material;

- 1AS 37 Costs to inchude when assessing
whether a contract is material;
amendment o IFRS 7,'FRS 9 and
IFRS 16 Amendments regarding
pre-replacement issues in the context of

business combinations is excluded from

the adjusted results of the Group since

they are non-cash charges arising from

non-trading investment activities. As
such, they are not considered to be
reflective of the core trading
performance of the Group.

Areconciliation of cash generated from
operations {0 adjusted free cash flow is
shown below:

21 2019
the IBOR reform; and - Change in the fair value of contingent e em
- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards consideration - the Group excludes the Cash generated from a1e 537
2018-2020 Cycle. remeasurement of these acquisition- operations - '
The Group does not expect that the related liabilities fromits adjusted results Cash flows related to 8.0 40
standards and amendments issued but not as the impact of remeasurement can exceptional items
yeleffective will have a material impart nn vary significantly depending on the Settlement of SOCii:J
: it security costs an share 4.0 -
results or net assets. underiyrﬁg acquisition s performance. based payments
The unwinding of the discount on i
. . - Lease payments foliowing
-— . contingent consideration is also excluded adaption of IFRS 16 Leases &) -
Presentation of non-statutory from the Group's adjusted results on the Adjusted operating cash 1000 577
measures basis that it is non-cash and the balance inflow . :
The Directors believe that adjusted results is driven by the Group's assessment of Cash flows related to @0} 140)

and adjusted earnings per share provide
additional useful information on the core
operational performance of the Group to
shareholders, and review the results of the

the relevant discountrate to apply.
Excluding these items ensures
comparability with prior years.

- Changes in the fair value of currency

capital expenditure

Adjusted free cash flow 96.0 537

Areconciliation between adjusted and
statutory earnings per share measures is
shown i note 10,

Group on an adjusted basis internally. The
term ‘adiusted’ is not a defined term under
IFRS and may not therefore be comparable
with similarly titled profit measurements
reported by other companies. it is not
intended to be a substitute for, or superior to.
IFRS measurements of profit.

Adjustments are made inrespect of:

- Share-based payments — share-based

option - the Group has excluded this from
its adjusted resulits as the option was
acquired in order to hedge USD exposure
to acquisition-related contingent
consideration and does not relate to the
core underlying trading performance of
the Group.
The tax refated to adjusting items is the
tax effect of the items abaove, calculated

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of
Future pic (the Company) and its subsidiary
undertakings. Subsidiaries are all entities
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controlied by the Group. Control exists when
the Group is either exposed to or has the
rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsoelidated from the date that control
ceases. The purchase method cf accounting
is used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, and
includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. [dentifiable assets
acquired and liabkilities and contingent
liabllities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated.

Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
are considered an impairment indicator of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

The Groupis organised and arranged
primarily by geographical segment. The
Group also uses a sub-segment split of
Media and Magazines for further analysis.
Operating segments arereportedina
manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Makers who are considered to be
the Executive Directers of Future plc.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised in the income statement in line
with the five-step model in IFRS 15, to reflect
the pattern of transfer of goods and services
to the customer. Revenue is recognised in
the income statement when control passes
to the customer. If the customer

Financial Statements

simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits of the contract, revenue is
recognised over time. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point

intime.

Revenue comprises the transaction price
of the contract. being censideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and
services inthe ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, estimated returns, rebates
and discounts, which includes retail
promotion costs and advertising rebates,
and after eliminating sales within the Group.

For print and digital magazine newstrade
and subscription revenue, and digital
advertising revenues and expenses, revenue
is recognised as the amount paid by the end
consumet, rather than the amount remitted
by the agent.

Related commissions paid to agents are
recognised as an expense within cost of
sales.

The following recognition criteria also
apply:

-eCommerce revenue is recognised at the

time of the related product sale.

- Magazine newsstand circulation. print
subscripticn and advertising revenue is
recognised according to the date that the
related publication goes on sale.

- Online advertising revenue is recegnised
over the period during which the adverts
are served.

- Revenue from the sale of digital
magazine subscriptions is recognised
uniformly over the termof the
subscription.

- Event income is recognised when the
event has taken place.

- Licensing revenue is recognised on the
supply of the licensed content.

- Publisher services revenue is recognised
when the issues are distributed to
wholesalers.

- Revenue from broadcaster productions
is recognised over the period of
development in line with expenditure
incurred.

- {ther revenue is recognised at the time
of sale or provision of service.

Theright of returnis considered to be
variable consideration. The probable amount
of expected returnsis estimated using the
most-likely amount method and accounted
for as a reduction in revenue.

Foreign currency translation

{a) Functional and presentation
currency

ltems included in the financial staterments of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(‘the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presentedin
sterling, which is the Group's presentation
Currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at
balance sheet exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income
staternent, with exchange differences arising
ontrading transactions being reported in
operating profit and with those arising on
financing transactions reported in net
finance costs unless, as a result of cash flow
hedging, they are reported in other
comprehensive income.

{c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:
(i} Assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet.
(i) Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates.
(i) All resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of

equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operaticns, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a
foreign operation is sold. exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part
of the gain or loss on sale.
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{a) Pension obligations

The Group has a number of defined
contribution plans. For defined contribution
plans the Group pays contributions into a
privately administered pension planon a
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the
contritsutions have been paid. Contributions
are charged to the income statement as they
are incurred.

{b) Share-based compensation
The Group operates a number of share-
based compensation plans.

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
awards is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed over the
appropniate service period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the awards. The
calculation of fair value includes
assurnptions regarding the number of
cancellations and excludes the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example,
earnings per share), Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions
ahout the number of awards that are
expected to vest. At each balance sheet date,
the Group revises its estimates of the
number of awards that are expected to vest.
It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity for equity-settled awards and
liabilities for cash-settled awards.

The grant by the Company of share
awards to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to
the grant date fair value, is recognised over
the vesting period as an increase to
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the
Company’s financial statements.

Shares in the Comipany are held in trust to
satisfy the exercise of awards under certain
of the Group's share-based compensation
plans and exceptional awards. The trustis
consolidated within the Group financial
statements, These shares are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet as a
deduction from equity at the market value on
the date of acquisition.
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{c) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses taking into
consideration the protit attributabie to (e
Company's shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Leases

Property leases are recognised on the
balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and
corresponding lease liabiity »f the date the
leased asset is available for use. Lease
liabilities are measured at the present value
of payments less lease incentives receivable.
Right-of-use assets are measured equal to
the vajue of the lease liahility plus restoration
costs.

Lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease (for leases
existing on transition the incremental
horrowing rate).

Shori-term and low-value leases (as
defined by IFRS 16) are recognisedon a
straight-line basis as an expense in the
income staterment.

Finance costs are charged to the income
statement over the lease term, at a constant
periodic rate of interest. Right-cf-use assats
are depreciated over the lease termon a
straight-line basis. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance
caost.

Where the Group Is a lessor, where the
lease transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee itis
classified as a finance lease. All others are
accounted for as operating leases. Where
the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sublease s classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-
use asset arising from the head lease.
Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recoghised as receivables at the
amount of the net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income reflects a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding. Rentalincome from
operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases
from 1 October 2019, Comparative periods
have rnot been restated and for the year

ended 30 September 2019 the following
accounting policy under 1AS 17 Leases was
apnplied.

Leases inwhich the Group aggumes
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets were
classified as finance leases. All other leases
were classed as operating leases. Assets
held under finance leases were included
either as property, plant and equipment or
intangible asscts at the lower of their fair
value at inception or the present value of the
minimum lease payments and were
depreciated over their estimated economic
hves or the finence lease period, whichever
was the shorter. The corresponding liability
was recorded within borrowings. The interest
element of the rental costs was charged
against profits over the period of the lease
using the actuariai method. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lesscr) were charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

Tax

Tax on the profit or loss for the year
comprises current tax and deferred tax. Tax
15 recognised in the income statermnent
excepl Lo the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity in which case it
is recognised in equity.

Current tax is payable based on taxable
profits for the year. using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, along with any
adjustment relating to tax payablein
previous years. Managemnent periodically
evaluates iterns detailed in tax returns where
the tax treatment is subject to interpretation.
Taxable profit differs from net profit in the
income statement in that income or expense
items that are taxable or deductible in other
years are excluded — as are items that are
never taxable or deductible, Current tax
assets relate to payments on account not
offset against current tax liabilities.

Deferred tax is provided for in fuil, using
the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consclidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability ina
transaction other than a business




combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates {and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred tax asset
1s realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled in the appropriate territory.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is prebable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the
temperary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the termporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offset against each other where they
relate to the same jurisdiction and thereis a
legally enforceable right to offset.

Uncertain tax positions are provided for
under IAS 12, with due consideration for the
interpretive guidance in IFRIC 23. Each
uncertain tax treatment is considered either
separately or together with other uncertain
positions in the same jurisdiction, depending
onwhich approach better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty. The effect of
the uncertainty is measured with reference
to the expected value, i.e. the sum of the
probability-weighted ameunts in arange of
possible outcomes. The expected value
better predicts the resoluticn of the
uncertainty where thereis arange of
possible cutcomes.

Financial Statements

the financial statements in the peried in
which they are approved.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at
cost (or deemed cost) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Deferred tax in business
combinations

In business combinations, deferred tax is
calculated at the date of acquisition. Where
the fair value (and therefore the acquisition
accounting value) of assets acquired is
different from its tax base, a deferred tax
asset or liability is recognised on the
temporary difference. The tax base is
dependent on the expected tax deductions
available in the applicable jurisdiction over
the life of the asset.

Dividends
All dividend distributicns to the Company's
shareholders are recognised as a liability in

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
property, plant and eguipment less residual
value over estimated useful lives, as follows:

+ Land and buildings - 50 years or penod

of the lease if shorter.

» Plant and machinery — between cne and

five years.

« Eguipment, fixtures and fittings

- between one and five years.

+ Right-of-use assets — lease term.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date. An asset’s carrying
amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amounts. These are included in the
income statement.

Intangible assets

{a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between
the cost of the acquisition and the fair value
of net identifiable assets acquired.

Goodwitl is stated at cost less any
accurmulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
allocated to appropriate cash generating
units {those expected to benefit from the
business combinaticn) and it is not subject to
amortisation but is tested annually for
impairment.

(b) Titles, trademarks, customer lists,
brands, subscriber databases, creative
services relationships, publishing
rights, customer relationships,
advertising relationships, non-
compete agreements, content,

eCommerce technology and other
‘magazine and website related’
intangibles
Magazine and website related intangible
assets have a finite useful life and are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Assets acquired as part of a business
combination are initially stated at fair value.
Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
these intangibles over their estimated useful
lives (typically between one and fifteen
years).

Expenditure incurred on the launch of new
magazine titles is recognised as an expense
in the income statement as incurred.

(c) Computer software and website
development

Non-integral computer software purchases
are stated at cost less accumuiated
amortisation. Costs incurredin the
development of new websites are capitatised
only where the cost can be directly attributed
to developing the website to operate in the
manner intended by management and only
to the extent of the future economic benefits
expected fromits use. These costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their
astimated useful lives (between one and
three years). Costs associated with
maintaining computer software or websites
are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Impairment tests and
Cash-Generating Units (CGUs)

A CGU is defined as the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of
assets.

Goodwill is not amortised but tested for
impairment at least cnce a year or more
frequently when there is an indication that it
may be impaired. Therefore, the evolution of
general economic and financial trends as well
as actual economic performance compared
to market expectations represent external
indicators that are analysed by the Group.
together with internal performance
indicators. in order to assess whether an
impairment test should be performed more
than once a year.

|AS 36 fmpairment of Assefs requires
these tests to be performed at the level of
each CGU or group of CGUs likely to benefit
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from acquisition-related synergies, within an
operating segment

Any impairment nf gnncdwill is recorded in
the income statement as a deduction from
operating profit andis never reversed
subsequently.

Other intangible assets with a finite life are
amortised and are tested for impairment
only where there is an indication that an
impairment may have occurred.

Recoverable amount

To determine whether an impairment loss
shuuld be resognicod, tha earrying valie of
the assets and liabilities of the CGUs or
groups of CGUs is compared to their
recoverable amount,

Carrying values of CGUs and groups of
CGUs tested include goodwill and assets
with finite useful lives (property, plant and
equipment. intangible assets and net
working capital).

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use. Fair value less costs to sellis
the best estimate of the amount cbtainabile
from the sale of an asset inan arm’s iength
transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, less the costs of disposal. This
estimate is determined. on 30 September,
on the basis of the discounted present value
of expected future cash flows plus a terminal
value and reflects general market sentiment
and conditions.

Value in use is the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived
hhuni the CGUS or group of ORIl s Cash fiow
projections are based on economic
assumotions and forecast trading conditions
drawn up by the Group's management, as
follows:

+ cash flow projections are based on

three-year business plans;

+ cash flow projections beyond that

time frame are extrapolated by
applying a country-specific growth
rate to perpetuity for both the US and
the UK; and

+ the cash flows cbtained are discounted

using appropriate rates fer the business
and the territories concerned.

If goodwill has been allocated to a CGU
and an eperation within that CGU is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with that
operation is included in the carrying amount
of the operation in determining the profit or
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loss on disposal. The gocdwil aliccated to
the disposal is measured on the basis of the
relative prefitahility of the operation
disposed and the operations retained.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. For raw materials,
cost is taken to be the purchase price on a
first i, first out basis, For finished goods,
costis calculated as the direct cost of
production. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selfing price
inthe ardinary course of buslhiess, less
applicable variable seliing expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value anad subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. less aloss
allowance. The Group applies the IFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables.
Expected loss rates, calculated based on
historical credit losses, are applied to irade
receivables grouped based on days past due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand and depasits held on calt with banks.
Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the
tafance sheet.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recoghised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost with any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value recognised in the
income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current

liabilities unless the Group has an
uncenditionai right to defer settlement of the
liability for al leasl 12 iuonths after the
baiatice stiwel dale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive cbligation
as aresult of past events, and it is more likely
thari not that an cutflow of rescurces will he
required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the Directors’
best estimate of the expenditure required to
ueltle the obligation af the halanne sheet
date, and are diseounled lu presenl valuc
where the effect is rmaterial.

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging activities

The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to reduce exposure to foreign
exchange and interest rate risks and
recognises these at far value inits balance
sheet. For instruments for which hedge
accounting is applied, gains and losses are
taken to equity. Any changes to the fair value
of derivatives not hedge accounted for are
recognised in the income statement. Any
new ins(rurnents entered into by the Group
will be reviewed on a ‘case by casé’ basis at
inception to determine whether they should
qualify as hedges and be accounted for
accordingly under IFRS 9. In accordance with
its treasury policy, the Group does not hold
or issue any derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes.

Where hedge accounlng is nul applicd,
changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments are recognised within profif or
loss.

Investments

The Company’s investments in subsidiary
undertakings are stated at the fair value of
consideration payable, including related
acquisition costs, less any pravisions for
impairment.
Exceptional items

The Group considers items of income and
expense as exceptional and excludes them
from the adjusted results where the nature of
the item, or its size, is material and not
related to the core underiying trading of the




Group so as to assist the user of the financial
statements to better understand the results
of the core cperations of the Group. Details
of exceptional items are shown in note 5.

Critical accounting assumptions,
judgements and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements
under IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting assumptions and requires
management to exercise its judgement and
to make estimates in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies.

Critical judgements in applying the
Group's accounting policies

The areas where the Board has made critical
judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies (apart from those
involving estimations which are dealt with
separately below) are:

{a) Accounting for acquisitions
Management applies judgement in
acceounting for acquisitions, including
identifying assets arising from the
application of IFRS 3 Business combinations.
undertaking Purchase Price Allocation
exercises to allocate value between assets
acquired, including the allocation between
intangible assets and goodwill, and valuing
contingent consiceration. See note 28 for
further detail.

{b) Exceptional items

Due to the significant acquisition-related
activity. there are a number of items which
require judgement to be appliedin
determining whether they are exceptional in
nature. In the current year these relate
largely to acquisition and restructuring
related costs in respect of the Tl Media
acquisition (£3.8m and £9.1m respectively).
SmartBrief integration costs of £0.1m,
onerous property costs of £1.8m,
impairment of the Tl Media legacy finance
system of £0.8m and £1.5m loss on
disposals relating to the sale of Amateur
Photographer, WorldSoccer and
Trustedreviews.com, as required by the
Competition and Markets Authority, as well
as UK Cycling Events Limited and
International Craft & Hobby Fair Limited,
following the acguisition of TI Media, see
notes 5 and 28 for further detail.

Financial Statements

(c) Identification of cash generating
units for goodwill impairment testing
Judgement is applied in the identification of
cash-generating units ("CGUs"). Given the
speed of integration of acquisitions and the
interdependency cf revenues across the
Group, both between its brands. the Media
and Magazine sub-segments and globally the
Directors remain comfortable with
identification of the UK and the US as the
primary CGUs used in impairment testing.

Key sources of estimation
uncertainty

The following are areas of key sources of
estimation uncertainty that may have a
significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial
year:

{a) Taxation
Where tax exposures can be quantified, a
provision is made based on best estimates
and the judgement of the Directors. Detalls of
the provision for uncertain tax positions in
relation to material tax exposures are
discussed below. As the ultimate resolution
of tax exposures usually occurs at a point in
time, and given the inherent uncertainties in
assessing the outcomes of these exposures,
there could, in future periods, be
adjustments to these prowvisions that have a
material positive or negative effect on our
results inany particular period. Provisions for
tax contingencies require the Directors to
make estimates and judgements with
respect to the ultimate outcome of a tax
audit, and actual results could vary from
these estimates.

in the current year, the uncertain tax
positions of the Group have been reviewed,
and uncertain tax positions have been
released as the uncertainty has been
resolved or the risk reduced. The year end
provision is £4.5m (2019: £5.6m). of which
£4.1m (2019: £4.3m) relates to transfer
pricing risks, and £0.4m (2019: £0.5m)
relates to uncertain tax positions in acquired
businesses. The Group's transfer pricing
uncertainties arise because the Group has
material intra-group transactions relating to
the cross-border licensing of platform
technology and brands, which have
increased year on year to keep pace with the
rapid increase in Group profits. The Group's
estimate of the transfer pricing exposure has

been calculated by modeling different
scenarios of adjustments to transfer pricing
charges by the UK and US tax autherities and
assigning probabilities to those scenarios. By
their nature, the models are subjective
assessments and judgement is required in
assessing the scenarios and probabilities to
apply. Although the Directors continue to
believe that Future’s transfer pricing is
robust. its position as a digital media
business and the increasing attention on
transfer pricing as it relates to cross border
taxation of the digital economy creates
uncertainty.

(b} valuation of acquired intangible
assets

Acquisitions may result in the recognition of
intangible assets, such as titles, tradernarks,
customer lists, subscriber databases,
creative services relationships, content,
advertising relationships, customer
relationships, publishing rights, non-compute
agreements and eCommerce technology.
These assets are valued using a discounted
cash flow model, Multi-period Excess
Earnings Method ("MEEM™), or a relief frem
royalty method. In applying these valuation
metheds, a2 number of key assumptions are
made inrespect of discount rates, growth
rates, royalty rates and the estimated life of
intangibles. During the year, suchestimates
have been made regarding the Barcroft
Studios and Tl Media acquisitions. See notes
12 and 28 for further details.

(c) Carrying value of gocdwill

The Group uses forecast cash flow
information and estimates of future growth
to assess whether goodwill is impaired. Key
assumptions include the EBITDA margin
allocated to each CGU, the growthrate to
perpetuity and the discount rate. Ifthe
results of an operation in future years are
adverse to the estimates used for
impairment testing, impairment may be
triggered at that point. Further details,
including sensitivity testing, are included
within note 12.

{d) Provision for returns

Where there is aright of return, the Group
provides for estimated unsold copies of
rmagazines sold via newsstand wholesalers
and distributors. Provisions require the use of
estimates and judgements, and actual
results could vary from these estimates.
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Notes to the financial statements
1. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Group is organised and arranged prirarily by reportable segment. The Executive Directors consider the performance of the
business from a geographical perspective, namely the UK and the US. The Australian business is considered to be part of the UK
segment and is not reported separately due to its size. The Group also uses a sub-segment split of Media (websites and events) and
Magazines for further anaiysis. The Group considers that tha assets within each geagraphical segmient are exposed to the same risks.

{a) Reportable segment
{i) Segment revenue

sub-segment 2020 Sub-segment 2015
Medla Magazines Total Media Magazines Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Segment:
UK 79.8 YLl ms 04 &3 1027
us 87.5 10,2 167.7 104.5 143 118.8
Total 237.3 102.3 339.6 154.9 666 2215

Transactions between segments are carried out at arm's length,

(i1} Segment adjusted operating profit

Adjusted operating profit is used by the Executive Directors to assess the performance of sach segrnent. Operating profit for the
Media and Magazines sub-segments is not reported internally, as overheads are not fully allocated on this basis. The table below
shows the impact of intra-group adjustments on the adjusted operating profit for the UK and US segments:

2020 2019
Underlying adj 4 Intra-group Adjusted  Underlying adjusted Intra-group Adjusted
operating brofit adjustments operating profit operatlng prafit adjustments operating profit
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Segment:
UK 10.6 485 597 0.7 18.4 291
us 82.8 {48.5) 343 41.5 {18.4) 231
Total 93.4 - 93.4 522 - 52.2

Intra-group adjustments relate to the het impact of charges from the UK to the US in respect of management fees (for back office
revenue functions sych as finance, HR and IT which are based in the UK) and licence fees for the use of intellectual property. The
increase in the year s driven by the growll in riedia revenuc in the Us.

A reconciliation of total segment adjusted operating profit to profit before tax is provided as follows:

2020 2019

£m £m

Total segment adjusted operating profit 93.4 52.2
Share-based payments [including social security costs) {5.5) (9.0)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (21.6) n3n
Exceptional iterns {note 5) [15.6) (3.4)
Net finance income/{costs) 2.8 14.2)
Other ([expense)/income 1.5) 0.2
Profit before tax 52.0 127
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(iii) Segment assets and liabilities

Financial Statements

Segment assets

Segment liabilities

Segment net assels

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2018
£m £Em £m £Em £m Em
Segment:
UK 269,7 1233 {192.5) {97.3) 77.2 26.0
us 2415 2631 (37.4) (75.7) 304.1 187.4
Total 611.2 386.4 {229.9) {173.0) 381.3 213.4
{iv) Other segment information
Additions to Depreciation Exceptionat
Non-current assets non-current assets and amortisation items
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2012 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Segment:
UK 293.1 985 216.7 41 141 7.2 17.0 1.4
Us 221.4 2332 7.7 13057 16.0 8.2 0.1 2.0
Total 514.5 3317 224.4 134.8 301 15.4 17.1 3.4
The non-current assets in the table above exclude deferred tax.
Other than the items disclosed above and a share-based payments charge (excluding social security costs) of £5.9rm (2019: £3.9m)
there were no other significant non-cash expenses during the year.
{b) Business segment
(i) Gross profit by business segment
Sub-segment 2020 Sub-segment 2019
Add back Add back
distribution distribution
Medla Magazines Othar axpansas Total Media Magazines Cther expenses Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Segment:
UK 65.0 56.4 {592.5) ns 73.4 425 328 (35.2) 4.5 44.6
us 138.9 6.4 {43.8) 1.7 103.2 847 86 (33.9) 2.5 619
Total 203.9 62.8 {103.3) 13.2 176.6 127.2 41.4 {691) 7.0 106.5

Revenue of £43 4m arose from sales to the Group's largest single customer which operates as an intermediary for digital advertising
customers (2019: £38.2rm). No end customer, or other single customer or group of customers under commeon control contributed 10%
or more to the Group's revenue in either the current or prior year. The above analysis excludes the impact of intra-group adjustments.

2. REVENUE

The Group applies IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers. See note 1 for disaggregation of revenue by sub-segment.

Timing of satisfaction of performance obligations

Revenue is recognised in the income statement when control passes to the customer. If the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the contract, revenue is recognised over time. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time. The table
overleaf provides detail for each revenue stream:
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Revenue
stream

Online
advertising
revenue

Nature, timing and satisfaction of
performance obligations

Future operates a number of websites with advertising
space on their webpages which are sold via first party and
programmatic/third party routes, Custemers can purchase
by time and number of impressions.

For impressions, the perfermance cbiigation is the
presentation of the advert to the customer. For time-based
adverts, the performance obligation is the provision of an
advert over a period of time to be seen by the customer.

eCommerce
revenue

Revenue receghition

Revenye is recognised at the point the advert
is presented to the customer or over the period
during which the advertisements are served.

Principal vs agent considerations mean
revenue under certain contracts is recognised
on a gross basis.

The Group earns commission when purchases are made
directly from third parties by consumers clicking through
to these products through links on the Group's websites.
The facilitation of each product sale reflects a separate
performance obligation.

Print and
digital
magazine
subscriptions

Revenues related to these commissions are
recognised at the time of the related product
sale, less an estimate to reflect the likelihood of
product returns to the retailer based on historic
toluiny ) afes,

Subscriptions of magazines are sold online, with
subscribers sent a digital or print version of the magazine
every month (or multiple versions in a 'deuble issue month’).

Cash is received in advance {either annually
or monthly via direct debit),

For print subscriptions each magazine delivered represents
a distinct performance obligation, whereas for digital
magazines providing access to the digital content
represents a distinct performance obligation.

Magazine
newsstand
circulation
and
advertising
revenue

For digital magazines cash collected in advance
is deferred, with revenue recognised uniformly
aver the tarim of the subscription.

For print magazines cash collected in advance
is deferred, with revenue recagnised at a point
in time when the relevant publication being
subscribed to goes on sale.

Principal vs agent considerations mean
revenue under certain contracts is recognised
on a gross basis.

Single issues of magazines are sold in stores and online.

The provision of each issue is a separate performance
obligation, which is satisfied whien the issue goes on sale.

Event income

Licensing
revenue

Publisher
services
revenue

Future helds a number of events throughout the year,
including shows and awards events, held physically and
virtually. Revenue arises from the foliowing:

- stand/table space;

- SpONsoOrship,

- ticket sales; and

- marketing packages.

Cash is collected in advance of the event.

Each event is a separate performance obligation, being
satisfied when the event has taken place.

Licence fees are charged for the use of Future's

brands and content.

Performance obligations are satisfied over time
{for example magazine content provided each month)
and at a point in time (historic content is provided up-front).

The Martketforce business is a distributor for magazines, and

was acquired as part of the acguisition of TI Media in Anril 2020,

Performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, when
the issues go on sale,

Revenue is recognised at a point in time on the
date that the related publication goes on sale
based on the estimate of sales net of returns,

Principal vs agent considerations mean
revenue under certain contracls is recognised
on a gross basis.

Cash coliected in advance is deferred, with
revenue recognised at a point in time when the
event takes place.

Revenue is recognised on the supply of the
licensed content, based on usage.

Revenue is recognised at a point in time on the
date that the related publication goes on sale
based on the estimate of sales net of returns,

Broadcaster
productions

Television programming content is developed and produced
far public broadcast,

Performance obligations are satisfied aver the period of the
developrment in line with expenditure incurred.

Revenue is recognised over time, with the input
methed used to reflect the transfer of control to
the customer.

136 f FUTURE PLC



The table below disaggregates revenue accerding to the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations:

Financial Statements

2020 2019
Over time Point in time Total revenue Over time Pointin time Total revenue
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Total revenue 12.3 3273 339.6 6.4 215.1 2215
3. NET OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating profit is stated after charging:
2020 2019
Adjusted Adjusting Statutory Adjusted Adjusting Statutory
results items resuits results itermns results
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost of sales {163.0) - {163.0) 115.0) - Mms.0)
Distribution expenses 13.2) - (13.2) (7.0) - {7.0)
Share-based payments {including
soclal security costs) (3-2) (5-5) 8.7) 2) (2.0) (16.2)
Exceptional itermns (note 5) - (15.6) (15.6} - {3.4] (3.4)
Depreciation {5.8) - {5.8} 0.9) - (0.9)
Arnortisation 2.7) {21.6) (24.3) (1.4} (13.3) {14.5)
Other administration expenses (58.3) - {58.3) (43.8) - [43.8)
{246.2) (42.7) (288.9) (169.3) {25.5) (194.8)
4. FEES PAID TO AUDITORS
2020 2018
Em £m
Audit fees in respect of the audit of the financial statements of the
A A - 0.43 0.28
Company and the consolidated financial statements
Audit related assurance services 0.04 002
0.47 0.30
Other assurance services' 0.29 0.54
Total fees 0.76 Q.84

1Other assurance sarvices in the current year relate to fees in relation to the Tl Media acquisition, and in the prior year to the return to a Premium Listing and advisory services for the Mobila

Nations acquisition and T Media acquisition.

5. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

2020

2019

£m £m
Acquisition and integration related costs 3.9 25
Restructuring and redundancy costs 9.1 -
Vacant property provision movements 1.8 01
Impairment of assets 0.8 -
Prermium listing costs - 08
Total operating charge 15.6 34
Disposals 1.5 -
Total charge 171 3.4

The acquisition and Integration related costs represent expenses incurred in respect of the acquisition of TI Media (£3.8m), and the
finalisation of the integration of SmartBrief (£0.1m), which was acquired in July 2012, Restructuring and redundancy costs relate to
the integration of the Tl Media acquisition. An impairment of £0.8m relates to the Tl Media legacy finance system which is no lenger
required following the integration, and the £1.5m loss on disposals relates to the sale of Amateur Photographer, WorldSoccer, and
Trustedreviews.com, as required by the Competition and Markets Authority, as well as UK Cycling Events Limited and Internationat
Craft & Hobby Fair Limited, following the acquisition of Tl Media. Vacant property costs of £1.Bm relate to ongoing operating costs
and the impairment of right-of-use assets in respect of the Bromsgrove and Bournemouth offices which were permanently closed
following the onset of the COVID-12 pandemic.

Further details of the acquisitions are shown in note 28.

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 [ 137



6. EMPLOYEE COSTS

n
)
£
Q
£
2 Group Company Group Company
g 2020 2Q20 2019 2018
‘-ln-l £m £m £m £m
K] Wages and salaries 90.6 158 60.0 12
E Social security costs 8.2 - 52 -
E Cther pension costs 2.4 - 13 -
L Share schemes
- Value of employees’ services' 5.9 - 39 -
- Employer's social security costs on share options 2.8 - 8.2 -
Total employee costs 109.9 1.5 766 1.2

11n the current year, £5.6m (2019; £3.4m) relates 1o equity-settled and £0.3m (2019: £0.5m) to cash-settled share based payments.

Group Company Group Company

. . . 2020 2020 2019 2018

Average monthly number of people {including Directors) No. No. No. No.
Production 1,303 - 770 -
Administration 333 7 219 &
Total 1,636 7 9289 6

At 30 Septermber 2020, the actual number of people employed by the Group was 2,037 (2019:1,225). In respect of our reportable
segrments 1,632 (2019 750) were employed in the UK and 398 (2019: 475} were emnployed in the US.

Key management personnel compensation

Group Company Group Company

2020 2020 2019 2019

£m £m £m £m

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 26 1.5 12 12

Post employment benefits 0.1 - 01 .
Share schemes

- Value of employees’ services 1.0 - 0.5 -

- Employer's social security costs on share options 1.0 - 31 -

Total 4.7 1.5 5.6 1.2

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the Board of Future pic. It is this Beard which has responsibility for
planning, directing and contralling the activities of the Group.

Zillah Byng-Thorne, Penny Ladkin-Brand and Rachel Addison were paid by Future Publishing Limited, a subsidiary company, for their
services. In 2020 £0.7m (2019: £0.6m) was recharged to Future plc by Future Publishing Limited in respect of Zillah Byng-Thorne,
£0.3m (2019: £0.3m) was recharged in respect of Penny Ladkin-Brand, and £0.2m (2019: £nil) was recharged in respect of Rachel
Addison. These recharges are included in the salaries line for the Company in the table above.

Further details on the Directors’ remuneration and interests are given in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 80tc103. The
highest paid Director during the year was Zillah Byng-Thaorne (2019: Zillah Byng-Thorne) and details of her remuneration are shown on
page 95,

138 J FUTURE PLC




Financial Statements

7. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

2020 08

£m £m

Interest recelvable on interest-bearing loans and borrowings 0.4 -
Interest receivable on lease liabilities [+A] -
Adjusted finance income 0.5 -
Decrease in fair value of contingent consideration 7.6 -
Fair value gain on currency option - 0.8
Total reported finance income 8.1 0.8
Interest payable on interest-bearing loans and borrowings {1.8) 1.5
Amortisation of bank loan arrangement fees {0.4) (0.6)
Interest payable on lease liabillties {0.8) -
Adjusted finance costs {3.0) (2.1
Increase in fair value of contingent consideration - {n.7}
Fair value loss on currency option 1.2) -
Unwinding of discount on contingent consideration (1.1} (1.2}
Total reported finance costs {5.3) (15.0}
Net finance income/{costs) 2.8 {14.2)

The Group agreed a new £30 million multi-currency Revolving Credit Facility ("RCF") in April 2020. The RCF, which stands alongside
Future's existing debt facilities, was arranged in order to provide the Group with additional working capital headroom to maintain
the underlying growth momentum of the combined business, whilst navigating the impact of COVID-19. This facility has not been
required (and has not been drawn) as at 30 September 2020 and has been subsequently cancelled.

The £7.6m decrease (2012: £11.7m increase} in fair value of contingent consideration arose in respect of the SmartBrief, Inc, acquisition
{2019: MoNa Mobile Nations, LLC acquisition). During the year the fair value of the contingent consideration was finalised at £3.6m
{$4.6m) and was paid in September 2020. Similarly, £1.1m (2019; £1.2m) arose from unwinding of the discount on the contingent
consideration in the year, of which £0.8m relates ta the acquisition of SmartBrief and £0.3m tc Mobile Nations. See note 21 for further
details.

8. TAX ON PROFIT

The tax charged in the consolidated income statement is analysed below:

2020 209
£m £m
Corporation tax
Current tax on the profit for the year 9.7 75
Adjustments in respect of previous years 0.1 [0.5)
Current tax charge 9.8 7.0
Deferred tax origination and reversal of temporary differences
Current year charge/{credit) 0.4 (3.2)
Adjustments in respect of previous years (2.5) c.8
Deferred tax credit 2.1) (2.4)
TJotal tax charge 7.7 4.6
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The tax assessed in each year differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK far the relevant year. The differerces are

% explained below:

£

% 2020 2019

- £m £m

% Profit before tax 52.0 127

g Profit before tax at the standard UK tax rate of 19% {2019:19%) 9.9 2.4

g Losses not previously recognised - (6.6)

ic Provision for uncertain tax positions (1.5) 52
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.9 35
Share-based payrments 0.1 (o}
Non-taxable gain on deferred consideration (1.9} -
Effect of different rates of subsidiaries operating ih other jurisdictions 2.7 (0.2)
Difference in tax rates {0.J) 01
Adjustments in respect of previous years {2.4} 0.3
Total tax charge 7.7 46

The Directors have assessed the Group's uncertain tax positions and have released £1.5m in the year on the basis that certain tax

risks are now considered less [ikely to cystallise. Following this release {and the recognition of an additional provision of £0.4m from
acquired businesses which has not impacted the consolidated incormne statement) the Group has an overall provision for uncertain tax
positions of £4.5m.

9. DIVIDENDS

Equity dividends 2020 2019
Number of shares in issue at end of year {million) 98.0 836
Dividends paid in year (pence per share) 1.0 0.5
Dividends paid in year (€Em) (1.03 (0.4]

Interim dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid and final dividends are recognised in the period in which they
are approved. The dividend in respect of the year ended 30 September 2019 was paid on 14 February 2020. On 24 Novernber 2020 the
Board proposed a dividend of 1.6p per share in respect of the year ended 38 September 2020, which subject to shareholder consent at
the AGM, will be paid on 16 February 2021 to shareholders on the register at close of business on 15 January 2021

140 [ FUTURE PLC




10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Financial Statements

2020

2018

Adjusted results Adjusting items Statutory results Adjustad results Adjusting items Statutory results

pence pencae pence pence pence pence

Basic earnings/(loss) per share 76.3 (29.9) 46.4 501 {40.2) 9.9
Diluted earnings/{loss} per share 74.7 (29.3) 45.4 475 (38.2) 9.3

Basic earnings per share are calculated using the weighted average number of Qrdinary shares in issue during the year. Diluted
earnings per share have been calculated by taking Into account the dilutive effect of shares that would be issued on conversion into
Ordinary shares of awards held under employee share schemes, and in the prior year contingent consideration.

Adjusted earnings per share is based on profit after taxation which is then adjusted to exciude share-based payments (relating to
equity-settled share awards with vesting periods longer than 12 months) and related social security costs, interest, tax, amortisation
of acquired intangible assets, fair value movements on contingent consideration (and unwinding of associated discount) and on

currency option, and exceptional items and any related tax effects.

Total Group 2020 2018
Adjustments to profit after tax:

Profit after tax (£m) 44.3 81
Share-based payments {including social security costs) (Em) 5.5 9.0
Exceptional iterns (£m) 17.1 34
Amortisation of intangible assets arising on acquisitions (£m) 21.6 131
(Decrease)fincrease in fair value of contingent consideration (£m) (7.6) .7
Unwinding of discount (Em) 11 12
Fair value loss/(gain) on currency option [£Em) 1.2 {0.8)
Tax effect of the above adjustments (£m) (10.3) {4.5)
Adjusted profit after tax (Em) 729 412
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year:

- Basic 95,553,034 82,120,827
- Dilutive effect of share options 2,026,649 4,536,480
- Diluted 97,579,683 86,727,307
Basic earnings per share {in pence} 4£46.4 9.9
Adjusted basic earnings per share (in pence) 76.3 501
Diluted earnings per share {in pence) 45.4 9.3
Adjusted diluted earnings per share {in pence) 74.7 47.5
The adjustments to profit after tax have the following effect:

Basic earnings per share {pence) 46.4 92
Share-based payments (including social security costs) (pence) 5.8 n.o
Exceptional items (pence) 17.9 41
Amartisation of intangible assets arising on acquisitions (pence) 22.6 159
{Decrease)/increase in fair value of contingent consideration (pence) (8.0} 14.2
Unwinding of discount (pence) 1.2 15
Fair value loss/{gain) on currency option (pence) 1.3 (1.0)
Tax effect of the above adjustments (pence) {10.9) {5.5)
Adjusted basic earnings per share (pence) 76.3 50.1
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 45.4 9.3
Share-based payments (including social security costs) (pence) 5.6 10.4
Exceptional items {pence) 17.5 39
Amortisation of intangible assets arising en acquisitions {pence) 221 153
{Decreaselfincrease in fair value of contingent consideration {pence) (7.8) 135
Unwinding of discount (pence) 11 14
Fair value loss/{gain) on currency option {pence) 12 (C.9)
Tax effect of the above adjustrents {pence} {10.4) {5.2)
Adjusted diluted earnings per share {pence) 74.7 47.5
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

@

GLJ- e

E Equipment,

o Binaings machinery s Toane aapts Total

5 Group £m £m £m £m £m

w Cost

g At October 2018 10 45 07 - 62

b On acquisition 0.4 05 02 - 1

[™ Additions 02 1 - - 13
AL 30 September 2019 1.6 6.1 092 - 8.6
On acquisition 1.9 05 0.5 8.3 .2
Additions 0.3 0.6 - - 0.9
Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases - - - 13.5 135
Exchange adjustments - - - (0.3) {0.3)
At 30 September 2020 3.8 7.2 1.4 21.5 33.9
Accumulated depreciation
A1 October 2018 [0.4) 37 {0.4) - (4.5)
On acquisition (0.2) {0.3) {0.2) - {07
Charge for the year (0.} (0.7) {0.0) - {0.9)
AL 30 Septernber 2019 {0.7) (%.7) (0.7} - {6.1)
Charge for the year {0.3) 1.2) (0.2) {4.3) {5.8)
Impairment - - - [ LA .1}
At 30 September 2020 (1.0) {5.9) [0.9) {5.2) 013.0)
Net book value at 30 September 2020 2.8 1.3 Q.5 16.3 20.9
Net beok value at 30 September 2019 0.2 1.4 0.2 - 25
Net book value at 1 October 2018 Q.6 0.8 0.3 - 17

Right-of-use assets relate to property leases. The impairment in the year of £1.1m, and an accelerated charge within the depreciation
line of £0.4m, relate to properties which became vacant during the year.

Depreciation is included within administration expenses in the consolidated income staterment.

Adoption of IFRS 16 Leoses

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases from 1 October 2019, resulting in the recognition on balance sheet of assets and liabilities
relating to property leases previously accounted for as operating leases. On transition the Group has applied the modified
retrospective approach, with the right-of-use asset measured as if [FRS 16 had aiways applied and the difference between lease assets
and lease liabililies recognised within retained earnings. Comparative periods have not been restated.

The balance sheet impact at transition on 1 Octaber 2012 is included in the table below:

10October 2019

£m

Right-of-use assets 135
Finance lease receilvables (net investment in subleases) 1.8
Deferred tax asset 0.7
Total assets 16.0
Lease liabilities due within one year {4.6)
Lease liabilities due in more than one year (13.0)
Net release of provisions for vacant property and dilapidations 0.4
Derecognition of lease incentive 04
Total liabilities (16.8)
Retained earnings reduction on transition {0.8)
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Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate
on 1Octcber 2019 on a lease-by-lease basis.

Although there is no change to actual cash outflows, under IFRS 16 repayments relating to the principal portion of the lease liability
are presented within cash flows from financing activities and the portion relating to the repayment of interest presented within cash
flows from operating activities. Payments relating to short-term and low-value leases will continue to be included in cash flows frem
operating activities.

Acquisition of Tl Media — IFRS 16 impact

IFRS 16 was appiied to the leases acquired with 71 Media. The following assets and liabilities were recognised on the balance sheet
acquired:

20 April 2020

£m

Right-of-use assets 83
Deferred tax asset 01
Total assets 8.4
Lease liabilities due within one year (2.4)
Lease fiabilities due in more than one year {9.5)
Net release of provisions for vacant property and dilapidations 18
Derecognition of lease incentive 1.6
Total liabilities (8.4)

Retained earnings reduction on transition

Post-transition impact of IFRS 16

Following the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases, the Chief Operating Decision Maker {(*"CODM") reviews adjusted operating profit as a key
financial metric, rather than adjusted EBITDA, to include depreciation on right-of-use assets. There has been an increase in operating
profit in the period of £0.5m as a result of applying the standard, due to the charge being split between depreciation and interest,
with a decrease of £0.2m in total earnings. The income statement impact for the year to 30 September 2020 is included in the table
below:

Year to 30 September 2020

Applying Applying previous accounting

IFR5S 16 standard IAS 17

£m £m

Rent expense . 4.2
Depreciation 37 -
Interest payable 0.8 -
Interest receivable (Q.) -
Total 4.4 4.2
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2

g

5 Acquirted

- Goodwilt Intangibles Other Total

& Group £€m £m £m £m

2 Cost

2 At1 October 2018 364.0 216 200 5056

5 Additions through business combinations 781 516 01 129.8

5 Other additions - - 26 26
adjustments to fair value on prior year acquisitions 392 (37.8) - 1.4
Disposal (0.2) - - 0.2}
Exchange adjustments 36 51 0.5 92
At 30 Septernber 2019 4847 140.5 23.2 648.4
Additions through business combinations 97.2 94.3 4.2 195.7
Other additions - - 31 33
Exchange adjustrnents (7.6) 4.3} ‘ {0.5) (t2.4§
At 30 September 2020 574.3 2305 30.0 834.8
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
ALl October 2018 (264.2) (20.1} {17.9) (302.2)
Charge for the year - (13.1} (1.4) (14.5)
Exchange adjustments {1.8) [0.4) {C.5) (2.7)
At 30 September 2019 (266.0) (33.6) (12.8) (319.4)
Charge for the year - (21.6) (2.7) (24.3)
impairment - - {0.8) (0.8}
Exchange adjustments 1.4 1.5 0.4 3.3
At 30 September 2020 (264.6) (53.7) (22.9) (341.2)
Net book value at 30 September 2020 309.7 176.8 Al 493.6
Net book value at 30 September 2019 218.7 106.9 3.4 3290
Net book value at1 Octobet 2018 29.8 1015 21 203.4

Acquired intangibles relate mainly to brands, subscriber databases, trademarks, advertising relationships, creative servives
relationships, custorner relationships, publishing rights, content, non-compete agreements and customer lists. These assets are
amortised over their estimated economic lives, typically ranging between one and fifteen years. See accounting palicy on page 131 for
further details.

Any residual amount arising as a result of the purchase consideration being in excess of the value of acquired assets js recorded

as goodwill, Goodwill is not amortised under IFRS, but is subject to impairment testing at least annually or more frequently on the
occurrence of some triggering event. Goodwill is recorded and testad for impairrment on a territory by territory basis.

Further details regarding the intangible assets acquired dunng the yed thruuyl business combinatinns {and adjustments to fair
value in respect of these intangibles} are set out in hote 28.

Other intangibles relate to capitalised software costs and website developrnent costs which are internally genearated.
The impairment in the year of £0.8m relates to the T! Media legacy finance system.

Amortisation is included within administration expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment assessments far goodwill

The net book value of goodwili at 30 September 2020 consists of £170.9m {2019: £73.9m) relating to the UK and £138.8m {2019
£144.8m) relating to the US. The basis for calculating recoverable amounts is described in the accounting policies on page 132.

Trends in the economic and financial environment, competition and regulatory authorities’ decisions, or changes in competitor
behaviour in response to the economic environment may affect the estimate of recoverable amounts, as will unforeseen changes in

the political, economic or legal systems of some countries,

As detailed in the accounting policies on pages 13}, 132 and 133 the UK and US segrments are considered to be the smallest group of
cash generating units {'CGU") which independently generate cashflows so impairment testing has been performed at this level.

Other assumptions that influence estimated recoverable amounts are set out overleaf:

144 | FUTURE PLC




At 30 September 2020

Financial Statements

UK

us

Basis of recoverable amount
Source used

value in use
Three-year plans
Discounted cash flow

Value in use
Three-year plans
Discounted cash flow

Growth rate to perpetuity 3.0% 2.0%
EBITDA margins assumed* 31.0% to 40.0% 26.0%
Post-tax discount rate 7.8% 7.8%
Pre-tax discount rate 8.2% 9.6%

* Note that EBITDA margins are after intra-group for mar 1t fees and licence charges.

At 30 September 2019

UK us
Basis of recoverable amount Value in use Value in use
Source used Three-year plans Three-year plans
Discounted cash flow Discounted cash flow
Growth rate to perpetuity nil% 3.0%
EBITDA margins assumed* 24.0% to 33.0% 12.0% to 21.0%
Post-tax discount rate 8.2% 8.2%
Pre-tax discount rate 10.6% 10.6%

* Note that EBITDA margins are after intra-group for manag 1t fees and llcence charges.,

Management has determined the values assigned tc each of the above key assumptions as follows:

Assumption

Approach used to determining values

Growth rate into perpetuity

This is the growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the pericd of the three-year plan.
The rates are consistent with forecasts included in industry reperts.

EBITDA margins assumed

EBITDA margin is based on budgeted and forecast margins from the Group's three-year plan
{based on past performance and management’s expectations for the future), adjusted to include
intra-group management and licence charges.

Post-tax discount rate

The pre-tax discount rate adjusted for the impact of tax.

Pre-tax discount rate

Reflects risks relevant to each CGU and the country in which they operate.

Sensitivity of recoverable amounts

At 30 Septermber 2020 the analysis of the recoverable amounts gave rise to the following assessments of sensitivity:

The value in use of the UK business and the value in use of the US business exceeded their carrying values by £1,595.4m and £383.8m
respectively. A change of plus 50 basis points in the post-tax discount rate would decrease the recoverable amount of the UK business
by £175.9m and the US business by £56.6m. A change of minus 50 basis points in the post-tax discount rate would increase the
recoverable amount of the UK business by £216.9m and the US business by £69.8m.

The Group has conducted sensitivity analysis of the impairment testing and has concluded that any reasonably possible change would
not result in an impairment of goodwill for either CGU.

Goodwill is not considered to be impaired at 30 September 2020.
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13. INVESTMENTS IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

wr

st

<

E

8 Company i i
I

bt Shares in Group undertakings

o At T Qctober 142.2 1236
g Additions 2141 186
L]

£ At 30 September 356.3 142.2
[

Additions of £214.1m include a £173.9m increased investrment in Future Holdings 2002 Limited arising as a result of the capitalisation
of amounts owed to the Company by other Group companies as a result of the approach to funding the TI Media acquisition and
£21.8m as a result of the approach to funding the Mobile Nations acquisition,

The remaining additions of £5.6m represents the fair valueg of share-based compensation awards granted to employees of subsidiary
undertakings of Future Holdings 2002 Limited, treated as a capital contributiaon to that company, and capitalisation of a further
£12.8m of amounts owed to the Company by other Group companies.

The Directors believe that the carrying values of the investments are supported by their underlying assets.

14. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group, and the movements therean, during the current
and prior years.

Provision for

Intangible Share-based Temporary Depreciaticn vs uncertain tax

assets payments differances tax allowances Taxlosses positions Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 October 2018 {4.9) 2.4 0.2 0.6 19 - 02
Acquisitions 4.8} - - - - - {4.8)
Credited to income staterment (0.7) 0.2 Cl {on 477 (1.8) 2.4
Credited to equity - 56 - - - B 56
Exchange adjustment (0.2) - - - (&3] - (o)
At 30 September 2019 (10.6) 8.2 03 0.5 6.7 (1.8) 3.3
Impact of adapting IFRS 16 Leases - - 0.7 - - - 0.7
Restated at 30 September 2019 (10.6) 8.2 1.0 0.5 6.7 (1.8) 4.0
Acquisitions (18.0} - 2.0 6.0 6.1 - {3.9}
Credited to income statement 2.8 0.6 12 0.2 (3.9) 1.2 21
Charged to equity - (3.7) - - - - 3.7
At 30 September 2020 (25.8) 5.1 4.2 6.7 8.9 (0-6) (1.5)

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities will reverse within 12 months of the year end, The following sets out the expected reversal profile:

Provision for

it sh based Termnp: y  Depreclation vs uncertain tax
assets payments differences tax allowances Tax losses positions Total
£m £m £€m £m £m £m £m
Within one year (3.0) - 35 1.8 4.5 - 6.8
More than one year (22.8) 53 0.7 4.9 &4 {0.6) {8.3)
At 30 September 2020 {25.8) 5.1 4.2 57 8.9 {0.6) {1.5)

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset against each other where they relate to the same jurisdiction. The folfowing
is the analysis of deferred tax balances after offset for balance sheet purposes:

2020 2019

£m £m

Deferred tax assets 1.0 37
Deferred tax liabilities {2.5) (0.4)
Net deferred tax (iiability}/asset (1.5} 33

As at 30 September 2020 the Group has unrecognised capital losses totalling £4.9m (2019 £4.9m) and £0.7m of tax losses (2019 £nil).
These all arise in the UK.

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses and other temporary differences where it is probable that these
assets will be recovered.
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No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries as any remitted earnings would net give rise to a tax
liability in the foreseeable future. See note 8 for the impact of any changes in tax rates compared to the previous accounting period
which have been substantively enacted and have impacted the measurement of deferred tax balances.

The deferred tax asset of £1.2rn (2819: £4.5rm) recognised on the Company's balance sheet is in respect of share-based payments. The
company has no unprovided deferred tax assets or liakilities at 30 September 2020 (2019: £nil).

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company Group Company
2020 2020 2019 2019
£m £m £m £m

current assets:
Trade receivables 595 - 386 -
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables {6.6) - (3.2) -
Trade receivables net 52.9 - 354 -
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - 72.6 - 947
Other receivables 5.8 - 06 -
Prepayments and accrued income 13.7 - 59 -
Total 72.4 72.6 419 94.7

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

The Group applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime credit losses for trade receivables. A breakdown of the ageing is set
out below:

Group Group

2020 2019

Past due £m £m
0-30 days 4.7 36
31-60 days 2.2 1.4
61-20 days 1.8 1.3
91+ days 2.3 2.0
Total 11.0 83

As at 30 Septernber 2020, trade recelvables of £6.6rm (2012 £3.2m) were impaired and provided for. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to non-UK wholesalers In the newsstand distribution business and advertising customers.

The movement in the Group allowance for impairment of trade receivables during the year is as follows:

Group Giroup
Provision o 221:
At 1 October 3.2 33
Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables:
On acquisition 13 05
Provided for in the year 2.5 0.8
Receivables written off during the year {0.4) 1.4)
At 30 September 6.6 3.2

Trade receivables are written off to administration expenses where there is not a reasonable expectation of recovery. The primary
indicator that there is not reasonable expectation of recovery would be a customer's liquidation but there are also instances where
legal proceedings and/or debt recovery have not succeeded. Receivables written off during the year included amounts provided for in
fuil on prior acquisitions.

The Groug applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivabies. To measure the expected credit losses trade receivables are grouped by trading subsidiaries. The expected
losses are based on historical credit losses for the 24 months in the period to 30 September 2020. The calculation for the current year
has been amended to reflect an increased reserve due to macroeconomic uncertainties prevalent at this moment with the global
pandemic and specific reserving for acquired entities where the historical records for credit losses are not available.

The expected loss rate and the related aliowance for impairment of trade receivables is split by ageing category as foilows:

2020 Current ©-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 90+ days Total
Gross carrying amount of trade receivables (Em) 43.0 54 25 25 59 59.5
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables {Em) 11 0.7 05 0.7 3.6 6.6
Expected loss rate 2.6% 13.0% 18.5% 28.0% 61.0%
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2019 Current 0-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 20+ days Total

Gruss Lattying amount of trode recoivalbles (Em} T 41 1.7 17 32 386
Allawance for impairment of trade receivables {Fmj us 0.5 0.3 Q.4 1.2 37
Expected loss rate 2.8% 9.9% 20.5% 29.6% 17.0%

Credit risk

Credit checks are required for both new and existing accounts where trading exceeds a risk based de minimis threshold. Default
credit terms are 30 days but can be extended for commercial reasons. Final decisions on both the customer credit limit and the
extension of credit terms are rade by a senior manager in the finance function who will take consideration of the following factors;
trading history to date, credit status of the customer, deal profitability and any other relevant cormmmercial factors.

The maxirmum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The
Group daes not hold any collateral as security for trade receivabies.

All the Company's receivables are with Group undertakings and no additional disclosure in relation to credit risk is required. Interest
on £7.2m (2019: £38.6m) of the amounts owed by Group undertakings has been charged at one-month USD LIBOR plus 2%. The
balance of amaounts owed by Group undertakings is interest-free without any terrns for repayment,

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the cash flow statements:

Group Company CGraup Company

2020 2020 2018 2019

£m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 19.3 0.1 6.6 -

The Group has a number of authorised counterparties with whom cash balances are held in the countries in which the Group
operates. Credit risk is minimised by considering the credit standing of all potential counterparties before selecting them by the use
of externai credit ratings. 99.8% of the Group's cash and cash equivalent balance was held with counterparties with 2 minimum S&P
credit rating of A-. The rernaining 0.2% related to cash and small short terrn balances held with PayPal (BBB+). The Group maonitors the
exposure, credit rating and outlock of all financial counterparties on a regular basis.

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company Group Company

2020 202D 2005 201%

£m £m £m £m

Trade payables 25.4 - 34 -
Armounts owed to Group undertakings - 25.9 - -
Qther taxation and social security 6.3 - a7 -
Cther payables 8.6 0.1 23 -
Accruals and deferred income 75.9 0.2 485 02
Total ne.2 26.2 2.4 0.2

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing ¢osts. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure all payabies are paid within the agreed credit terms.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.

The amounts owed to Group undertakings are interest-free without any terms for repayment.

18, FINANCIAL LIABILITIES — INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Non-current liabilities

Interest rate at Interest rate at Group Company Group Company

30 September 30 Septernber 2020 2020 2019 2019

2020 2019 £m £m £m £m

Sterling revolving foan 1.8% 2.5% 66.6 66,6 4.3 143
US dollar revolving loan 1.9% 3.8% 7.0 7.0 28.3 283
Total 73.6 73.6 42.6 426
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Current liabilities

Interest rate at Interest rate at Croup Company Group Company

30 September 30 september 2020 2020 2019 2019

2020 2013 £m £m £m £m

Multi-currency overdraft 2.01% 2.59% 7.8 4.3 4.3 -
Total 7.8 4.3 4.3 -

The interest-bearing loans are repayable as follows:

Group Company Group Company

2020 2020 2019 2019

£m £m £m £m

Within one year 7.8 4.3 4.3 -
Between two and five years 73.6 73.6 42.6 426
Total 8.4 77.9 46.9 426

During the period the Group agreed a new £30m multi-currency Revolving Credit Facdility {("RCF"), which stands alongside Future's
existing debt facilities {of £135m which mature in February 2023). This facility was arranged in order to provide the Group with additional
working capital headroom to maintain the underlying growth momenturmn of the combined business, whilst navigating the impact of
CCOVID-19. This facility has not been required (and has not been drawn) as at 30 September 2020 and has been subsequently cancelled.

All material companies in the Grou are guarantors to the facilities and the availability of the facilities is subject to certain covenants.

Total fees relating to the new facility amounted to £0.2m and these are being amortised over the term of the facility. The bank
borrowings and interest are guaranteed by Future plc.

Interest payable under the facilities for sterling denominated loans is calculated as the cost of one-month LIBOR {currently
approximately 0.04%) plus an interest margin of between 1.75% and 3.0%, dependent on the level of Leverage.

Interest payable under the facilities for the US dollar denominated loan is calculated as the cost of one-month USD LIBOR {currently
approximately 014%)} plus an interest margin of between 1.75% and 3.0%, dependent on the level of Leverage.

As the term of facilities spans the proposed LIBOR end date of 202], it is the intention of the Group to agree an alternative reference rate
with the Lenders ahead of the LIBOR end date.

The key covenants are set out in the following table where net debt is exclusive of non-current tax and other payables. Bank EBITDA is
calculated on a consistent GAAP basis with reported EBITDA adjusted for the impact of IFRS 16 Leases.

Net debt/Bank ESITDA Leverage in respect of any Relevant Period shall not exceed 3.01
Bank EBITDA/Interest Interest Cover in respect of any Relevant Period shall not be less than 4.0:1

The covenants are tested quarteriy on the basis of rolling figures for the preceding 12 months and the covenant position at
30 September 2020 is set out in the following table:

30 September 2020 30 Ssptember 2012 Covehant 2020 Covenant 2019
Net debt/Bank EBITDA 0.6 times 1.0 times' < 3.0 times = 3.0 times
Bank EBITDA/Interest 38.8 times 241 times > 4.0 times = 4.0 times

' This is higher than leverage of 0.74 on page 7 due to MoNa Mobile Nations deferred consideration being included as debt in the bank
covenant calculations,

The Greup had drawn down £7.8m on its interest-bearing overdraft at 30 September 2020 (30 September 2019; £4.3m). Any draw
down forms part of the Group cash pooling account and can be offset against cash balances in other Group companies, Net of
pooling the Group had a net cash position of £8.6m and total cash balance, including non-pool accounts of £11.5m.

19. PROVISIONS

Property Property
Group zc;:zr: 2:1:
At 1October 21 28
Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases {0.4) -
On acquisition 3.8 -
Charged in the year 0.8 o7
Utilised in the year (1.2} {0.7)
Released in the year - {0.7)
At 30 September 51 2.1

The provision for property relates to dilapidations and obligations under short leasehold agreerments on vacant property. The majority of
the vacant property provision is expected to be utilised over the next five years.

Provisions for the Company were £nil {2019: £nil).
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20. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Group Group

2020 2009

Group £m £m
Other payables - 0.4

Other payables consisted mainly of a property lease incentive which was derecognised on transition to IFRS 16 Leases {see note 11 for
further details).

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group applies IFRS 9 Financial Instrurments. For the Group's financial assets, the following tabkle shows the measurerment
categories under (FRS 9:

Financial asset IFRS 9 classification

Cash and cash equivalents Amortised cost

Trade and cther receivables Amortised cost

Derlvative - purchased option Fair value through profit or loss

There has not been a significant impact on the carrying amounts of assets held. Ali financial assets and liabilities are classed as level 1.
Deferred and contingent consideration

At 30 September 2019 deferred consideration of £43.9m related to the acquisition of MoNa Mobile Nations, LLC ("MoNa"). The MoNa
deferred consideration was settled in the period with around 50% being issued in shares (1,792,534 shares in Future plcissued in
Cctober 2019), and around 50% {£21.4m) in cash {which was paid on 28 February 2020).

At 30 September 2019 contingent consideration of £10.9m related to the acquisition of SmartBrief, LLC {"SmartBrief"). Following the
cormpletion of the earnout period on 31 July 2020 the fair value of the contingent consideration was finalised at £3.6m ($4.6m} and
paid in September 2020, This resulted in a fair value gain of £7.6m in the year (after discounting of £0.8m] being recognised in the
incorne statement.

Financial asset - derivative

In the comparative period, a derivative foreign currency option to buy $30m in June 2020 was acquired in order to hedge the currency
exposure arising on the MoNa contingent consideration. Fallowing the acceleration of settlement of contingent consideration for
MoNa, the currency option was clesed cut early, resulting in a fair value loss of £1.2m being charged to the income statement in the
year. There were no transfers between levels in the current or prior period.

Financial instruments by category

The designation ot financial assets and liabilities under IFRS 9 has been taken at the date of initial apphication, theretore the prior year
classifications have not been amended. The Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are set out below:

2020

Amortised Total carrying Total fair
Group Note c: rsr: val£|:rc‘ nIE‘::
Finance lease receivable 1.6 1.6 1.6
Trade receivables net 15 52.9 529 52.9
Other receivables 15 5.8 5.8 5.8
Cash and cash equivalents (3] 19.3 19.3 19.3
Total financial assets 79.6 79.6 79.6
Trade payables 17 {25.4) (25.4) {(25.4)
Other liabilities (79.4) {79.4) {79.4)
Current borrowings 18 (7.8) (7.8) {7.8)
Non-current borrowings 8 (72.6) {73.6) {73.6)
Total financial liabilities (186.2) {186.2} (186.2)
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2019

Fair value
Amortised through profit Total carrying Tolal fair
Group Note C?;f o ‘grs‘rS\ Va:zurf\ vajlrurﬁ
Financial asset - derivative - 1.4 1.4 14
Trade receivables net s 35.4 - 354 354
Other receivables 15 0.6 - 06 06
Cash and cash equivalents 16 6.6 - 6.6 66
Total financial assets 42.6 1.4 440 44.0
Trade payables 17 (3.4} - {3.4) (3.4)
Other liabilities {50.4) - (50.4) (50.4)
Current borrowings 18 4.3) - (4.3) {4.3)
Deferred consideration - (43.9) (43.9) (43.9)
Contingent consideration - (10.9) (10.9) {10.9)
Non-current borrowings 18 {42.6) - (42.6) {42.6)
Total financial liabilities 100.7) (54.8) (155.5) (155.5)

The Company's financial assets and liabilities are set out below:

2020
Amortised Total carrying Total fair
Company Note “om valcl:: valc::
Other receivables 15 72.6 72.6 72.6
Cash and cash equivalents 16 0.1 0.1 0
Total financial assets 72.7 72.7 72.7
Other liabilities 17 {26.2) (26.2) (26.2)
Current borrowings 18 (4.3) (4.3) {4.3)
Non-current borrowings 8 {73.6) (73.6) {73.6)
Total financial liabilities {104.1) {104.1) {104.1)
2019
Amnortised tair value through 1otal carrying Total fair
Company Note em profitor s e em
Financial asset - derivative - 14 1.4 14
Other receivables 15 94,7 - 947 947
Total financial assets 94.7 14 96.1 96
Other liabilities 17 (0.2) - {0.2) 0.2)
Non-current borrowings 18 (42.6) - [42.6) (42.6
Total financial liabilities {42.8) - (42.8) (42.8)

In both the Group and Company tables total financial liabilities are shown net of unamortised costs which amounted to £0.9m (2012: £0.7m).

The fair value is the armount for which a financial instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties. If an active
market exists, the market price is apptied. If an active market does not exist a discounted cash flow or generally accepted estimation and
valuation technique based on market conditions at the balance sheet date is used to calculate an estimated value.

The market value of financial instruments is determined by the use of valuation techniques including estimated discounted cash flows.

Treasury overview

The Group uses financial instruments where appropriate to raise funding for its operations and to manage the financial risks arising

from those operations. The agreements governing the principal instruments entered into were approved by the Board.

The Group's objectives when rmanaging capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, provide returns

and benefits for shareholders.
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The principal financing and treasury exposures faced by the Group arise from foreign currencies, working capital management, the
financing of capital expenditure and acquisitions, the management of intarest rates on the Group's debt, the investment of surplus
cash and the management of the Group's debt facilities. The Group manages ali of these exposures with an objective of remaining
within covenant ratios agreed with the Group's banks, and the Group has been in compliance with its covenants during the year.
These ratios are disclosed in note 18.

Currency and interest rate profile

The currency and interest rate profile of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities is shown below:

Financial assets Financial liabilities
Non- Non- Net financial
interest Floating interest {liabllities)/
bearing Total rate bearing Total assets
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 30 September 2020
Currency:
sterling 10.6 10.6 {74.4) (95.0) (169.4) (158.8)
UsS Dollar 57.9 57.9 (7.0} (8.0) {15.0) 42.9
Euro 4.3 4.3 - (0.5) (0.5) ia
AL Dollar 3.7 3.7 - (1.0} .0} 2.7
Other 3.1 3.1 - {0.3) (0.3) 2.8
Total 79.6 79.6 (81.4) (104.8) (186.2) {106.6)
At 30 Septermber 2019
Currency:
Sterling 10.8 10.8 {18.6) (35.6) {54.2) [43.4)
Us Dollar 311 311 (28.3) {71.8) (100.1) (69.0)
Euro Q.6 06 - (0.4) (0.4) 02
AU Dollar 11 11 - {0.7) (0.7) C.4
Other 0.4 0.4 - (0.7) (oA} 03
Total %4 4.0 414.0 [16.2) [108.6) (155.5) {171.5)

The profit after tax impact reflects the foreign exchange differences that could arise following the retranslation of balances denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. The retained earnings impact reflects the currency
translation differences that would arise directly in equity upon retranslation of the Group’s US subsidiaries on consclidation. The method
of estimation involves assessing the translation impact of the US Dollar.

Interest rate risk
Details of the interest rates on borrowings as at 30 September 2020 are set cut in note 18,

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets but is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at floating interest rates
through its bank facilities. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group evaluates

its risk appetite towards interest rate risks regularly and may undertake hedging activities, including interest rate swap contracts,

to manage interest rate risk in relation to its revolving credit facility If deemed necessary. The Group did not enter into any hedging
transactions during the current or prior years and as at 30 September 2020 the only floating rate to which the Group was exposed is
LIBOR. The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk section of this note.

For 2020, if interest rates on net borrowings had been on average 0.5% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the post-tax
profit for the year would have decreased/increased by £0.3m (2019: £0.2m).

There would be noimpact on equity excluding reta